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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good morning. My

          3  name is Jim Gennaro, Chair of the New York City

          4  Council Committee on Environmental Protection, and

          5  I'd like to welcome you to this hearing today.

          6                 We'll hear testimony on a very

          7  important matter, the state of the Indian Point

          8  Nuclear Facility.

          9                 We're going to consider proposed

         10  Resolution Number 64-A, which calls for the

         11  decommissioning of the Indian Point Nuclear Facility

         12  for conversion to a facility powered by a renewable

         13  energy source for the appropriate entities and to

         14  create a plan that speaks to the job placement,

         15  retraining and financial security of the affected

         16  workers at the plant, and for the immediate security

         17  and proper protection of Indian Point spent fuel

         18  rods from the threat of an accident or terrorist

         19  attack, and for the appropriate local state and

         20  federal authorities to make sure that adequate

         21  radiological emergency response plans are in place

         22  that protect the public health and safety of the

         23  communities surrounding Indian Point, including New

         24  York City.

         25                 In May of 2002, this Committee held a

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  hearing on Resolution Number 64, which called for

          3  the immediate shutdown of the Indian Point Nuclear

          4  Facility until comprehensive safety studies were

          5  completed and adequate security measures taken.

          6                 We've made revisions over the last

          7  year to that resolution, and our work product is

          8  what you have before you today.

          9                 As I stated at our first hearing on

         10  this issue, there's been a great deal of controversy

         11  surrounding operation of Indian Point, particularly

         12  since the events of September 11th, 2001.

         13                 Just the mention of the Indian Point

         14  Nuclear Facility conjures a wide range of emotions,

         15  starts concerns and opinions amongst a large

         16  spectrum of individuals.

         17                 Two issues among many that have

         18  surfaced regarding Indian Point are concerns about

         19  the safety of the facility and its potential

         20  vulnerability to a terrorist attack. These concerns

         21  have been magnified with the release of a draft of

         22  the New York State Commission report last month on

         23  emergency preparedness at Indian Point.

         24                 It's my understanding that the final

         25  version of the report is due out today. We look
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          2  forward to that.

          3                 The findings of that draft report

          4  concluded that, "the current radiological response

          5  system and capabilities are not adequate to overcome

          6  the combined weight and protect the people from an

          7  unacceptable dose of radiation in the event of the

          8  release from Indian Point, particularly if the

          9  release is faster or larger than the design basis

         10  release."

         11                 We'll have to see if that quote lives

         12  on in the final version of the report.

         13                 Furthermore, just last Friday New

         14  York Times reported that FEMA "could not give

         15  reasonable assurance that emergency plans for the

         16  area around the plant would work."

         17                 It's crucial that an emergency

         18  response plan is adequate to protect the surrounding

         19  communities is in place, regardless of whether or

         20  not Indian Point is decommissioned or shut down.

         21                 In light of the security concerns

         22  regarding the Indian Point Nuclear Facility, and

         23  questions about the adequacy of the radiological

         24  emergency response plans pertaining to the facility,

         25  this Committee has sought to assess the gravity of
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          2  the risks and consequences of an attack or accident

          3  at the facility.

          4                 As such, in March of 2002, this

          5  Council sent correspondence to Tom Ridge, who was

          6  then Director of the Office of Homeland Security and

          7  is now Secretary of the Department of Homeland

          8  Security, requesting an assessment of the

          9  vulnerability of Indian Point to a terrorist attack,

         10  the adequacy of current protection measures, and the

         11  existence of adequate mitigation, evacuation and

         12  emergency management plans.

         13                 Unfortunately, nearly a full year has

         14  passed and the Council has yet to receive even one

         15  word from Secretary Ridge. Nevertheless, we are

         16  pressing forward to fulfill our obligation of public

         17  servants to protect our constituents.

         18                 This Committee is well aware that

         19  security is just one of the many concerns related to

         20  Indian Point Nuclear Facility. Today we intend to

         21  explore and address the very concerns and questions

         22  about the facility regarding, among other things,

         23  how environmental consequences and energy

         24  implications regarding the facility will impact New

         25  York City.
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          2                 Furthermore, this Council is

          3  sensitive to the fact the Indian Point Nuclear

          4  Facility -- pardon me -- that if the facility is

          5  decommissioned or shut down for any period of time

          6  there will be energy implications, particularly for

          7  the summer months when our energy grid is very

          8  stressed.

          9                 That is why the resolution calls for

         10  the conversion of Indian Point to a facility powered

         11  by a renewable energy source and we expect to hear

         12  testimony about other ways in which to address the

         13  potential loss of energy, should the facility

         14  ultimately be shut down.

         15                 The Council is also sensitive to the

         16  fact that there are approximately 1,500 people

         17  employed at the Indian Point, employed at Indian

         18  Point who may, along with the surrounding

         19  communities, have adverse economic impact resulting

         20  from the decommissioning of the facility. As such,

         21  the resolution calls for the appropriate entities to

         22  create a plan that speak to the job placement,

         23  retraining, financial security of the affected

         24  workers at Indian Point, and we hope to hear

         25  testimony on how to best create a plan that will
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          2  mitigate these potential adverse economic impacts on

          3  employees of Indian Point and their surrounding

          4  communities.

          5                 I'll call your attention to a new

          6  clause which has been added to the resolution that

          7  speaks particularly to worker protection. I'll do

          8  that at the end of my statement.

          9                 Finally, the Council is also

         10  sensitive to the danger that spent fuel pools, one

         11  of the most vulnerable aspects of the Indian Point

         12  Facility posed to New Yorkers and our environment,

         13  and that is why proposed Resolution 64-A calls for

         14  the immediate security and proper protection of

         15  Indian Point spent fuel rods from the threat of an

         16  accident or terrorist attack.

         17                 This Committee has not haphazardly

         18  approached the issue of safety at Indian Point and

         19  the ramifications of its decommissioning.

         20                 Simply put, we have made a serious

         21  effort in gathering knowledge to develop a clear and

         22  well-informed position on Indian Point. We will not

         23  be voting on the resolution today, but will use this

         24  hearing to continue gathering information and

         25  informal commentary to fully assess which should be
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          2  the long-term status of the Indian Point Facility.

          3                 As Chair of this Committee, it is my

          4  high honor, obligation and responsibility to guard

          5  New York City and its 8 million people and its water

          6  supply from harm.

          7                 The weight of this responsibility has

          8  never been felt more than today.

          9                 This is a responsibility that is not

         10  and will not be taken lightly, but we will not rush

         11  to judgment and we will get to the bottom of this

         12  issue. We will not walk away from our obligation, we

         13  will not flinch under political pressure and we will

         14  give this subject its due deliberation.

         15                 People have in fact criticized this

         16  Committee for not acting sooner in finalizing

         17  resolution, but this should not be confused with a

         18  lack of diligence.

         19                 I, and the members of this Committee,

         20  and staff of the Committee have spent untold hours

         21  on this issue, pouring over information, speaking to

         22  experts and advocates, visiting the plant, doing

         23  everything that's necessary in order to do our due

         24  diligence.

         25                 Passions are very high, and unbiased
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          2  information is sometimes very hard to come by, but

          3  this is a serious issue, and I will not settle for

          4  anything less than a thoughtful and deliberative

          5  debate resulting in an informed decision that will

          6  be made in the best interests of this City.

          7                 As I said before, we look forward to

          8  the final version of the Witt report, which I

          9  understand is going to be due out some time today.

         10  We'll be asking hard questions during this hearing.

         11  The final outcome of the City Council's process has

         12  not been determined.

         13                 We had a resolution that we're

         14  looking at today, we may change it from what we have

         15  now. We're going to continue this process. We look

         16  forward to federal government actions. I know that

         17  the federal government is taking a hard look at this

         18  and we wish to hear from them.

         19                 We're disappointed that no

         20  representatives of the federal government chose to

         21  be with us today to give us the benefit of their

         22  views. So, we will do our best to track them down

         23  and get them on the record in private, if not in

         24  public.

         25                 And, so, I would ask all of you who
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          2  have taken the time, and we thank you for being

          3  here, who are going to come before us and present

          4  testimony, to, you know, give it your best shot.

          5                 I certainly am here with an open

          6  mind. I've been able to meet with the people from

          7  Entergy, from the people from the advocate

          8  community, from the people from the scientific

          9  community. I've taken on a physicist who has been

         10  helping me to grapple with some of these issues.

         11  There is a blizzard of information out there, but

         12  I'm a very deliberate person, this is a very

         13  deliberate committee, and we are not going to rush

         14  to judgment on this issue.

         15                 So, we come before you today with an

         16  open mind and we ask you to persuade us and give us

         17  everything you possibly can to help us as we bring

         18  this process along.

         19                 I want to call your attention to two

         20  clauses that have been added to the resolution since

         21  the original invites went out, and it would be on

         22  the bottom of the second page of the resolution, the

         23  last one.

         24                 Is this the one, Donna?

         25                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          3                 It begins, "Whereas: A February 22nd,

          4  2003 New York Times article reported that on

          5  February 21st, 2003," bla-bla-bla, it would be that

          6  clause was added, and on the third page of the

          7  resolution, in my copy it's the fourth clause down,

          8   "Whereas, the potential adverse economic impact

          9  resulting from the closure of Indian Point on the

         10  Facility's employees could be addressed in part",

         11  with one year shy of that is a new clause as well, I

         12  wanted to bring those to your attention.

         13                 So, I thank everyone for being here.

         14  This is going to be a very important day as we write

         15  the next chapter, at least the City Council's

         16  chapter on Indian Point. We stand before you here,

         17  or we sit before you with open minds.

         18                 I'd like to indicate that we're

         19  joined by Councilman Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn,

         20  and Council Member Peter Vallone from Queens. There

         21  will be other members of the Committee who will be

         22  joining us as we continue.

         23                 So, that concludes my statement, and

         24  with that I would like to call our first witness.

         25                 Richard Brodsky of the New York State
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          2  Assembly, to be followed by representatives from

          3  Entergy.

          4                 Mr. Brodsky, thank you for joining us

          5  today.

          6                 So, what we'll do is we have, I'll

          7  state that we place all of our witnesses under oath,

          8  so the Counsel to the Committee will administer the

          9  oath and then we'd ask you to state your name for

         10  the record and proceed with your testimony.

         11                 Thank you very much for being here,

         12  Mr. Brodsky.

         13                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Assemblyman

         14  Richard Brodsky, 92nd Assembly District, Westchester

         15  County, New York.

         16                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Okay, please raise

         17  your right hand.

         18                 In the testimony that you're about to

         19  give do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         20  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         21                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I do.

         22                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         23                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Thank you.

         24                 Mr. Chairman, thank you for this

         25  opportunity. Members of the Committee, Councilman
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          2  DeBlasio, Councilman Vallone, it's a pleasure to be

          3  with you today.

          4                 I think I might be helpful to you in

          5  your deliberations by briefly constructing the

          6  history of what got us here, and then making some

          7  substantive suggestions with respect to your draft

          8  resolution.

          9                 December 20th, 2001, immediately

         10  subsequent to the tragedy of September 11th, I

         11  convened the Committee I chaired at the time, the

         12  Committee on Environmental Conservation, and took

         13  sworn testimony with respect to the Indian Point

         14  Evacuation Plans from the State Emergency Management

         15  Office, Entergy, the counties involved who had

         16  actually drafted the plans. I did that because in

         17  the days after September 11th I did something that

         18  no one else had ever done - I read the plans. And in

         19  the time before September 11th, perhaps our national

         20  sense of security had allowed us to defer to experts

         21  in bureaucracies concerns for our security and our

         22  safety. And in the days that followed I think people

         23  of our region decided they didn't want that to be

         24  anymore, they wanted to know what it was the

         25  government was telling them to do.
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          2                 When I read the evacuation plan, it

          3  became immediately clear they could not work. But it

          4  wasn't enough for my opinion to be the basis for

          5  that decision, we brought in the witnesses, we took

          6  the sworn testimony. On February 20th of 2002, we

          7  issued an interim report on the evacuation plan for

          8  the Indian Point Nuclear Facility, coauthored by

          9  myself and Paul Tonko, Chairman of the Committee on

         10  Energy.

         11                 That report was transmitted to many,

         12  including members of the Council, and I submit it

         13  today for the record in your continued

         14  deliberations.

         15                 That report set out a variety of

         16  concerns about the evacuation plan. Those included:

         17                 - the failure to cover evacuation

         18  outside the ten-mile zone, including New York City.

         19                 - the failure to deal with New York

         20  City's water supply system.

         21                 - the failure to consider what is

         22  called "shadow evacuation," the process by which

         23  people naturally and spontaneously evacuate from

         24  without the zone when an evacuation within the zone

         25  is ordered.
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          2                 It dealt with a separation of

          3  children and families within the zone when

          4  evacuation was ordered.

          5                 It dealt with the failures of the

          6  communication system.

          7                 And it dealt with the fact that the

          8  data upon which the plans were based was

          9  dramatically outdated.

         10                 That report created quite a stir,

         11  because it was the first independent analysis of the

         12  report. It resulted in a healthy political debate in

         13  the campaign of 2002, in which a variety of opinions

         14  were expressed in the gubernatorial race and others.

         15                 As a result of that process Governor

         16  Pataki hired James Lee Witt essentially to check to

         17  see whether the allegations we made in our report

         18  were accurate.

         19                 At the same time, because of the

         20  seriousness of what we determined, we filed what's

         21  called a 350 petition before the Federal Emergency

         22  Management Agency, seeking to have their July 20th,

         23  2001 approval of the evacuation plans overturned.

         24  That petition has been the main legal vehicle for

         25  challenges to evacuation planning, and it's been
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          2  signed by over 50 public officials, including at

          3  least two members of the Council, Councilman

          4  DeBlasio, Councilman Sanders, a number of members of

          5  Congress, Congress, Senator Clinton, all the

          6  legislative bodies in the four county region have

          7  joined, and it has become I think the focal point

          8  for legal discussion or the adequacy of the plans.

          9                 Subsequent to that, in December of

         10  this year the WITT report was released. The WITT

         11  report confirms in 500 pages what we set out as

         12  problems in 45. It is consistent in every respect to

         13  the conclusions we drew in February of last year.

         14                 As a result of the combined weight of

         15  that debate, what first happened was that the county

         16  executives who had been the proponents of the plan

         17  and its authors changed their positions, and after

         18  strenuously arguing the plans were adequate to

         19  protect the public health and safety, have now

         20  determined they are not.

         21                 As a result of that change, in

         22  January of this year, they refused to send what's

         23  called an annual letter of certification. As a

         24  result of that change in policy, the Governor has

         25  taken a position of silence on the policy issues,
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          2  but he, too, has refused to send the annual letter

          3  of certification to FEMA.

          4                 That has left FEMA in the

          5  extraordinary position of actually having to make a

          6  decision unsupported by the politics of the authors

          7  of the plan or the state agencies. Even though as

          8  you'll see in our interim report, the participation

          9  of both the counties and the state in the FEMA

         10  process is voluntary and non-bonding.

         11                 FEMA issued a document a week ago

         12  which was one of the more distressing public

         13  documents I've ever read. It continued to evade

         14  their primary responsibility, which is to tell the

         15  truth about the evacuation plan, hinted that the

         16  plans were adequate, but determined that they needed

         17  additional paperwork in order to make a formal

         18  declaration.

         19                 They postponed that to May 2nd, which

         20  is also unfortunate, but it leaves us and you in the

         21  position of having to speak candidly and truthfully

         22  about the adequacy of these plans with respect to

         23  the protections of the people.

         24                 These plans do not and cannot protect

         25  the public health and safety of the people within
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          2  the ten-mile region, or with the people within the

          3  50-mile peak fatality zone.

          4                 Any attempt to rely on these

          5  evacuation plans for the continued operation --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Can you just

          7  back up a second? You indicated the ten-mile zone

          8  and then you indicated another zone beyond that?

          9                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Yes. The NRC has

         10  usually had planning criteria that require planning

         11  for these radiological release in the 50-mile radius

         12  around the plant.

         13                 In the case of Indian Point,

         14  interestingly enough, unlike other sites around the

         15  nation, they have left the evacuation process within

         16  ten miles or less. That is unusual. It is a sign of

         17  the continued double standard by which the federal

         18  regulatory agencies have treated this matter. They

         19  do not treat Indian Point like they treat plants

         20  around the rest of the nation.

         21                 A good example of that is the fact

         22  that Indian Point was until a few months ago the

         23  worst-run plant in the nation. That was the

         24  determination of the NRC. It had a red determination

         25  and degraded cornerstone.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just want to

          3  state that when I toured the plant last spring, I

          4  did have consultations with on-site NRC officials

          5  that, you know, did not share that assessment.

          6                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Well, the NRC's

          7  assessment will speak for itself. At the time you

          8  went they were the worst-run plant in the nation by

          9  the NRC standards. They were the only one on red

         10  designation.

         11                 Several months ago the good news was

         12  they were taken up to a yellow designation, which

         13  means they're now the sixth worst-run plant in the

         14  nation out of 103.

         15                 Those are not my conclusions, those

         16  are the conclusions of the NRC.

         17                 If you'd like further information on

         18  those, we'd be glad to provide you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Because I

         20  just want to state that the NRC officials that I

         21  spoke to on my site visit last spring were more

         22  sanguine about the prospects about the operation of

         23  the plant. I'll say that just to say it.

         24                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: They will speak

         25  for themselves, but the designations are as I have
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          2  described them.

          3                 In essence then, what we did starting

          4  in February of last year is we told the truth about

          5  the evacuation plan. It had enormous public impact.

          6  It changed the views of the County Executives, it

          7  changed the views of the Governor, it changed the

          8  views of the public. It has not yet changed the

          9  views of the bureaucracies, and that is a much

         10  different issue. It is largely to be left to our

         11  friends in the Senate and the House, to make

         12  responsive the federal bureaucracies, which are now

         13  not responsive.

         14                 We may be in a litigation mode with

         15  respect to this matter. If they continue to fail to

         16  tell the truth about the evacuation plans, it is at

         17  least possible, and more likely than not that this

         18  will end up in federal court. To the extent that

         19  such a decision is taken, it will be done in

         20  consultation with other elected officials and

         21  advocacy groups and we would invite the Council's

         22  attention to that at such a time when a decision

         23  would be made.

         24                 But in the end, when you parse it all

         25  out there is a clear consensus by thoughtful people
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          2  from the county people to the state people to James

          3  Lee Witt that the evacuation plans do not work.

          4                 There is less of a consensus as to

          5  the remedy. Many people, and I number myself in this

          6  group, believe that the plant should cease to

          7  operate.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon? Pardon?

          9                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Believe that the

         10  plant should cease to operate.

         11                 Many other people who share our

         12  concerns about evacuation planning do not yet come

         13  to that conclusion. Senator Clinton being one person

         14  who has been a stalwart on this, but is working the

         15  process of the larger policies through in a very

         16  thoughtful and appropriate way.

         17                 What I urge you to do --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I put myself in

         19  that same category.

         20                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: It is always

         21  good to be in the same category as Senator Clinton.

         22                 What I urge you to do is to make a

         23  more -- a less equivocal determination in the text

         24  of your resolution with respect to evacuation

         25  planning.
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          2                 As I understand the text to the

          3  resolution, I would call for adequate evacuation

          4  plans. There is no human being on the earth who

          5  could disagree with that.

          6                 The question before the City Council

          7  seems to me to be whether or not such plans as they

          8  exist today are indeed adequate. It is my

          9  representation to you that they are not for the

         10  people close to the plant, and they are not for New

         11  York City, and I urge you to modify the wording of

         12  the resolution to state clearly that the evacuation

         13  plans, as constituted today, are not adequate to

         14  protect the public health and safety.

         15                 With respect to the many other

         16  important issues you address here, I find myself

         17  pleased and supportive of your concerns for the many

         18  other issues that are involved in the issue of

         19  closure. But I say to you again, and as clearly and

         20  as unequivocally as I can, the evacuation plans

         21  being presented are bogus. They do not work. They

         22  cannot provide any protection for people in the

         23  event of a release of radiation from Indian Point,

         24  and it would strike me as important and effective

         25  for the Council as it deliberates the wider issue,
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          2  to focus on that particular concern and speak

          3  clearly on that as well.

          4                 I'm also presenting to the Committee,

          5  in addition to the Interim Report, for the record, a

          6  copy of the 350 petition which expressly lays out

          7  against the federal regulatory scheme the factual

          8  and practical failures in the evacuation plan.

          9                 In other words, it is not enough for

         10  me to conclude, I don't think this plan meets the

         11  standards. We have presented to you where the

         12  failures of the existing plan do not meet federal

         13  requirements. The plan that's in place today is

         14  facially invalid, facially defective, in addition to

         15  its inability to work.

         16                 I don't want to take too much time in

         17  my direct comments, except to say that I welcome the

         18  thoughtful process of deliberation in which you are

         19  engaged, and I urge you to reflect the truth about

         20  evacuation plans, even as you wrestle with a much

         21  more complicated and complex issues of

         22  decommissioning of the plant itself.

         23                 Thank you for this opportunity give

         24  my remarks.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank
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          2  you, Mr. Brodsky, thank you very much.

          3                 I think I'm going to personally -- I

          4  mean, I am very eager to see the work that Mr. Witt

          5  is going to release. I understand his final report

          6  is due today; is that not correct?

          7                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I spoke with Mr.

          8  Witt last week, and I think he's hoping for the end

          9  of the month.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I know that the

         11  date that was originally set was today.

         12                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: It is the end of

         13  the month.

         14                 In talking to Mr. Witt, he had

         15  indicated that he was taking some factual matters

         16  that had been raised critically report seriously,

         17  but at the time I spoke to him about a week ago, he

         18  did not see anything to change the fundamental point

         19  he makes, which is that the plans are not adequate

         20  to protect the public health and safety.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I certainly look

         22  forward to -- because I know that Mr. Witt and his

         23  work is certainly not without thoughtful critics,

         24  and so I know that there have been criticisms

         25  leveled at his work, which obviously he's taking
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          2  into account and looking at and so I'm eager to see

          3  all the comments that have been made of his work and

          4  how he or if he changes whatever is going to be

          5  changed in that report.

          6                 So, I look forward to that, and I

          7  think I'll just reserve final comment until I see

          8  his final product.

          9                 And I guess although you've probably

         10  already stated this, you believe that there is no

         11  workable plan for Indian Point that ever could work.

         12  That was not what Mr. Witt sort of shared with me

         13  personally.

         14                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I don't know

         15  that. I do know that the plans that are in place

         16  clearly do not work.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         18                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I'm skeptical

         19  about whether the plan could work.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         21                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: But, remember, a

         22  bad plan, badly executed, will save more people than

         23  no plan at all. A good plan, well executed, will

         24  still leave us with casualties of an unacceptable

         25  nature.
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          2                 So, I think these local governments

          3  must continue to develop the best plans they can.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: But that should

          6  not be used to pretend that in the relatively

          7  unlikely event of a serious radiological release at

          8  Indian Point that it can mitigate the consequences

          9  in many effective ways. The plans presented today

         10  cannot do that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         12  you. I recognize Council Member Vallone.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chair.

         15                 Let me commend you on your work in

         16  this regard, and also, as Chair of the Environmental

         17  Committee, when I testified before your Committee I

         18  believe regarding the disastrous Article 10 siting

         19  process, you were a big help, before my days as a

         20  Council Member when I used to represent, CHOCE, the

         21  Coalition Helping to Organize a Cleaner Environment,

         22  and by the way, that's why I'm still involved in

         23  that thoughtful process about whether or not this

         24  plant should be shut because of the fact that

         25  there's such a disastrous situation up with the
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          2  siting board, and that every plant that seems to be

          3  coming on line comes in my district, and I need

          4  assurances from Albany that if this plant closes,

          5  that the plants that will have to replace it won't

          6  be in my district and that just has not come, and

          7  you have been helpful with that, I would like to

          8  say, but when I say Albany, I think I know who I'm

          9  speaking about. Not you.

         10                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: May I respond,

         11  Councilman?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Sure.

         13                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I share your

         14  concern, the community and environmental justice

         15  values that we share be part of any continued siting

         16  process, and we'll have and we'll continue to do

         17  that.

         18                 I no longer chair the Committee on

         19  the Environment, I chair the Committee on

         20  Corporations, Committees and Authorities, which have

         21  jurisdiction over the PSC, the MTA, the Port

         22  Authority and others, and to the extent that we go

         23  forward with this closure part of this debate, we

         24  need to make sure that no community is unduly and

         25  unfairly affected by what may be necessary with
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          2  respect to replacement of the power.

          3                 Let me say to you, however, that I do

          4  not believe that those who argue that -- you will

          5  see a community, an environmental justice card

          6  played today, in I believe rather bold terms, that

          7  if you do this for upper Westchester, that certain

          8  Committees in New York will necessarily be unduly

          9  impacted, that's not true. And I think that debate

         10  needs to go forward in a reasoned way, but there are

         11  plenty of ways to make sure the closure of Indian

         12  Point does not affect adversely communities in New

         13  York City. And I pledge to you support in our joint

         14  efforts to see that outcome take place.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Well, I thank

         16  you for that. But as you probably know, my community

         17  is unduly burdened right now as it provides close to

         18  60 percent of the power over the entire city, my

         19  small neighborhood, and that's why I'm concerned.

         20                 We do, however, agree that,

         21  obviously, a plan, if this place exists, needs to be

         22  in effect that adequately provides for the safety of

         23  our citizens, especially New York City citizens,

         24  because that's why we're here. That's who we

         25  represent, and that's why I'm concerned when you
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          2  said that the plan only covers a ten-mile radius,

          3  not a 50-mile radius, as New York City sits within a

          4  25-mile radius, if I'm correct about that. So,

          5  enlighten me as to, you made reference as to other

          6  areas that involve a 50-mile radius, how many areas

          7  --

          8                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: In other nuclear

          9  facilities around the nation, the NRC has required

         10  more stringent emergency response and evacuation

         11  planning than they have applied to the Indian Point

         12  Facility.

         13                 I think they do that because they

         14  know how ever absurd the plan is for ten miles and

         15  300,000 people, the notion that you can deal

         16  effectively with the perhaps 20 million people

         17  within the 50-mile zone, becomes exponentially

         18  nonsense, and one of the things we've done in the

         19  last month is Congressman Paine of New Jersey is now

         20  on the petition, the Attorney General of

         21  Connecticut, Richard Blumenthal, will be an active

         22  and outspoken critic of evacuation planning.

         23                 What I say to the City Council

         24  members is this: You are left, in the event of a

         25  radiological release, with almost no emergency
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          2  planning protection, because they don't believe the

          3  plume will get here. I didn't believe there would be

          4  two planes knocking down the World Trade Center a

          5  year and a half ago.

          6                 I'll also tell you very interestingly

          7  that both my report and the Witt report point out

          8  that your water supply system is about 12 or 13

          9  miles from the plant, and there's no provision made

         10  with respect to this.

         11                 When I spoke to the DEP folks a year

         12  ago when we issued our report about what they would

         13  do in the event of a release, there was almost no

         14  response, because there's almost nothing you can do.

         15                 I would suggest to you that the

         16  economic consequences of a significant radiological

         17  release into the New York City water supply system

         18  in and of itself changes the calculus of risk, so

         19  that it is not in the City's interest to see that

         20  plant continue.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Do you have

         22  any -- again, because other people will come up to

         23  testify and I'd like to have the facts when they sit

         24  there -- figures on how many of these other plants

         25  do involve 50-mile radiuses?
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          2                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I don't have it

          3  with me today, but will be glad to get it to you.

          4                 The fact of the matter is that

          5  everybody, including FEMA and the NRC, concede that

          6  the location of Indian Point is sewer generous.

          7  There is no other plant in the nation that faces the

          8  population density, roadwork configuration problems

          9  that Indian Point does.

         10                 Instead of enhancing emergency

         11  planning, the NRC and FEMA's response was to

         12  decrease it. But we will be glad to provide you with

         13  the status of evacuation planning in other plants

         14  around the nation.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: That's

         16  exactly what I was looking at also.

         17                 It would seem even more important

         18  that they have a 50-mile radius here, but since

         19  there doesn't seem to be an effective way of dealing

         20  with it, they just simply decided not to deal with

         21  it.

         22                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: And we would

         24  appreciate that information. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I'll just
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          2  state for the record that we'll be hearing from

          3  scientific professionals on both sides of the issue

          4  regarding how far one must do planning for those in

          5  the scientific community who believe that the

          6  ten-mile evacuation is more than adequate.

          7                 So, we'll again, as this debate rages

          8  on, we'll hear later on from people on both sides of

          9  that issue, so more to follow on that particular

         10  point.

         11                 Council Member DeBlasio.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman.

         14                 First of all, I'd like to say I have

         15  immense respect for our chair and for his

         16  deliberativeness. This is an extremely thorny issue

         17  any way you slice it, and I appreciate the

         18  Assemblyman, even though he has a very strong view,

         19  which I happen to agree with, is the first to point

         20  out that there are so many other factors that have

         21  to be considered, particularly if one were to think

         22  about eventually closing this plant, and I

         23  appreciate that our chair is looking at those

         24  factors in a very sober manner.

         25                 I have some history here, having been
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          2  involved in the anti-nuclear power improvement for

          3  many years going back to the Clam Shell Alliance in

          4  New England and the CHAD Alliance, for those who go

          5  back that far, and I agree with you, Assemblyman,

          6  that I don't understand how an evacuation plan could

          7  work under any circumstances. I don't want to put

          8  words in your mouth but I think I'm extrapolating

          9  from your comments, I don't see how any evacuation

         10  plan could work, certainly outside a ten-mile

         11  radius, but even within, I'm very dubious.

         12                 But I certainly feel we have to

         13  proceed on the assumption that we are not shining

         14  enough of a light here on the realities of

         15  evacuation.

         16                 And where also I think as this public

         17  debate has proceeded, underestimating reasons for

         18  problems that are not just of the making of the

         19  plant itself in the history of nuclear power,

         20  problems that have occurred, Three Mile Island,

         21  Chernobyl, and so many others, have been accidents

         22  and malfunctions and poor training and other causes

         23  like that, where we really I don't think have fully

         24  taken into account external forces trying to cause a

         25  problem, so I just want to get a little
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          2  clarification from you. I mean, do you agree with

          3  the comment that since a larger evacuation plan is

          4  dubious under any circumstance, we necessarily have

          5  to start sketching out what a closure would mean

          6  because we simply can't guarantee the safety of our

          7  people.

          8                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I believe that

          9  would be prudent at a minimum, that even those who

         10  are not yet persuaded that the plant should be

         11  closed, or to be working cooperatively with us on

         12  what the mechanism would be if indeed we are

         13  persuasive on that point as events unfold.

         14                 The interesting part about this is

         15  that it is the terrorism issue that has focused more

         16  attention here, and we've had I think fairly

         17  irresponsible conclusory comments from Chairman of

         18  the NRC in recent days with respect to this, in

         19  effect arguing that our report and the Witt report

         20  overstate the danger of terrorism.

         21                 What is extraordinary is, whatever

         22  the academic virtue of that position may be, if you

         23  read the evacuation plans, they specifically say,

         24  and I refer you in our report to page 27 where

         25  you'll see the quote, that for evacuation purposes
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          2  the plans are drafted to assume that all releases

          3  will take place within the containment zone, which

          4  provides some significant extra time. The plans

          5  specifically refuse to consider the consequences of

          6  release from the spent fuel pools.

          7                 Terrorists, as awful as they are,

          8  aren't stupid, and the target of opportunity at that

          9  plant is not just the containment dome, it is also

         10  the spent fuel pools. So, as we go forward with this

         11  long-range planning you just mentioned, I would hope

         12  that the other thing we would do would get the

         13  authors of this plan, including the federal

         14  government, to start admitting that the terrorism

         15  threat is so new and significant that we must

         16  rethink it.

         17                 Senator Clinton said to the Chairman

         18  of the NRC in our meeting in Washington two weeks

         19  ago, it matters for evacuation purposes whether you

         20  have operators of that plant at their consoles

         21  trying to subdue an incident, or lying dead at their

         22  consoles because they've been shot by terrorists.

         23                 I think the likelihood of those

         24  outcomes is small, but the notion that we don't plan

         25  for them is an irresponsibility that I don't
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          2  understand, and the notion that a terrorist attack

          3  on Indian Point has no implication for evacuation

          4  planning is completely irrational and it's very

          5  distressing to hear from our national leaders.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: How

          7  satisfied are you when you think about the ground

          8  approaches to the plant, or the proximity to the

          9  water and the air space over the plant, how

         10  satisfied are you a year and a half after 9/11 that

         11  every possible precaution is being taken?

         12                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I think security

         13  there has clearly been approved, and it's silly to

         14  assume that either the plant managers or the federal

         15  government are unconcerned, they are concerned. But

         16  there are substantial gaps in that plant, some of

         17  which have become public recently. Entergy has

         18  recently been cited publicly and privately by the

         19  NRC with notices of violation with respect to

         20  firearms and other working conditions with respect

         21  to the security personnel at Indian Point. Those

         22  notices of violations are being processed now. Some

         23  of them were revealed to us because they're

         24  appropriate for that, some of them have been kept

         25  secret because that's appropriate too. I am not
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          2  satisfied that the security protections available at

          3  Indian Point today are adequate to the problem.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Just one

          5  other quick question. I just want to make sure I do

          6  thank you, and I think so many other people around

          7  the state should thank you for submitting the

          8  document to FEMA and for the leading role you took

          9  in that process.

         10                 My last question is simply, I think

         11  the question of replacing the supply of energy is

         12  obviously a particularly difficult one, but let me

         13  focus more on the impact on those who work there.

         14                 Do you believe that that facility

         15  could be converted into a different energy use, say

         16  for energy use thus preserving at least some of the

         17  supply and preserving the jobs; do you think that's

         18  possible?

         19                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Yes. It is

         20  already underway. Entergy is in the regulatory

         21  process for adding additional gas-fired capacity.

         22  The whole site is perfect for that, as well. That is

         23  the position of the Westchester County Board of

         24  Legislators. So that that needs to be part of this

         25  process, as does working, the effect of this on the
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          2  working people who run the plant.

          3                 I've had the privilege in the last

          4  year to have that union in my office last year on

          5  two or three separate occasions, one of which was to

          6  ensure that when Entergy bought the plant that the

          7  jobs were preserved. I worked very hard to do that

          8  and receive their thanks.

          9                 Several months ago Mr. Williams came

         10  to my office to help the union with some other

         11  related matters, so when they need a champion

         12  they've been able to come to me and I've been able

         13  to work with them. I plan to continue to do that.

         14                 We have seen impact in my district of

         15  the closure of the General Motors Plant. In

         16  Lackawana, of the closure of the steel plant there,

         17  in every case. The economic health and security of

         18  the plant workers has been an enormous part of our

         19  concerns. It will be and should be with respect to

         20  the closure of Indian Point.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         22                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. And

         24  we will be hearing from Mr. Williams from Local 1-2,

         25  who has provided us great access and great
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          2  cooperation. I thank him for that, and am thankful

          3  for people like yourself, Mr. Brodsky, who have

          4  gotten involved, who have -- I mean, we're trying to

          5  have a process here, and it's difficult for us as a

          6  City government sometimes to, you know, engage

          7  levels of government above us to try to get their

          8  cooperation. We reached out to the federal

          9  government to be here, they're not here.

         10                 I have a letter from, you know, March

         11  13th, which I'm still holding here, still waiting

         12  for a response from Governor Ridge, nothing. And

         13  this is an oversight hearing, in addition to a

         14  hearing on the resolution we have on the table, this

         15  is a general oversight hearing on the affects of the

         16  radiological release from the facility.

         17                 One of our reservoirs is only five

         18  miles from the plant and the administration has

         19  chose not to send a representative from DEP or from

         20  their Office of Emergency Management. So, we're

         21  trying to do the best we can with people who will

         22  come forward and give cooperation. We've had

         23  cooperation from you, we've had cooperating from

         24  Entergy, we've had cooperation from Local 1-2 and

         25  many other good people in the advocate community who
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          2  have come forward. So, this is a long way of saying

          3  thank you for your efforts. We look forward to

          4  working with you cooperatively.

          5                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chairman. Thank you, members of the Committee.

          7  Anyone who wants to sign on for the 350 petition in

          8  addition to the one you have, please let us know.

          9  We'd be glad to have you on. Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         11                 Oh, I'd also like to recognize

         12  Council Member Serrano from the Bronx, who has

         13  joined us, a valued member of this Committee.

         14                 And Margarita Lopez, she was here

         15  earlier, she will be returning. She has another

         16  Committee meeting that is meeting at the same time.

         17                 Our next witness or witnesses are

         18  representatives from the Entergy Corporation.

         19  Michael Slobodien and two other individuals I

         20  believe will be. Okay, fine.

         21                 Thank you. Thank you very much, Mr.

         22  Slobodien, and Mr. Walker, is that right? Thank you.

         23  Mr. Specter, thank you. I have not had the

         24  opportunity to meet you before, but I have had

         25  conversations with Mr. Slobodien, and I thank you
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          2  for the access that our staff has been able to have

          3  to you, and your colleagues, and Counsel to the

          4  Committee.

          5                 Also, let me just take this

          6  opportunity to gush a little bit about the good work

          7  of the staff, in getting ready for this hearing.

          8  Counsel to the Committee, Donna DeCostanzo; Policy

          9  Analyst, Richard Colon, and our press person Jake

         10  Lynn, this is his last day with the City Council.

         11  He's been a great asset to our staff, he's moving on

         12  to other horizons today, we wish him well. So I

         13  thank the staff for their help, and with that said,

         14  I'll have Counsel to Committee give you the oath,

         15  and then you proceed with your good testimony.

         16                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         17  right hand.

         18                 In the testimony that you are about

         19  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

         20  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         21                 MR. SLOBODIEN: I do.

         22                 MR. SPECTER: I do.

         23                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         25  much. You can state your name for the record, and
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          2  proceed with your testimony.

          3                 Now, let's make sure I got

          4  everything. I got Mr. Slobodien, right?

          5                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This is your

          7  statement. And Terrorist Aircraft Strikes, is that

          8  yours as well? Okay. And these are the two.

          9                 MR. SLOBODIEN: No, there's another

         10  one.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: One other one.

         12                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Contamination of

         13  Nearby Water Supply.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Was that

         15  distributed? Was that distributed? I mean, just as

         16  long as we know that we're going to get one, I'm not

         17  going to peruse it now, but we certainly would like

         18  that as well. We want to make sure we get all the

         19  information that you brought before us.

         20                 Mr. Slobodien.

         21                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chairman.

         23                 Thank you, members of the Council,

         24  for the opportunity to meet with you this morning.

         25                 I am Michael Slobodien.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I'm sorry. I

          3  pronounced your name wrong. Sorry about that.

          4                 MR. SLOBODIEN: It's exactly a correct

          5  pronunciation, there are two. I just used the one

          6  that I learned when I was a kid.

          7                 The Director of -- I am Michael

          8  Slobodien, the Director of Emergency Programs for

          9  Entergy Nuclear Northeast. I am a board-certified

         10  health physicist with 33 years of professional

         11  experience in radiation safety, industrial hygiene,

         12  environmental programs, and emergency planning.

         13                 I hold a Bachelor's of Science degree

         14  in Chemistry from Carnegie-Mellon University and an

         15  Master of Science degree in Radiation health from

         16  the Graduate School of Public Health of the

         17  University of Pittsburgh.

         18                 I have responsibility for the overall

         19  management of our emergency response activities for

         20  the Indian point, James A. Fitzpatrick, Pilgrim and

         21  Vermont Yankee Nuclear Generating Stations.

         22                 My offices are in White Plains, New

         23  York. I report to Michael Kansler, who is the

         24  President of Entergy Nuclear Northeast.

         25                 Today I'd like to make several key
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          2  points regarding Indian Point Energy Center, and the

          3  implications it has for health and safety for the

          4  citizens of New York City.

          5                 Let me say first and foremost,

          6  Entergy is committed to the safe operation of all of

          7  its nuclear power plants nationwide. We take our

          8  commitment to safety with the utmost seriousness.

          9  That commitment extends to being capable of

         10  responding to accidents without regard to cause.

         11                 To that end, we plan, prepare, train

         12  and exercise, along with the state and counties

         13  around Indian Point.

         14                 A most significant point is that

         15  neither routine operations nor serious accidents,

         16  however unlikely, at the Indian Point Energy Center,

         17  would result in short-term or long-term health

         18  effects to the citizens of New York City. This fact

         19  is supported by the extensive worldwide scientific

         20  experience in studying the affects of radiation.

         21                 The scientific body of evidence dates

         22  back to the earliest use ionizing radiation in 1895,

         23  when x-rays were discovered by Wilhelm Roentgen.

         24                 The actual experiences in Belarus and

         25  the Ukraine in the former Soviet Union, following
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          2  the 1986 accident at Chernobyl, and the experiences

          3  following the Three Mile Island accident in

          4  Pennsylvania in 1979 provide us with additional

          5  empirical information on health effects and on

          6  nuclear power accident consequences.

          7                 In the case of Chernobyl, which is

          8  often cited relative to nuclear power plant

          9  accidents, the truth of our public health

         10  measurements in the 16 years following that accident

         11  have shown that among the public living near the

         12  plant, there were 1,831 cases of child thyroid

         13  cancer. The truth that the World Health Organization

         14  has reported, that there have been no discernible

         15  incidents of any other radiation-related health

         16  effects compared to normal expectation.

         17                 The childhood cancers that occurred

         18  as a result of the consumption of contaminated food

         19  and water, a circumstance that would not occur in

         20  the United States, because of the excellent food

         21  distribution system here, and the ability to detect

         22  and interdict radioactively contaminated foodstuffs.

         23  The truth is, most importantly, such widespread

         24  contamination would not take place in the first

         25  place, because the United States Nuclear Power Plant
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          2  designs are far more capable of preventing

          3  radioactive releases than the Chernobyl design.

          4                 The truth is that analyses related to

          5  accidents and their consequences for the Indian

          6  Point plants do take into consideration a wide

          7  spectrum of causes, including human error,

          8  mechanical failure, natural disaster and terrorism.

          9                 The truth is that none of the factors

         10  noted above, including a terrorist attack, would

         11  lead to a release of radioactivity different from

         12  what has already been analyzed.

         13                 The truth is that the plans are

         14  designed to work regardless of what set of

         15  circumstances, including a terrorist attack, caused

         16  the release of radioactivity to occur.

         17                 The truth is that if there were to be

         18  a release of radioactivity to the environment,

         19  regardless of cause, the radioactivity would move

         20  into the environment in a plume whose size and shape

         21  would be determined by prevailing weather.

         22                 The recent oil barge explosion and

         23  fire off Staten Island on February 22nd provided an

         24  example of such a plume, and you may recall that the

         25  oil barge plume spread out and dissipated rapidly
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          2  with distance, and only a very small area was

          3  actually within the affect of the plume.

          4                 This would also be true of a

          5  radioactive plume. They tend to be narrow, their

          6  concentration decreases rapidly with downwind

          7  distance, and the affects diminish proportionately

          8  to the increase in downwind distance.

          9                 Our knowledge of plumes, coupled with

         10  our extensive knowledge of radiation affects,

         11  enables experts to conclude that New York City

         12  residents are not at risk from a serious accident at

         13  the Indian Point Energy Center, however unlikely.

         14                 Finally, because I know of your very

         15  great interest in the report issued by Mr. Witt, the

         16  draft report, I would like to take a few moments to

         17  speak about the draft report on emergency

         18  preparedness at Indian Point and Millstone.

         19                 We noted in our comments to Mr. Witt

         20  that the report contained some useful insights and

         21  recommendations, many, in fact most of which we had

         22  already underway even prior to the start of Mr.

         23  Witt's study.

         24                 The truth is that the Witt draft

         25  report reportedly provided no evidence of any kind
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          2  for its conclusion that a terrorist initiated event

          3  could lead to some heretofore unknown accident

          4  scenario that would be more severe and rapidly

          5  occurring than anything for which we are currently

          6  prepared.

          7                 The truth is that there is no

          8  evidence to support such conclusion. All available

          9  evidence in particular recent reports by EPRI, is

         10  quite to the contrary.

         11                 Consequently, we also believe that

         12  the conclusion in the Witt report, draft report,

         13  that the possibility of a unique terrorist-initiated

         14  event, coupled with some emergency planning areas

         15  needing improvement, mean that the public health and

         16  safety cannot be protected, is entirely wrong.

         17                 The truth is, there is nothing in the

         18  draft report by James Lee Witt that in any way

         19  indicates that New York City is at risk, or would

         20  have to take protective action such as evacuation,

         21  in response to an accident at Indian Point.

         22                 We, Entergy, wanted to ensure that

         23  our information I have just described to you is

         24  representative of the best science available.

         25                 So we engaged an expert independent
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          2  panel, including some of the foremost experts on

          3  nuclear reactor safety, meteorology, risk

          4  assessment, environmental effects, reactor design,

          5  counter terrorism, behavioral psychology, emergency

          6  planning, and health physics, radiation safety, to

          7  review the draft report and make their own comments

          8  to Mr. Witt. This they did, and I believe some of

          9  those members of that expert panel will provide

         10  testimony on their deliberations and independent

         11  efforts today.

         12                 Now, I know also, sir, and members of

         13  the Council, that you have expressed great concern

         14  about the water supply at Indian Point, you've also

         15  talked about the fuel pool, and Mr. Specter is here

         16  to address those specific points. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we'll have

         18  Mr. Specter give his statement, and then we'll ask

         19  questions of both witnesses.

         20                 MR. SPECTER: I want to thank the

         21  Council for having me here this morning.

         22                 Also, I'm Hershel Specter, President

         23  of RBR Consultants.

         24                 I know we live in anxious times, and

         25  people are carrying quite a bit of stress associated
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          2  with terrorism, which makes my job this morning

          3  rather enjoyable, because I believe I'm the bearer

          4  or good news.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good. I'm glad

          6  you're having fun.

          7                 MR. SPECTER: Yes, I'm having fun.

          8                 Let's talk about the whole issue of

          9  the contamination of the New York Water Supply. This

         10  is an issue that is kind of old, I must say. Over 20

         11  years ago, in the wake of the Three Mile Island

         12  Accident, we had a set of circumstances not unlike

         13  what you see here. People were fearful, some people

         14  said outrageous things, and eventually there was an

         15  adjudicatory hearing. I participated in it, and so

         16  did Mr. Brodsky, for that matter, and the very issue

         17  that is of central concern to a number of people,

         18  the water supply, was in fact discussed in great

         19  detail in that hearing.

         20                 What I've provided to the Committee

         21  as part of my testimony, I have attached the

         22  testimony of a Dr. Richard Codell, he's the senior

         23  hydraulic engineer at the US Nuclear Regulatory

         24  Commission. In fact, I believe he is still there,

         25  and if you want to get into further detail, we may

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  want to get him here to help you along, but let me

          3  cut to the quick and get what he concluded.

          4                 On page 38 of Dr. Codell's testimony,

          5  he states, "There is little doubt" --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Are you reading

          7  from your testimony?

          8                 MR. SPECTER: This is in my testimony.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         10                 MR. SPECTER: There's also a quote

         11  from his testimony.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         13                 MR. SPECTER: Dr. Codell said under

         14  oath, "There is little doubt that sufficient

         15  quantities of potable water could be supplied at

         16  safe concentrations."

         17                 And there's an enormous supporting

         18  analysis, it's actually brilliant, that he put

         19  forward. He took into account a huge release of

         20  radioactive material, some of which was postulated

         21  to become airborne in the plume, as Mike points out,

         22  some which might go over Croton, some might have

         23  which go further away to other reservoirs, and at

         24  the bottom of that he calculated the concentrations

         25  of strontium-90, which is the important isotope for
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          2  this issue, and again came to this conclusion that

          3  there's little doubt sufficient quantities of

          4  potable water could be supplied at safe

          5  concentrations.

          6                 In addition to this, he pointed out

          7  --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: He was talking

          9  about a different water system, of course?

         10                 MR. SPECTER: Yes. This is a water

         11  system we all drink from.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, but he was

         13  talking about, the water system he was talking about

         14  is in response to Three Mile Island, is it not?

         15                 MR. SPECTER: No, no.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, okay. Pardon

         17  me.

         18                 MR. SPECTER: This was the Indian

         19  Point hearing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         21                 MR. SPECTER: This is Indian Point

         22  specific and New York State water supply specific.

         23  So, this is exactly what you want to hear about.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         25                 MR. SPECTER: And as I say, his
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          2  conclusion was you're going to be in safe

          3  concentration.

          4                 Furthermore, he pointed out that if

          5  one wanted to, one could bypass the Croton

          6  Reservoir, which at that time supplied about nine

          7  percent of the water, but actually accumulated 53

          8  percent of the radio isotopes, Strontium-90, and he

          9  showed how to do that. That was 20 some odd years

         10  ago.

         11                 In the passing time, when Dr. Codell

         12  presented his testimony, we have learned a great

         13  deal about releases of radioactive material,

         14  hundreds of millions of dollars has been spent on

         15  research and so forth around the world on this

         16  thing. What I have done to further this was to go

         17  into a Indian Point specific study, called the

         18  Individual Plant Examination, and determine what a

         19  margin source term would be, what a margin amount of

         20  Strontium-90 would be. It's a factor of

         21  approximately five, smaller than the numbers that

         22  Dr. Codell used.

         23                 So, what we learned over the most

         24  recent 20 years since Codell's testimony is that

         25  while that wasn't even a threat then, even less than
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          2  that now.

          3                 When Codell says you're going to be

          4  at safe concentrations, he means to be below the

          5  maximum permissible concentration. In layman's

          6  terms, as I understand it, that means you can drink

          7  the water without restriction.

          8                 I could just stop there. It doesn't

          9  seem to be the problem that we all worry about. It

         10  does seem that this was resolved 20 years ago. The

         11  testimony on it is extensive.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. And I

         13  know you've given us a whole -- where is it? Right

         14  here. This says the details of your testimony.

         15                 MR. SPECTER: I'm learning from Mike

         16  that there may have been some delay in delivering

         17  this particular document, but you will get it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's the

         19  back-up that has more information.

         20                 MR. SPECTER: It has all the stuff,

         21  yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This is like the

         23  commentary part, and that's the scientific back-up

         24  part.

         25                 MR. SPECTER: That's correct, sir.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Terrific. Okay,

          3  thank you. Thank you.

          4                 MR. SPECTER: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Because we

          6  certainly would like to have the ability to peruse

          7  this.

          8                 MR. SPECTER: Yes, I think this one

          9  turns out to be a non-issue, fortunately, and that's

         10  why it's easy for me, it's a pleasure to bring some

         11  good news at last, and if there are no further

         12  questions on that, I'd like to turn to the Princeton

         13  study.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No. Oh, one

         15  other?

         16                 MR. SPECTER: Whatever you wish.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You have a

         18  Princeton study as well?

         19                 MR. SPECTER: Yes. I want to discuss

         20  the Princeton study.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You mean the

         22  Princeton study which is in the offering, right?

         23  It's not been released yet? Or it's going to be

         24  coming out?

         25                 MR. SPECTER: As you point out in your
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          2  own distributions --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          4                 MR. SPECTER: It's due to be released

          5  in a few months.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Okay, if

          7  you could just --

          8                 MR. SPECTER: That study concentrated

          9  on --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Give us the

         11  seminal points that you wish to make on that study.

         12                 MR. SPECTER: I read the draft,

         13  probably the same one you did, from Princeton, and I

         14  found it to be very helpful. Very helpful. And what

         15  I was able to do was to read even into the multiple

         16  footnotes and discovered that no plane, even a very

         17  large one, as large as we have, going at enormous

         18  speed, 590 miles per hour, is capable of penetrating

         19  the spent fuel pools at Indian Point. It can't get

         20  through the reinforced concrete and steel using the

         21  Princeton numbers.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think you may

         23  be a little bit confused, because the spent fuel

         24  pools are not under the main reactor dome. The spent

         25  fuels are --
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          2                 MR. SPECTER: This is outside. I'm

          3  assuming the plane hits them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, wait a

          5  minute. I've been to the plant. I've been inside the

          6  structure that shields the spent fuel pools.

          7                 MR. SPECTER: I didn't take any credit

          8  for it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I've been in

         10  that structure.

         11                 MR. SPECTER: Right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That structure

         13  is not a robust structure.

         14                 MR. SPECTER: The thing that protects

         15  the fuel is the six and the quarter foot --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, yes, yes,

         17  but that's like below grade. I'm talking about the

         18  actual roof of the structure itself. This is what I

         19  can't understand. Is it your testimony that a large

         20  jet -- again, let me just say, I think the issue of

         21  large planes crashing into something, I think the

         22  only potential target for a large plane going at

         23  that amount of speed would be for the main reactor

         24  dome, which would provide not as big a target as the

         25  World Trade Center, but if you're a large plane
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          2  going at that speed, the target is not going to be

          3  the spent fuel pools, because the spent pools is

          4  sort of like tucked against the side of the thing,

          5  you can never get that kind of aircraft at that

          6  speed to maneuver perhaps to make such a direct hit.

          7  And, so, I think any discussion of a large aircraft

          8  would be of the main reactor dome --

          9                 MR. SPECTER: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm not done

         11  yet.

         12                 MR. SPECTER: We're totally in

         13  agreement.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Hang on. I'm not

         15  done yet.

         16                 But my issue was with the smaller

         17  structures that house the spent fuel pools which are

         18  right next to the main reactor domes, those are

         19  much, much less robust than the main reactor, and by

         20  my non-scientific, and I'm not an engineer, I'm a

         21  little bit of a scientist, but I'm not an engineer,

         22  has a metal roof or whatever it is, it seemed that a

         23  light plane at much smaller speed, you know, could

         24  potentially penetrate a spent fuel pool structure if

         25  one was able, as a pilot, to be skilled enough to
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          2  sort of crash right into it. And it was my

          3  perception that those structures, next to the main

          4  containment domes that houses spent fuel pools, the

          5  roof, not the walls of the pool itself, but the roof

          6  is really designed to sort of withstand like weather

          7  incidents and hurricanes and that kind of thing,

          8  really built more for the weather than it is for --

          9  and, so, this is why I'm confused when you say, you

         10  know, a large plane couldn't, because even the NRC

         11  report -- oh, that's different, that's the main

         12  reactor dome.

         13                 Oh, sure, and the NRC report did

         14  indicate that there was the potential that one or

         15  two aircrafts would be enough to penetrate a five

         16  foot reinforced concrete wall. But to me, my way of

         17  thinking, although that is one thing for us to think

         18  about, but the main reactor domes are very robust

         19  and very protected, and if I was going to be up to

         20  no good, I think my potential target would be the

         21  spent fuel pools, which are much less robust.

         22  Notwithstanding the fact that the sides of the pools

         23  are very robust, but, you know, the roof is

         24  insignificant, and certainly would not withstand any

         25  kind of aircraft. So, please continue.
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          2                 MR. SPECTER: Well, I think your

          3  thoughts about how robust the spent fuel pool itself

          4  is, the concrete six and a quarter foot six

          5  structure with the steel liner is impossible to

          6  penetrate by even large airplanes, if that's the

          7  conclusion about that part of the structure, we're

          8  in total agreement, and that was the heart of the

          9  Princeton study. They didn't look at the

         10  overstructure.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon?

         12                 MR. SPECTER: The Princeton study

         13  didn't look at the other lighter structures --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: They should

         15  have.

         16                 MR. SPECTER: -- Over it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: They should

         18  have.

         19                 MR. SPECTER: With regard to your

         20  intuitive feeling about the structure that contains

         21  the fuel, you're absolutely right, airplanes are not

         22  going to get through that, even the biggest.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's really not

         24  even an issue, because those walls are essentially

         25  below grade.
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          2                 MR. SPECTER: That's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I mean, they

          4  would have to go through ground, but really

          5  airplanes do things from the air, they don't do

          6  things from underground.

          7                 MR. SPECTER: Absolutely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, you've got a

          9  structure with a very minimal roof that was designed

         10  by my reckoning to sort of prevent problems from

         11  weather events.

         12                 And we're going to be hearing from

         13  authors of the study later on. Next, as a matter of

         14  fact.

         15                 MR. SPECTER: Right. I just point out

         16  that your thoughts which relate to building the two

         17  structures above the water level is not, as I

         18  recall, part of the Princeton study. The Princeton

         19  study talked about the massive structure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         21                 MR. SPECTER: I agree with you. You

         22  cannot penetrate the massive structure, and unless

         23  you do that and cause leakage, the fuel is

         24  protected.

         25                 So, if I talk about a smaller plane,
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          2  therefore more maneuverable, and it should hit one

          3  of the select buildings and it collapses, you have

          4  to ask yourself, would such a collapse somehow cause

          5  leakage in the pool which exposes the fuel.

          6                 Now, in general, if you can't do it

          7  with a large airplane, how in the world are you

          8  going to do it with a plane that weighs less, has

          9  the lower velocity and less fuel? Even if you come

         10  in this way?

         11                 So, intuitively, even though neither

         12  the Princeton study or I looked at this, people have

         13  examined even dropping the spent fuel gas down in

         14  the pool.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         16                 MR. SPECTER: It's possible. But not

         17  on a light plane. It doesn't have the stuff.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's good.

         19  That's good. I just want to pursue some questions.

         20                 MR. SPECTER: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I would also ask

         22  people if they could put their cell phones on

         23  vibrate. Let me check to make sure that mine is in

         24  that position, lest I be really embarrassed, right?

         25  That would be bad.
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          2                 Okay, thank you. Thank you both for

          3  your testimony. I just want to make a few quick

          4  points. We have a lot of people to hear from today

          5  but you are very, very important witnesses and I

          6  want to give you the opportunity to respond to some

          7  questions.

          8                 I call you Mike, okay, to avoid the

          9  whole last name thing. We've had discussions, and I

         10  just want to kind of get this on the record, one of

         11  the studies, the study which is always cited as a

         12  cause for real concern is the so-called, you know,

         13  CRAC-2 report that was done by Sandia National Lab.

         14  The CRAC-2 report that was done on Indian Point 2

         15  and Indian Point 3 indicating supposedly that

         16  depending upon which of the reactors was

         17  successfully compromised or whatever, numbers like

         18  46,000 peak fatalities, 141,000 peak injuries,

         19  13,000 peak deaths from cancer, that's for IP 2. For

         20  IP 3 it was some other number, 167 peak early

         21  injuries, 50,000 peak early fatalities, 14,000 peak

         22  deaths from cancer, and it was -- I don't want to

         23  put words in your mouth, but when we've had

         24  discussions about this you've had indicated that

         25  these were perhaps not the findings of the reports,
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          2  or these were findings that were extrapolated in

          3  some kind of geometric fashion that was not

          4  consistent with reality, and what I'm really asking

          5  you to do, if you would, is to indicate to me why

          6  numbers like this, and why what's been put out there

          7  on this report should not be of, you know, great

          8  concern to us?

          9                 MR. SLOBODIEN: There are two reports

         10  --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

         12  speak right into the mic.

         13                 MR. SLOBODIEN: I'm sorry.

         14                 There are two reports that are often

         15  called this CRAC-2, C-R-A-C-2 report. One of them,

         16  the one to which you refer, was written by the

         17  Sandia National Laboratory, it was published in

         18  September 1982. However, the numbers that you're

         19  citing are from the other report which was not

         20  published by Sandia National Laboratory, it was

         21  published in November 1982 by a Congressional

         22  committee.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's what I

         24  want to hear about. Tell me about the story.

         25                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Yes. So the Sandia

                                                            68

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  report, the authoritative scientific report,

          3  demonstrated that under extremely severe, even

          4  unrealistic conditions, there could be some acute

          5  health effects from an accident at Indian Point,

          6  using what were called the old source terms or the

          7  older source term data, and when we used the term

          8  source term, we mean the amount of radioactivity

          9  that might be put into the environment.

         10                 It went on to say in that same report

         11  that if they had used, which they did not --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Who is they?

         13                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Sandia National

         14  Laboratory.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         16                 MR. SLOBODIEN: If the scientists at

         17  Sandia National Laboratory had used the more modern

         18  source term data which was becoming available at

         19  that time, they would conclude that there would

         20  probably be no acute health effects from a serious

         21  accident at a plant such as Indian Point.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But what did the

         23  report actually say? Because there was a report

         24  released, it was 1982, it said something, what did

         25  it say?

                                                            69

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 MR. SLOBODIEN: That report has a

          3  table in it that talks about a number of fatalities

          4  on the order of 600, and then goes on to say that if

          5  more modern source term data were used, those would

          6  be expected to be more on the order of zero.

          7                 Now, the other report that you cited

          8  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But was that

         10  actually put in a report?

         11                 MR. SLOBODIEN: It's stated in the

         12  report, you have to extrapolate from the statement

         13  about source terms, but it's -- for someone who is

         14  familiar with the science, while not stated

         15  explicitly, that's clearly what the scientists are

         16  saying.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, it's your

         18  testimony that the Sandia report, what it actually

         19  said was if you look at the tables that are included

         20  in that report, it would be on the order of 600

         21  deaths, that's using the old way of looking at the

         22  world, and you included -- and in that report was

         23  something that indicated that if we use the new

         24  numbers, the actual fatalities would be zero.

         25                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Close to zero, that's
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          2  correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Close to zero.

          4                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Now the other report,

          5  which was done by the Congressional Subcommittee,

          6  which was at the time denounced by Sandia National

          7  Laboratories --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What's that now?

          9                 MR. SLOBODIEN: The other report to

         10  which you referred. The one that was talking about

         11  40,000 and 100,000.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         13                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Which was denounced by

         14  Sandia National Laboratory at the time --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         16                 MR. SLOBODIEN: -- Used analyses and

         17  assumptions that were beyond those considered even

         18  unreasonably unrealistic by the Sandia scientists --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Who released

         20  that report?

         21                 MR. SLOBODIEN: That report was

         22  released by a congressional subcommittee, US House

         23  Subcommittee in November 1982.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, how did the

         25  two reports get -- how did it come to be like that
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          2  they're forever linked, that CRAC-2 140,000 deaths

          3  -- and does that take into account spent fuel pools

          4  as well, or is that just like the main reactor?

          5                 MR. SLOBODIEN: It did not take into

          6  account spent fuel pools.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And also the

          8  population of the area, just for the record, is much

          9  more now in 2003 than it was in 1982?

         10                 MR. SLOBODIEN: True.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Fine.

         12                 MR. SLOBODIEN: I think, however, the

         13  population data would not have a significant impact

         14  on that calculation. However, you asked why these

         15  two seem to be inextricably linked, and I think

         16  that, as Mr. Witt himself said in his draft report,

         17  some advocacy groups are using this second study,

         18  the one that was put out by the congressional

         19  subcommittee, inappropriately as a scare tactic, and

         20  he becried that in the report, and I believe that he

         21  gives a good explanation for that dichotomy between

         22  the two reports.

         23                 Mr. Specter has a point I think that

         24  he would like to make on that same point.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.
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          2                 MR. SPECTER: The Sandia report, at

          3  the time of its issue, actually this report with

          4  these enormous numbers, was wrongly criticized by

          5  the President's science advisor, Mr. Keysworth.

          6  These numbers were denied by the authors of the

          7  report themselves, but more importantly, I've looked

          8  over these numbers and I've analyzed them anew, in

          9  fact I saw them popping up in Mr. Brodsky's interim

         10  report, and I have generated a critique of Mr.

         11  Brodsky's interim report which will be supplied to

         12  the Committee, and in that rebuttal is a discussion

         13  of these --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do we have that

         15  report? Do we have that?

         16                 MR. SPECTER: It's in the testimony.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, fine. We

         18  have it now, okay.

         19                 MR. SPECTER: Yes, you have it now.

         20  But among the ridiculous things that were necessary

         21  to get these incredible numbers was a radioactive

         22  cloud which magically goes from the plant, finds

         23  itself over a populated area, rains down on it and

         24  then the people for 24 hours did not take any

         25  protective actions, which is ludicrous.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And this is all

          3  included in your document. Okay, we'll certainly

          4  take a look at that. I just have to kind of, you

          5  know, march things forward here, because we've got a

          6  lot of good people to hear from.

          7                 MR. SPECTER: The numbers are fiction.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So many pieces

          9  of testimony in front of me. Where is Michael's

         10  testimony?

         11                 MR. SLOBODIEN: It's the short one

         12  like the other.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         14                 Michael, you make a statement in here

         15  that a severe accident at Indian Point would not

         16  result in the long or short-term health effects to

         17  the citizens of New York City. Pretty strong

         18  statement.

         19                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Tell me why this

         21  is the case. Quickly.

         22                 MR. SLOBODIEN: The answer simply is

         23  that there is not enough radioactivity present to

         24  provide enough concentration at the downwind

         25  distances that New York City is from Indian Point.
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          2  The concentrations would be sufficiently dissipated

          3  so that at the point of New York City health effects

          4  would not be evident.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, it's your

          6  testimony that in common parlance that the plume, if

          7  it were to get here, would not have any health

          8  effects?

          9                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Yes, sir. And let me

         10  give you a very brief example which may be more

         11  familiar to many people, and my friend next to me

         12  has actually educated me on this; and that is,

         13  consider standing behind the tailpipe of a bus, and

         14  if you put your nose right up to that tailpipe, the

         15  consequences are obvious.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         17                 MR. SLOBODIEN: If you step back a few

         18  feet you might be ill but you will not die, and if

         19  you step back even a few more feet, you probably

         20  will have no effect whatsoever.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Now, this is

         22  your contention, your statement that a plume would

         23  not have any health effects in New York City, this

         24  is supported by science that you can provide to us?

         25                 MR. SLOBODIEN: The short-term health
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          2  effects, there would be no short-term health

          3  effects, and long-term health effects would be

          4  indistinguishable from those that already occur due

          5  to natural processes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Any science, if

          7  you could get us on that would be greatly

          8  appreciated.

          9                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Actually, there's a

         10  real life example to that, the Chernobyl accident is

         11  a perfect empirical example of that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Whatever you

         13  have we would be grateful for the opportunity.

         14                 Also, Mr. Brodsky in his statement

         15  indicated that for other plants around the country,

         16  they do evacuation plans for more than ten miles,

         17  and in our case we're being limited to ten miles, in

         18  other cases they feel the need to go out 50 miles or

         19  something like that. I know you've had a background

         20  in this for many years; is that so?

         21                 MR. SLOBODIEN: I am not aware that

         22  that is the case in any plant in the United States.

         23  There is an emergency planning zone of ten miles,

         24  which is established by the Nuclear Regulatory

         25  Commission in 10CFR50.47, there is what is called an
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          2  ingestion pathway zone whose diameter is

          3  approximately 50 miles. Evacuations are considered

          4  only within that first zone, which is ten miles for

          5  every plant in the United States.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We see

          7  descriptions of peak fatality zones, 17.5 miles peak

          8  injury zone, 50 miles, what's your knowledge of

          9  these categorizations, and what basis do they have

         10  in fact -- where did those numbers come from, as far

         11  as you understand?

         12                 MR. SLOBODIEN: I believe those come

         13  from interpretations of the second Sandia report to

         14  which we were speaking earlier, in the Nuclear

         15  Regulatory Commission, regulations in the guidance

         16  of the EPA, the guidance of FEMA and others, there

         17  is no mention whatsoever an official parlance of any

         18  of those terms.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, those terms,

         20  as far as the governance concern, don't exist? There

         21  is no 17.5 mile peak injury zone, no 50 mile peak

         22  fatality zone, peak injury zone?

         23                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Yes, sir, you are

         24  correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: They don't
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          2  exist. Okay. See, you thought this job was easy,

          3  right?

          4                 Meanwhile we had back, right after

          5  September 11th we had the Secretary of Defense and

          6  National Security Advisor saying that, you know,

          7  saying that plants were going to be potential

          8  targets.

          9                 We asked Governor Ridge and he said

         10  his answer of 12 months. But thank you for that. I

         11  recognize Council Member Vallone. I may come back on

         12  a second round for you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chair. Thank you both for your testimony.

         15  However, I do have to point out that Assemblyman

         16  Brodsky doesn't usually do magic and I think his

         17  concerns are well thought out and we can't dismiss

         18  him that lightly, although I haven't taken a

         19  position yet on that.

         20                 Be that as it may, how many other

         21  plants in the northeast does your company operate?

         22                 MR. SLOBODIEN: We have five plants in

         23  the northeast.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Where are

         25  they located approximately?
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          2                 MR. SLOBODIEN: The Indian Point units

          3  2 and 3 are, as you know, located in Buchanan, the

          4  James A. Fitzpatrick Plant is located in Oswego, New

          5  York. The Vermont Yankee Plant is located near

          6  Bridle Borough, Vermont, and the Pilgrim Nuclear

          7  Power Station is located near Plymouth,

          8  Massachusetts.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Any of those

         10  plants ever been evacuated for any reason?

         11                 MR. SLOBODIEN: No, sir.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Do they have

         13  evacuation plans which have been certified by FEMA?

         14                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Yes, they do.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Now, do those

         16  plans encompass a ten-mile radius or a 15-mile

         17  radius?

         18                 MR. SLOBODIEN: They all encompass a

         19  ten-mile radius.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: None have a

         21  15-mile radius?

         22                 MR. SLOBODIEN: For the purpose of

         23  evacuation?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Yes.

         25                 MR. SLOBODIEN: That is correct.

                                                            79

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: For any other

          3  type of evacuation?

          4                 MR. SLOBODIEN: There's only one type

          5  of evacuation.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Then why did

          7  you ask me about evacuations?

          8                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Because there's an

          9  ingestion pathway zone of 50 miles, but it does not

         10  involve evacuation, and there is a ten-mile zone,

         11  that is the one that involves evacuation. I want to

         12  make it clear that we do talk about two zones, one

         13  of ten miles, which is called the plume exposure

         14  pathway zone in which one of the protective actions

         15  that can be used is evacuation.

         16                 The larger zone, the 50-mile zone, is

         17  primarily, is in fact entirely designed and set up

         18  for the purpose of protection of the population from

         19  ingestion of radioactive material to prevent

         20  long-term health consequences.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So is there

         22  anywhere that you have an evacuation plan that spans

         23  more than ten miles?

         24                 MR. SLOBODIEN: No, sir.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay, let me
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          2  move on to the water supply then, and I'll try to be

          3  quick.

          4                 Let me say Dr. Codell's theory is,

          5  apparently is that there's other water to make up

          6  for the loss of a huge reservoir like Croton, and

          7  that theory doesn't hold much water. I think after

          8  that, though, you did say that even if there was a

          9  radiological release, the water within the radius

         10  would still be drinkable; is that what your point

         11  was?

         12                 MR. SPECTER: Dr. Codell's testimony

         13  is that the water is drinkable. He also pointed out

         14  that, at least in the time of his testimony, that

         15  although the Croton Reservoir, the nearest one,

         16  would get over 50 percent of the contaminants, it

         17  only supplied about 99 percent of the total water in

         18  the whole system, and there is a bypass capability

         19  already existing. So, his conclusion was you could

         20  readily do that, and it probably falls within the

         21  kind of ups and downs of water supply that we

         22  witness, especially during times of water

         23  conservation, dry season and so forth. So, again,

         24  his conclusion is, it's been done, it can be done,

         25  and it's safe enough to be consumed without
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          2  restriction.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'm glad a

          4  study has been done that's showing that should that

          5  happen we'd have enough water, but I'm not willing

          6  to give up the Croton Reservoir; is there anything

          7  in place to protect that reservoir?

          8                 MR. SPECTER: You don't have to give

          9  up the Croton reservoir either if it were so

         10  contaminated. One of the aspects of Dr. Codell's

         11  testimony was that you might have to temporarily

         12  interdict the Croton Reservoir supply, but within a

         13  five-year period it would be back up again available

         14  to the citizens. So, at worst you're facing

         15  something, not in terms of total water supply which

         16  is not remarkable, it's within the scope of the

         17  water supply variations we experience just from

         18  seasonal weather changes. We've done it, we can do

         19  it again if we have to, and it's temporary.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So, within

         21  that five-year period, though, is it drinkable or

         22  not?

         23                 MR. SPECTER: Yes, the remaining water

         24  wouldn't be affected. It would always be drinkable,

         25  even with knocking out the -- if you were so
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          2  contaminated in Croton that you would isolate it,

          3  the other reservoirs are not affected because the

          4  plume didn't go there.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: No, I

          6  understand that. But the water in Croton, would that

          7  water be drinkable for the five-year period?

          8                 MR. SPECTER: No. You would not do

          9  that. Why isolate it then, if it were drinkable? The

         10  only reason you would isolate it is you made a

         11  determination that it's unacceptable, and mind you,

         12  that's a minuscule chance that water mixes with a

         13  larger system, you come up with a value which is

         14  drinkable.  He was very cautious to point this out.

         15  It's a temporary thing, and, again, that's based on

         16  a larger release of radioactivity. I would imagine

         17  if Dr. Codell were here he would do these analyses

         18  with today's source terms, and the whole Croton

         19  situation would be proportionately smaller.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'm not a

         21  scientist like my chair, so I'll ask the other

         22  scientists about that, but thank you for your

         23  answer.

         24                 MR. SPECTER: Sure.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I live a few
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          2  blocks from the dirtiest plant in the entire State;

          3  how would closure of your plant effect New York City

          4  residents with regard to power supply?

          5                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Mr. Vallone, I'm not

          6  an expert in power plant economics, but I believe

          7  there are folks who have that expertise who are

          8  available to you, I think that question ought to be

          9  referred to them.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay, I'm

         11  informed we'll have people speak to that issue

         12  later. Fine.

         13                 Are we, again, not being a complete

         14  expert in this area, where is the greater risk from,

         15  the operating of the plant or the spent fuel labs?

         16                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Let me use a little

         17  example of the difference between the nature of the

         18  risk.

         19                 The operating reactor is operating at

         20  a very high power, and has a lot of energy in it.

         21  It's that energy which has the potential for

         22  propelling radioactive material into the

         23  environment. The fuel pool has only a small amount

         24  of energy. In order to get radioactive material into

         25  the environment from the fuel pool, you have to add
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          2  the energy. The energy can be added in a number of

          3  ways. The most common one that we talk about is that

          4  you take away all the water and that you're unable

          5  to even keep the fuel listed in any way, and there

          6  are some analyses that show, but not all, that you

          7  may have some release of radioactive material there.

          8                 So, the risks are different, and in

          9  the case of the fuel pool there are many, many ways

         10  to prevent the addition of energy. I think that in

         11  terms of the energy question, this is why, number

         12  one, they are different; it is also why the reactor

         13  is contained within the massive structure of the

         14  containment building, which is a steel-lined

         15  structure, which has then steel-reinforced concrete

         16  walls that are extremely strong.

         17                 So, I don't think it's fair to ask

         18  one or the other, it's better to understand the

         19  differences and recognize that two different

         20  mechanisms are at play. In the case of the fuel

         21  pool, there are very many mechanisms to prevent that

         22  addition of energy. In the case of the reactor, if

         23  the energy is so great that we do rely and have many

         24  redundant systems, among them the containment

         25  building.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: And the fuel

          3  pool will still be at risk if the plant ceased

          4  operations.

          5                 MR. SLOBODIEN: I'll give you a quick

          6  answer and ask Mr. Specter to elaborate.

          7                 The spent fuel will be radioactive

          8  for quite some time, and it will continue to be

          9  radioactive so long as it's on the property, that is

         10  correct. And Mr. Specter.

         11                 MR. SPECTER: Yes, one thing that

         12  sometimes gets overlooked is the fact that people in

         13  this field usually worry about different kinds of

         14  health effects - gee, can I get so much radiation

         15  that somebody dies quickly? Can I get a little bit

         16  less but they're injured, and finally long-term

         17  effects.

         18                 These different kind of health

         19  effects are driven by different radio isotopes. The

         20  early stuff, which is really why we do emergency

         21  planning mostly, is driven by radioactive iodine and

         22  yttirium, that stuff decays away pretty quickly.

         23  There's essentially no iodine or yttirium in the

         24  spent fuel pool, it's just gone.

         25                 So, automatically, except for the
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          2  freshest fuel that was put in there, the rest of it

          3  is no iodine and yttirium left, so its threat to the

          4  early health effects is long gone. It's hard to

          5  answer your question, what remains in the pool is

          6  radioactive cesium, which is a challenge for

          7  long-term stuff, it's a challenge for land

          8  contamination. But on the other hand, according to

          9  my analysis, I felt that Chairman Gennaro was very

         10  supportive on this, it's almost impossible to bus

         11  the spent fuel pool, even with the biggest airplane.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'll speak for

         13  myself on that issue.

         14                 MR. SPECTER: Okay, I appreciate that.

         15                 It's my view that it's almost

         16  impossible to break into the pool, so what's the

         17  threat if you can't get the release.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Well, you

         19  just said that it's almost impossible to break into

         20  the pool, and the Chairman was there and he I think

         21  agrees, but he also said that the roof cannot

         22  withstand a plane attack --

         23                 MR. SPECTER: That's correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: And then you

         25  said it's unlikely.
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          2                 MR. SPECTER: I said the attack on the

          3  light structure above the pool, and if all of that

          4  stuff falls into the pool, will not cause the

          5  boundary that protects the fuel. The fuel is down 30

          6  feet below the water level.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Below the roof

          8  level.

          9                 MR. SPECTER: No, the pool is 40 feet

         10  deep.

         11                 MR. SLOBODIEN: The pool is 40 feet

         12  deep and there is never less than 23 feet of water

         13  from the top of the fuel to the water level.

         14                 MR. SPECTER: I haven't done this

         15  specific analysis, and I haven't seen anyone else's,

         16  but it seems very questionable that a collapse of

         17  this overstructure, this light structure by any

         18  cause would be sufficient to cause leakage of the

         19  pool which would then possibly lead to the spent

         20  fuel, releasing its cesium.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Questionable

         22  is just not good enough for me. I would like it made

         23  so that a plane cannot crash through the roof, and

         24  let me read to you from your own report.

         25                 "Unless the somewhat amateur
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          2  terrorist pilots could control the planes outside of

          3  its design developed within these very short time

          4  spans, the crashing plane would likely completely

          5  miss the pool."

          6                 So, we're assuming they're amateur

          7  terrorist pilots. We've already had one Egyptian

          8  professional pilot crash his plane, I've got

          9  concerns about planes coming, hitting areas which

         10  are not designed to withstand planes, why can't we

         11  reinforce them?

         12                 MR. SPECTER: I think the answer --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Even if it's

         14  accidentally hit. They're aiming for something else

         15  and accidently run into these fuel pools.

         16                 MR. SPECTER: Actually my report I

         17  believe covers that.

         18                 I've used the Princeton study, their

         19  numbers, to calculate whether the largest plane, a

         20  747, going at an incredible speed of 590 miles an

         21  hour, if it doesn't fly apart first --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: And

         23  purposefully hit this area, what if it accidentally

         24  hit the area?

         25                 MR. SPECTER: Regardless of how it
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          2  happens, it will not cause leakage in the pool. It

          3  can't get through. And then you ask yourself, if

          4  some other plane hit this light structure, the light

          5  structure itself is not nearly the challenge of the

          6  airplane. So, logic would have it that if I could

          7  take this enormous plane at an enormous speed, why

          8  couldn't they take a light structure just falling

          9  into the pool? How do I break the boundary? And if I

         10  don't break the boundary, the fuel is safe.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'm going to

         12  have to get some enlightenment on that down the

         13  road, but being -- we're running behind schedule, so

         14  I'll have to ask you some questions later on.

         15                 Let me just say that Councilman

         16  DeBlasio had to step out but that was one of the

         17  questions he wanted me to ask about the amateur

         18  pilot, and I thank him for his help on that. I thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         21                 I just want to ask whether your study

         22  was peer review, the one that you cite or the one

         23  that you conducted? In your statement you make

         24  scientific findings conclusions, and to what extent

         25  has the work that you put before us been peer
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          2  reviewed, or this is your own work?

          3                 MR. SPECTER: Well, what I've done,

          4  some of the reports, and I've got several before

          5  you, like the one where I reviewed these huge

          6  numbers of consequences, I actually used reports

          7  that were published by the same group, Sandia. I

          8  sent out drafts of my write-up to some of the same

          9  authors of that report asking for comments, I got it

         10  back, if an adjustment was necessary I made it, so

         11  to that extent they were peer reviewed.

         12                 I also sent them --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is that the

         14  equivalent of peer reviewed?

         15                 MR. SPECTER: No. The time --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Doesn't peer

         17  review come with it a certain?

         18                 MR. SPECTER: It was a less than

         19  formal peer review, which the best I could do it on

         20  the timing.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Sure. I

         22  just wanted it for the record.

         23                 There's a question here about

         24  cesium-137 isotopes contained in the spent fuel

         25  pools; have we had a discussion with that? I think
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          2  you just went over that with Council Member Vallone,

          3  didn't you, the various isotopes?

          4                 MR. SLOBODIEN: We spoke of several

          5  isotopes, among them cesium-137.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          7                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Strontium-90, some

          8  which have relatively long half-lives, about each

          9  about 30 years. There was a discussion of yttirium

         10  and iodines, most of which have relatively short

         11  half-lives.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So we've got

         13  that on the record.

         14                 Reading from Michael's statement once

         15  again, "None of the factors noted above, including a

         16  terrorist attack, would lead to a release of

         17  radioactivity different from what has already been

         18  analyzed." It's your contention that we've already

         19  analyzed the maximum amount of radiation that could

         20  be released? I just want you to support your

         21  statement here.

         22                 MR. SLOBODIEN: The amount of

         23  radioactivity in the nuclear reactor is finite. You

         24  can't add to it, and a terrorist flying an airplane,

         25  setting off a bomb or doing anything else, does not
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          2  add to the amount of radioactivity that's there.

          3  It's not possible to do that. So, severe accident

          4  analyses, which do consider substantially all of the

          5  volatile radioactivity being released, to already

          6  take into account what's available for release. And

          7  since you can't add any more than what's already

          8  there, that is a bounding-type analysis.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me just also

         10  state for the record that during the last drought we

         11  were getting in excess of 30 percent of our water

         12  from the Croton system, there was simply no place

         13  else to get the water from, so we were certainly in

         14  this City not able to have anything less than

         15  unfettered access at all times to the Croton water

         16  supply.

         17                 I mean, there are times that for

         18  inordinate reasons we do cut back now and then, but

         19  we have to have the ability to have access to that

         20  water supply at all times, but the people that we

         21  take to be our water quality experts at DEP are not

         22  here today to speak to this issue, notwithstanding

         23  the fact that this is an oversight hearing on the

         24  potential releases of radioactivity from the

         25  facility.
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          2                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Councilman, if I may?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          4                 MR. SLOBODIEN: I would strongly

          5  suggest, as did Mr. Specter, that Richard Codell be

          6  invited to speak in front of this group, because he

          7  certainly is an expert in this subject. He prepared

          8  and delivered the testimony in the hearings in 1982,

          9  he still works for the Nuclear Regulatory

         10  Commission.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         12                 MR. SLOBODIEN: I spoke to him a

         13  couple of weeks ago myself, and he is prepared, I

         14  believe if the Commission will let him, to address

         15  this issue with you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         17  you. And anything that you think could help us

         18  understand more about this would be greatly

         19  appreciated.

         20                 If you just speak briefly, if you

         21  would, about the increased steps that have been

         22  taken to rebuff a land-based attack?

         23                 MR. SLOBODIEN: As you may understand,

         24  we are not able to give extensive detail for

         25  security reasons, but we have taken the following
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          2  kinds of actions:

          3                 The physical barriers that protect

          4  the plant have been increased. We've added an

          5  outermost barrier, which is not a requirement, we

          6  now have an outermost barrier that protects what we

          7  call the owner controlled property.

          8                 In addition, for the areas that are

          9  of concern, we've added additional physical

         10  barriers, we've added and enhanced our security

         11  force. They are carrying substantially more

         12  sophisticated weapons than they used to carry. There

         13  are more of them. They have better defensive

         14  positions, we have more and more sophisticated

         15  remote surveillance techniques.

         16                 We are maintaining contact with a

         17  variety of local law enforcement and federal law

         18  enforcement, so we have a better interaction with

         19  the intelligence community to understand what's

         20  going on. Training has been increased substantially,

         21  particularly to deal with these kind of threats to

         22  which we are all concerned.

         23                 Furthermore, the Nuclear Regulatory

         24  Commission in February 2002 provided us with orders

         25  which are what they call "interim compensatory
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          2  measures." I'm not at liberty to reveal what they

          3  are, but we have taken all of those actions. The

          4  Nuclear Regulatory Commission has inspected our

          5  facility for those, and the Nuclear Regulatory

          6  Commission is about ready to issue new guidance,

          7  additional guidance. We will certainly comply with

          8  all of that guidance.

          9                 So, we have done a substantial amount

         10  in the area of security.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Let

         12  me just ask you one thing more about the Witt

         13  report. I think you -- the Witt report did not give

         14  a very good assessment of the evacuation plans. We

         15  all know that. I know that you've been in touch with

         16  Mr. Witt and his people, you know, what is your

         17  expectation as to -- I mean, I'm asking you to

         18  speculate here and I understand that, you know, what

         19  sense do you get about what Mr. Witt's ultimate

         20  pronouncements are going to be regarding the

         21  adequacy of your evacuation plan? And Mr. Witt's

         22  further contention that the federal government does

         23  not do as good a job as it should in making

         24  requirements of operators like Entergy to provide in

         25  the way of a more robust and performance-based
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          2  evacuation -- that was one of his contentions that

          3  the federal government is really not doing its job

          4  to the extent that it should, so just the fact that

          5  some plants, evacuation plans passes federal muster,

          6  does not make it a plan that will actually work.

          7  That was his contention. And, so, where is he going

          8  to come out, do you think? I'm asking you to

          9  speculate like what's your sense of whether or not

         10  he's going to trim that back at all, and if you can

         11  elaborate just briefly on his contention that the

         12  federal government does not require people to do all

         13  they should?

         14                 MR. SLOBODIEN: One of the contentions

         15  was that the federal government, in particular FEMA,

         16  Federal Emergency Management Agency, who conducts

         17  evaluations of government's response, Entergy's

         18  responses is evaluated by the Nuclear Regulatory

         19  Commission to which FEMA ultimately reports on these

         20  matters, the contention was that FEMA does not, uses

         21  what is called a compliance-based program, and does

         22  not use what is called a performance-based program.

         23                 In fact, in January of 2002, FEMA did

         24  indeed institute a performance-based evaluation

         25  program. It was used in the September 24th
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          2  evaluation for the Indian Point Emergency Planning

          3  exercise. So, in that regard, FEMA does used a

          4  performance-based process, and they are continually

          5  upgrading and improving that process.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Does it use the

          7  performance-based process that Mr. Witt believes it

          8  should again? Again, this is holding him out as the

          9  ultimate arbiter of what should and should not be an

         10  evacuation plan, but does it -- go ahead.

         11                 MR. SLOBODIEN: I will. I don't know

         12  the answer to that question. I think that

         13  presumably, and Mr. Witt's final report, he'll

         14  address that issue. We did comment to him to point

         15  out that indeed -- and perhaps he's unfamiliar with

         16  it, because while he was the Director of FEMA here

         17  in the Clinton Administration, the current changes

         18  have only been put in place since January 2002. They

         19  were being initiated and developed while he was in

         20  office, but they didn't come to the table and

         21  actually be implemented until a year ago. So, he may

         22  not be aware of that. We did point that out to him.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have any

         24  knowledge about the members of Mr. Witt's team and

         25  the particular expertise they brought to the table?
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          2  Has that been made known, all the people who worked

          3  on that report? You know, do they have the

          4  background consistent with putting in a product that

          5  -- do you have any insight on the members of Mr.

          6  Witt's team and who --

          7                 MR. SLOBODIEN: It is common in these

          8  kind of reports to identify the participants and

          9  their affiliations, their credentials, provide their

         10  CVs or their resumes. That was not done in the case

         11  of this draft report.

         12                 I have actually asked Mr. Witt

         13  personally and his staff who worked on the report,

         14  they will not tell me.

         15                 I do know some of them because we did

         16  interact with them, but I don't know if I know all

         17  of them.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         19                 MR. SLOBODIEN: I know only the ones

         20  that I personally have seen. But in my context with

         21  the Witt organization, they have chosen not to

         22  divulge that information to me.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: However, Mr.

         24  Witt himself is a former Director of FEMA and that's

         25  --
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          2                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Yes, he is.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.

          4  Thank you very, very much for your testimony. You're

          5  going to be around here should I need to call upon

          6  you to rebut or whatever, we perhaps may avail

          7  ourselves of that opportunity. Thank you very much

          8  for your testimony here today.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And the next

         12  witness -- this is why I have a Counsel, and she

         13  sits right here and she tells me who the next

         14  witness is going to be, so we'll just wait for

         15  Donna. She has the witness list.

         16                 Dr. Edwin Lyman, of the Nuclear

         17  Control Institute; Joseph Mangano, of the Radiation

         18  Public Health Project; and Jan Beyea. I hope I'm

         19  saying that right. Of Consulting in the Public

         20  Interest. Please take your places.

         21                 And if you have written statements,

         22  please give them to the Sergeant. While you're being

         23  sworn in, I just have to excuse myself for about 60

         24  seconds.

         25                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your
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          2  right hands.

          3                 In the testimony that you're about to

          4  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the whole truth

          5  and nothing but the truth?

          6                 DR. LYMAN: I do.

          7                 MR. MANGANO: I do.

          8                 DR. BEYEA: I do.

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         11  much. You can, in whichever order you wish, state

         12  your names for the record and proceed with your

         13  testimony.

         14                 Thank you very much for being here.

         15  If you need me to break the tie, I'm available.

         16                 DR. BEYEA: Maybe we'll get the spent

         17  fuel out of the way.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And you've got

         19  to speak directly into the microphone.

         20                 DR. BEYEA: Tell me if I'm not

         21  speaking correctly.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's great.

         23  Okay.

         24                 DR. BEYEA: My name is Jan Beyea. I'm

         25  a nuclear physicist with a Ph.D from Columbia
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          2  University. I'm an independent consultant with

          3  Consulting in the Public Interest.

          4                 Recently seven colleagues and I,

          5  including scientists from Princeton MIT and Ed

          6  Lyman, who is also on this panel, prepared an

          7  article on the risks from spent fuel stored in

          8  reactor pools, what's been referred to today as the

          9  Princeton study.

         10                 The paper is in press at the journal,

         11  Science and Global Security.  It has been thoroughly

         12  peer reviewed.

         13                 What's the problem? After the nuclear

         14  fuel in a rod has been turned to energy, it remains

         15  radioactive. The rods are taken out of the reactor.

         16  Most of the spent fuel goes to those large on-site

         17  pools. In our study we find the pools potentially

         18  vulnerable to serious fires, following loss of

         19  coolant. Such fires could cause massive amounts of

         20  long-term radioactive contamination of land. Much

         21  more land contamination then could be caused by the

         22  radioactivity in the core of a reactor itself.

         23                 The resulting economic losses are

         24  estimated to be of the orders of hundreds of

         25  billions of dollars.
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          2                 Now, in recent years, some of the

          3  older fuel rods have been transferred to these

          4  relatively small dry casks, which we find to be

          5  thousands of times less dangerous than the pools

          6  themselves.

          7                 And we think the transfer to dry

          8  storage needs to be accelerated in order to

          9  eliminate the obvious vulnerabilities of the pools.

         10                 And the cost is trivial compared to

         11  the price of electricity. We're talking about

         12  0.03-0.06 to 600ths cents per kilowatt-hour.

         13                 If you take a traditional cost

         14  benefit analysis, we estimate that a one in 30,000

         15  chance per year of a terrorist attack causing a

         16  massive fuel fire would justify transfer to dry

         17  casks, and the other measures we propose in the

         18  paper, and that's not even accounting for the cost

         19  of decades of anxiety among the population.

         20                 Now, what does transfer to dry cask

         21  storage get you? It does not get rid of all the

         22  spent fuel in the pool. The very fresh spent rods

         23  are too hot to be cooled in dry casks. However, if

         24  you get rid of the older spent fuel, the operators

         25  can then go back to the original design
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          2  configuration of the pools for storing the fresh

          3  fuel.

          4                 Originally the open frame designs

          5  were not vulnerable to fire, as long as there was

          6  sufficient air that could get in the building to

          7  cool them.

          8                 So, in addition, the total amount of

          9  radioactivity capable of causing the massive

         10  long-term contamination from the pool is reduced by

         11  about a factor of four, if you go to this dry cask

         12  storage.

         13                 Now, there's still some risk in the

         14  pools, and the dry cask could be hit by a plane, but

         15  the release from a dry cask is trivial compared to

         16  what you could get from a pool.

         17                 Now, what about Indian Point? Now,

         18  our paper looked at the generic problem, recognizing

         19  the details would differ from site to site, and we

         20  also didn't want to get into too many details

         21  because it could be of use to a terrorist.

         22                 So, the comments I'm about to make

         23  about Indian Point are my own, and they're not

         24  necessarily those of my co-authors.

         25                 We've heard earlier that Entergy and
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          2  the owner says that the spent fuel configuration at

          3  Indian Point is immune. Actually our study was

          4  mischaracterized about the plane crashes, and I'll

          5  mention that later.

          6                 Now, as political leaders it seems to

          7  me you have a choice, you can trust Entergy and the

          8  regulatory methods of the Nuclear Regulatory

          9  Commission, which are not designed to deal with

         10  terrorist activities, or you can presume for

         11  planning purposes that the Indian Point Spent Fuel

         12  Pool is generic and may be vulnerable and then you

         13  may look at the cost of mitigating those

         14  consequences or eliminating them.

         15                 It seems to me it is an insult to the

         16  intelligence of the public to suggest that

         17  terrorists cannot do damage to the spent fuel pools

         18  or to the reactors.

         19                 At the same time it also would be

         20  stupid to think that an attack on Indian Point would

         21  be easy for a terrorist, or that they would be

         22  guaranteed a success.

         23                 Also, you know, there are a lot worse

         24  things that could happen. A nuclear weapon detonated

         25  somewhere in New York City would be much more
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          2  serious, and I also must point out that the

          3  successful attacks on chemical facilities in the

          4  area could also be worse in terms of loss of life.

          5                 However, it does seem to me that

          6  Indian Point is an attractive target for a

          7  terrorist, and I have no doubt that somewhere in the

          8  world there is a very smart graduate student today

          9  thinking about how to take Indian Point down.

         10                 And if a terrorist attack were

         11  successful, massive amount of land in the New York

         12  metropolitan area would be permanently, have to be

         13  permanently evacuated, just get out and don't come

         14  back.

         15                 The financial cost would be a serious

         16  blow, not only to the New York metropolitan economy,

         17  also to the US economy, and it would bring

         18  long-lasting fear to the population outside the

         19  evacuated region.

         20                 Now, as far as I can tell, New

         21  Yorkers cannot rely on the Nuclear Regulatory

         22  Commission. The NRC has recently asserted that the

         23  possibilities of a terrorist attack is speculative

         24  and simply too far removed from the natural or

         25  expected consequences of agency action.

                                                            106

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 In other words, they're not going to

          3  regulate based on terrorist, terrorist attacks. So,

          4  it seems to me that only congressional action,

          5  political pressure or litigation is likely to bring

          6  proper attention to this issue.

          7                 It seems to me perhaps the most

          8  important step the New York City Council could take

          9  on this issue is to work with its congressional

         10  delegation, to get legislation enacted that will

         11  speed up and pay for transfer to dry cask storage.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 We'll allow all of the witnesses to

         16  present their testimony and then we'll ask questions

         17  of all of you.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 MR. MANGANO: Good afternoon. I'm

         20  Joseph Mangano, National Coordinator of the

         21  Radiation and Public Health Project.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just want to

         23  make sure I have your statement in front of me

         24  before you proceed.

         25                 I got you. Okay.
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          2                 MR. MANGANO: The Radiation and Public

          3  Health Project, a non-profit research group of

          4  health professionals and scientists based in New

          5  York City.

          6                 Since 1994, we have published 18 peer

          7  reviewed medical journal articles and the five books

          8  on radiation risks.

          9                 My comments will first focus on the

         10  health hazards of a major melt-down and then on the

         11  hazards of routine emissions.

         12                 A large release of radioactivity from

         13  Indian Point after a terrorist attack or mechanical

         14  failure would constitute the worst environmental

         15  disaster in US history.

         16                 Loss of cooling water to the reactor

         17  core, where electricity is produced, or the spent

         18  fuel pools, where the waste is stored, would send

         19  massive amounts of radioactive gases and particles

         20  into the air to be inhaled by humans.

         21                 Propelled by prevailing winds, which

         22  often blow towards New York City, radioactivity

         23  would enter the City within a few hours, making it

         24  impossible to safely evacuate the area.

         25                 Casualties from a core meltdown at
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          2  Indian Point include as many as 96,000 deaths from

          3  acute radiation sickness within 30 miles of the

          4  plant, and 54,000 cancer deaths within 50 miles

          5  after precipitation returns radioactivity into the

          6  food chain.

          7                 A meltdown in the waste pools would

          8  increase these numbers substantially.

          9                 Closing Indian Point would reduce

         10  these casualties. A core meltdown just 20 days after

         11  closing would result in 80 percent fewer deaths from

         12  radiation sickness, and 50 percent fewer cancer

         13  deaths.

         14                 Many radioactive chemicals would have

         15  decayed quickly, saving the lives of tens of

         16  thousands of New Yorkers.

         17                 In addition to major meltdowns,

         18  routine emissions from Indian Point also threaten

         19  local public health.

         20                 The two reactors have released the

         21  fifth highest total of 72 US plants, exceeding

         22  official releases during the Three Mile Island

         23  accident.

         24                 We found that the average local level

         25  of radioactive Strontium-90 in baby teeth climbed to
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          2  54 percent since the late 1980s. Westchester County

          3  has the highest level in southern New York, while

          4  Manhattan and the Bronx, closest to New York --

          5  excuse me -- closest to Indian Point, have the

          6  highest in the City.

          7                 Strontium-90, only produced in

          8  nuclear weapons and reactors, is a potent carcinogen

          9  that may be contributing to high local rates of

         10  child and other cancers.

         11                 But, again, closing Indian Point

         12  would reduce rates of disease caused by reactor

         13  emissions.

         14                 We found that infant deaths, birth

         15  defects and childhood cancer, all declined

         16  dramatically near eight US nuclear reactors

         17  immediately after shutdown.

         18                 So, even without a meltdown from a

         19  terrorist attack, closing Indian Point would save

         20  the lives of many local children.

         21                 In conclusion, I urge City Council

         22  members to give New Yorkers' health the utmost

         23  consideration on decisions involving the future of

         24  Indian Point and endorse the passage of Resolution

         25  64-A.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          4  much. Thank you.

          5                 DR. LYMAN: Hi. My name is Dr. Edwin

          6  Lyman. I'm president of the Nuclear Control

          7  Institute in Washington, D.C., and I appreciate the

          8  opportunity to present my views today on the health

          9  and safety consequences of a terrorist attack on

         10  Indian Point for the residents of New York City.

         11                 I have many years experience in

         12  utilizing computer codes developed by US national

         13  laboratories, Sandia, in particular, for estimating

         14  the health environmental consequences of

         15  radiological releases from nuclear facilities.

         16                 And I would mention that these are

         17  updated versions of the code that was originally

         18  used for the CRAC-2 study in 1982, which were

         19  revised as recently as 1998 I believe.

         20                 So, I'm using the most current codes

         21  available to do my own analyses. Anyone who spent

         22  time working with these codes understands that the

         23  radiological release is typical of a severe nuclear

         24  power plant accident, one in which there's

         25  substantial melting of nuclear fuel and breach or
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          2  bypass of the so-called leak-tight containment

          3  building, can result in significant radiation

          4  exposures to individuals and extensive radioactive

          5  contamination hundreds of miles from the release

          6  site.

          7                 The conclusion was validated by the

          8  exposure and contamination patterns occurring as a

          9  result of Chernobyl.

         10                 Yet the NRC continues to publicly

         11  deny these facts, even the NRC staff privately are

         12  well aware of them, as I know through prior

         13  conversation. However, in public the NRC continues

         14  to defend the designation of the ten-mile emergency

         15  planning zone for evacuation as adequate to protect

         16  the public from the consequences of the plume

         17  resulting from a terrorist attack.

         18                 As recently as Tuesday, February

         19  25th, NRC Regional Administrator, Region 1

         20  Administrator Hub Miller, asserted under questioning

         21  from Congressman Nadler there would be no need to

         22  evacuate anyone living further than ten miles from

         23  the plant in the event of a terrorist attack,

         24  because significant radiation doses would only occur

         25  within a few miles of the release.
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          2                 However, as I hope to show you, NRC's

          3  definition of significant appears to be at odds with

          4  that of other federal agencies.

          5                 The culture of denial within NRC is

          6  troubling because I believe that NRC is starting to

          7  believe its own propaganda, which is dangerous for

          8  an agency that is supposed to be basing its

          9  decisions on the best technical information.

         10                 The recent crash of the Space Shuttle

         11  Columbia recalled the words of Richard Feinman, the

         12  physicist who investigated the previous Challenger

         13  disaster and found out that NASA bureaucrats were

         14  actually ignoring their perception of the risk of

         15  the mission was radically different from that of

         16  their own engineers, and it was colored by their own

         17  public relations needs. And Richard Feinman wrote,

         18  for successful technology, reality must take

         19  precedence over public relations because nature

         20  cannot be fooled.

         21                 The statement is equally applicable

         22  to nuclear power, because good emergency planning

         23  does depend on the most accurate technical

         24  information to inform the public and that is not

         25  what we're getting now from the NRC, or as we heard
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          2  earlier, from the industry.

          3                 Without people who could be at risk,

          4  knowing what the risks are and how to manage those

          5  risks is irresponsible, and especially at a time

          6  when homeland security and emergency preparedness is

          7  supposed to be top priorities of the government.

          8                 I have used the computer code MACCS2

          9  developed by Sandia and routinely used by the NRC

         10  and the Department of Energy to provide estimates of

         11  the radiological consequences that could be faced by

         12  New Yorkers in the event of a major terrorist attack

         13  at Indian Point either on the reactor or the spent

         14  fuel pool. To assess the significance, I've compared

         15  these results with published federal emergency

         16  response guidelines and the data are clear, New York

         17  City residents are at risk of exposures to radiation

         18  that while not immediately life-threatening, would

         19  be significant with regard to long-term health

         20  impacting, would warrant emergency actions, either

         21  potassium iodide prophylaxis and/or evacuation. What

         22  is not clear is how many New Yorkers are aware of

         23  this, and especially the ones who might need to

         24  know, like school officials, law enforcement,

         25  emergency response or health professionals.
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          2                 This issue really has to be addressed

          3  for the health and safety of New York City

          4  residents.

          5                 Okay, now, I'm looking at the federal

          6  guidelines for emergency response. Potassium iodide

          7  administration is recommended by the FDA if the

          8  projected dose to the thyroid exceeds 5 rem for

          9  children, adolescents below 18. A rem is a measure

         10  of the absorbed dose with reference to biological

         11  effects.

         12                 The EPA recommends evacuation in

         13  normal circumstances if the projected total

         14  effective dose equivalent, which is a calculation of

         15  the dose to all the organs, scaled appropriately of

         16  one rem.

         17                 Now, the results of my calculations

         18  are as follows: For a five-year-old recipient,

         19  taking into account the size of the five-year-old

         20  thyroid compared to an adult, I calculate these peak

         21  doses, and this is, again, this is the peak dose

         22  downwind of the plume of the event. And I've

         23  indicated where in New York is a function of

         24  distance. If you can't read the scale, and it's a

         25  little small, this does show that this child would
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          2  receive a dose of as much as 650 rem to the thyroid.

          3                 Now, what is the impact of this

          4  exposure? Well, an impact of the 600 rem in a

          5  distance of 40 miles is more than 100 times the FDA

          6  threshold for potassium iodide administration.

          7                 The consequences of this dose are a

          8  likely case of hypothyroidism and a thyroid cancer

          9  risk of about .15 percent per year, which is 1,500

         10  times the normal incidence for children. In fact, 60

         11  times the normal incidents for adults.

         12                 Now, looking at the total effective

         13  dose equivalent, again at New York City I find the

         14  peak dose would be around 30 rem, which is 30 times

         15  the EPA threshold for recommended evacuation.

         16                 This is associated with a three

         17  percent risk of a lifetime cancer fatality, which is

         18  a 15 percent increase in the baseline risk of

         19  Americans, since our lifetime risk is about 20

         20  percent dying of cancer.

         21                 I would say these are significant

         22  doses and anyone who argues otherwise is simply

         23  irresponsible.

         24                 So, the question is, if FDA and EPA

         25  emergency action levels can be exceeded in New York
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          2  City after an attack, why is no government agency

          3  recommending potassium iodide distribution or

          4  evacuation plan in New York City? The reason is

          5  potassium iodide costs and evacuation is impossible.

          6                 Senator Clinton tried last year to

          7  extend the emergency planning zone for 50 miles, and

          8  it was rebuffed. But if the emergency measures are

          9  needed to protect the residents of New York, as I

         10  believe they are, and they may not be feasible, then

         11  shut down the plant is the only option.

         12                 Shutdown is not the panacea, as we've

         13  heard. We see that after 20 days we get a reduction

         14  of about 85 percent, and the thyroid dose to

         15  children about 70 percent, and the total effective

         16  dose equivalent, but, again, the spent fuel pools

         17  are still there and pose a risk, and I just show one

         18  diagram from the Princeton paper, again using the

         19  MACCS2 code, this is the plume that would be

         20  expected as an attack on a spent fuel pool, and a 10

         21  megacurie release, which is only a fraction of the

         22  total amount of cesium-137 in the Indian Point spent

         23  fuel pool. To see the scale, that's about, it's over

         24  500 kilometers, which is about 300 miles along, and

         25  it's about 50 kilometers wide, or 30 miles wide.
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          2                 So, just as an example, New York City

          3  would be somewhere, oh, I can't show, but pretty far

          4  to the left of the scale.

          5                 So, I'd like to conclude with those

          6  remarks. Thank you. I'll be happy to answer your

          7  questions.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          9  you all very much for your good testimony, and we

         10  greatly appreciate you and actually all the

         11  witnesses. This is a long hearing, people are being

         12  very patient and we greatly appreciate that. I'm

         13  trying to move it along as quickly as possible, but

         14  everyone that's, you know, coming to the table is

         15  bringing some very important information and I'm

         16  trying to give everyone their due.

         17                 As I heard testimony from in all of

         18  you just now, something I guess just kind of dawned

         19  on me, we have, you know, FEMA and the NRC, and

         20  unfortunately they're not here today, they didn't,

         21  you know, deem our little gathering here worthy of

         22  their attendance and participation, but it's really

         23  their job to make sure that the country is safe from

         24  any kind of exposure from this, and it's their job

         25  to make sure that we have robust evacuation plans
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          2  and people sue government agencies all the time, and

          3  I've been in environmental for a long time, are

          4  always suing the EPA. Now the EPA is being sued by

          5  local attorneys generals in local states and not

          6  doing the Clean Air Act right; why is it that FEMA,

          7  why has the scientific community, in the face of all

          8  the information which people come before this

          9  Committee indicate is out there, you know, why has

         10  no one been able to take FEMA to task on their

         11  culture of misinformation, the culture of not

         12  wanting to look at the real risks, it seems to me

         13  that that's something that I can't seem to figure

         14  out?

         15                 I'm not passing the buck to them, and

         16  I'm not the federal government here, but one wonders

         17  why such a successful attempt to try to get the

         18  federal government to live up to what in your minds

         19  would be their responsibility, you know, why hasn't

         20  that happened?

         21                 And, you know, you see where this is

         22  going because maybe the risk isn't everything that

         23  we're all hearing it to be, otherwise the scientific

         24  community you would think would have mounted some

         25  sort of successful challenge to federal government
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          2  regulators and why has that not happened? Or am I

          3  just being naive? And if that's the answer to your

          4  question, you're free to tell me that.

          5                 MR. MANGANO: My believe is that it's

          6  symptomatic among public health regulatory agencies

          7  that their primary mission is to not panic the

          8  public, and let me give you an example of that that

          9  we can all relate to.

         10                 After September 11, after the Twin

         11  Towers were collapsed, a large amount of many

         12  chemicals went into the air, in this plume you had

         13  silicon and asbestos and many others, and of course

         14  the plume spread. Within a couple of weeks the EPA

         15  said that, well, we took measurements and it's

         16  higher than normal but it's below safe levels.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm the one that

         18  got EPA to clean up the apartments, so I'm very --

         19                 MR. MANAGANO: All right. So after

         20  many people and many workers were sick with asthma

         21  and so on were outraged and said, okay, we're going

         22  to do a study now of the area closest, you know,

         23  closest to ground zero, and then finally --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'd rather shift

         25  this to the point. I mean, that's an interesting
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          2  paradigm and metaphor or whatever, but if there's

          3  such an overwhelming preponderance of scientific

          4  peer reviewed information -- look at what I, as

          5  Chairman here, have to -- I mean I'm trying to get

          6  information and very, very strong statements,

          7  "massive amounts of land in the NY metropolitan

          8  area will be permanently evacuated, financial costs

          9  of" -- and I'm trying to assess the validity of

         10  this.

         11                 DR. BEYEA: Can I address?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: "Can result in

         13  significant radiation exposure to individuals and

         14  extensive radioactive contamination hundreds of

         15  miles from the release", hundreds of miles.

         16                 DR. LYMAN: Let me address this.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just, I really

         18  have to get a sense whether this is really borne out

         19  by the science.

         20                 DR. LYMAN: Well, I mean I'd be happy

         21  to share with you my calculations, which are based

         22  on the NRC's published source term. But the thing is

         23  that the whole regulatory system was originally

         24  considered, limiting the types of events that were

         25  evaluated, historically only the so-called design

                                                            121

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  basis accidents where the containment remained

          3  intact were assumed.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 DR. LYMAN: Then after there was a

          6  study in the mid-70s called Watch 1400, which

          7  started to call that into question, then after Three

          8  Mile Island and the risk containment that was posed

          9  by the hydrogen bubble, and NRC realized they had to

         10  start looking at these worst case scenarios.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         12                 DR. LYMAN: But the pressure not to

         13  ask the question, you know, in other words, it's a

         14  pandoras box, and the implications which I think are

         15  becoming more and more clear every day of opening up

         16  that box, is that the risk posed by nuclear power

         17  may be unacceptable, yet we're faced with a

         18  situation where we have distributed systems, nuclear

         19  power plants all over the country, some of them in

         20  close proximity to populated areas, and so it's

         21  becoming a -- so, the recourse to dealing with the

         22  potential consequences is to do probabilistic risk

         23  assessments and assume that the risk of the accident

         24  is very small occurring as a result of simply a

         25  number of coincidences. But the new information is
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          2  the terrorist threat, and the fact that a terrorist

          3  who knows what he's doing can actually cause an

          4  accident which if it were only left to happen by

          5  itself might only happen once every 100,000 years.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          7                 DR. LYMAN: That's the danger. And I

          8  think that once that becomes more clear, there is

          9  going to have to be a reevaluation of these issues.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I just want

         11  to ask whether any of you would be sufficiently

         12  knowledgeable as to whether or not the FEMA has

         13  responded in -- because I hear it both sides. I hear

         14  that, and James Witt's problem is that the paradigm

         15  that's used to look at evacuation plans is not

         16  sufficiently performance-based, it's

         17  compliance-based, but it's my understanding that on

         18  September 12th, the day after it happened, this is

         19  the date that this new way of looking at evacuation

         20  plans was put into the federal register, that was,

         21  you know, much more performance-based; did that

         22  actually happen? Was it implemented? I had a

         23  conversation with James Witt in which he told me

         24  that the performance-based way of looking at these

         25  plans was put out on the federal register but was
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          2  never really enacted by FEMA. When we talked to

          3  FEMA, FEMA saying not only are we doing the one that

          4  was put out on September 12th, we're doing like a

          5  further update of that, so like we're totally

          6  performance-based. Do any of you have the requisite

          7  expertise to speak to whether or not the

          8  performance-based way of looking at these plans, as

          9  posited by Mr. Witt, is really in effect to any

         10  significant degree?

         11                 DR. LYMAN: Well, I'm actually not

         12  familiar with that rule making, but I'd just like to

         13  point out that the emergency planning, as currently

         14  constituted, and required by the NRC regulation, is

         15  only restricted to the ten-mile zone, so that

         16  whatever happens in that ten-mile zone is really of

         17  limited consequence for New York City residents.

         18                 DR. BEYEA: I would like to add

         19  something here.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please. I was

         21  just about to ask you a question.

         22                 DR. BEYEA: To respond to this issue,

         23  it seems to me a lot of this issue is what is the

         24  source term? We heard earlier this source term.

         25                 I worked at the Indian Point Plan,
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          2  for instance, and assuming the source term, if they

          3  were dealing with the assumption of how much

          4  radioactivity was released, it was an credible plan,

          5  it was a serious issue. The problem is, the question

          6  is, well, how much is going to get out?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          8                 DR. BEYEA: You can't plan without

          9  figuring out how much is going to get out.

         10                 FEMA doesn't make its own source

         11  term, FEMA relies on the NRC and others to say how

         12  much is going to get out. So you have to first

         13  decide how much is going to get out and what are you

         14  going to accept, and as Ed said, terrorism has put a

         15  new wrinkle.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Council Member

         17  Vallone.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair.

         20                 Let me just pick up on a point that

         21  our Chairman made.

         22                 We sit here and we hear testimony

         23  about huge permanent evacuations and plumes reaching

         24  the City in a few minutes, and we just finished

         25  listening to your testimony about how that theory is
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          2  magical. Now, again, I'm not a scientist. Can you

          3  explain, again, in layman's terms why people who

          4  supposedly have knowledge in this area come to such

          5  hugely different decisions, in terms we can

          6  understand?

          7                 DR. BEYEA: They're not starting from

          8  the same starting point. They're not starting from

          9  the same amount of material released at the same

         10  times, they're different assumptions that are going

         11  into it. That's number one. You can't do a

         12  comparison unless you start comparing apples to

         13  apples. That's number one.

         14                 Number two --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Quickly, what

         16  type of assumption are they making, and what type of

         17  assumption are you making?

         18                 DR. BEYEA: How much material is being

         19  released from the reactor, and under what conditions

         20  and what times, what time of the day, so forth and

         21  so on.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: There doesn't

         23  seem like there can be that much of a difference in

         24  a leak in a reactor --

         25                 DR. BEYEA: Factors of a thousand. If
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          2  you talk to Entergy, there might be differences of a

          3  thousand or 10,000 in the amount of material

          4  released that Ed Lyman was just talking about.

          5                 So, if you --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So we should

          7  first look at the amount of material released.

          8                 DR. BEYEA: You'll see that actually,

          9  there isn't actually that much difference among the

         10  technical calculations if you start apples to

         11  apples. Then there are some differences. You can

         12  then start playing with the parameters that you

         13  don't know, the uncertaintees. Then you can start, a

         14  conservative could shift the numbers, if you wanted,

         15  could shift them one way. Somebody else could play

         16  with the numbers, come up with another number. So,

         17  you have to -- it's very difficult for you, I don't

         18  see how you can do it, I don't see how you as

         19  Councilmen can sit here and debate these issues. You

         20  know, what the feds do is they have, they put

         21  together scientists from, a broad group of

         22  scientists from all sides, and say, look, go get me

         23  a report. I want you guys to fight it out, duke it

         24  out in committee and come back to me with what you

         25  can agree on and what you can't agree on. Otherwise,
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          2  you know, you're just going to be taken to the

          3  cleaners by these people who come up and drag you

          4  out into areas you know nothing about.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: You're

          6  absolutely right, there are certain things we can't

          7  do and we have to rely on government experts to take

          8  your testimony and the testimony of those opposed to

          9  you and come up with conclusions that we should be

         10  able to trust.

         11                 DR. BEYEA: You have options, you have

         12  other options. You could, the Council could

         13  commission a group of scientists on all sides.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Unless they

         15  were volunteers --

         16                 DR. BEYEA: The National Academy does

         17  it under volunteers. It can be done in a volunteer

         18  basis, and the scientists are willing to do this all

         19  the time. The National Academy of Science, the

         20  National Research Council relies on the volunteer

         21  contribution of scientists. Now they have staff that

         22  has to be paid, but there are options for the

         23  Council to say -- you know, and it's interesting

         24  when you get the scientists together and actually

         25  talking to each other, makes the thing shift around,
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          2  you can end up getting more consistent statements.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: That's a good

          4  idea, which I'm sure our chair will look into.

          5                 Very quickly, again, we talked about

          6  trusting government and when it comes to FEMA, as

          7  Public Safety Chair I've been dealing with them

          8  awhile trying to get reimbursement for the 9/11

          9  attack for straight time for our police officers who

         10  actually worked at the World Trade Center, the

         11  morgue and the Fresh Kills Landfill, and was just

         12  told by letter, personal to me, last week, those do

         13  not fit into their guidelines.

         14                 So, there's no better definition of

         15  nameless, faceless bureaucrat than FEMA, and I don't

         16  trust them for a minute. So, they're working with

         17  antiquated guidelines which were set up to deal with

         18  hurricanes, not terrorist attacks, and you just

         19  concern me, Mr. Beyea, about the NRC. You said that

         20  a recent decision they have asserted that the

         21  possibility of a terrorist attack is speculative and

         22  simply too far removed from the natural and expected

         23  consequences of agency action; when was that

         24  decision?

         25                 DR. BEYEA: It was recently. It's
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          2  related to a request from intervenors. I can give

          3  you the exact site. I did submit the full paper, or

          4  a preprint of the paper. It will take me a second to

          5  find it, but it is in the testimony.

          6                 It was in a decision, a decision that

          7  came down about a petition, petitions about spent

          8  fuel.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: When was that

         10  made? Before or after September 11th?

         11                 DR. LYMAN: No, these were December of

         12  2002. Three months ago.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Well, that's

         14  outrageous, and I will take action to ask our

         15  federal legislators to attempt them to update their

         16  guidelines, as well as FEMA. But I know we're late

         17  so I'll move on. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         19  Council Member Vallone. Thank you very much.

         20                 Mr. Beyea, this is a fascinating

         21  prospect, convening good minds to try to embrace

         22  this. As I indicated before, we tried to reach out

         23  to the appropriate entities, so we reached out to,

         24  you know, Governor Ridge of Homeland Security, that

         25  was a letter sent to him signed by 47 of the 51
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          2  Council members. We have not gotten a response. We

          3  wanted FEMA to be here today, they're not here,

          4  don't seem to be here. They're not here. It's

          5  difficult for us, but perhaps your recommendation is

          6  one that we should take to heart, if we can't ask

          7  the people in the federal government who are

          8  supposed to do this science, then maybe we may have

          9  to do our own science.

         10                 DR. BEYEA: Yeah. Let me say that

         11  they're in a difficult position. Entergy, for

         12  instance, if they say the single thing that anything

         13  might happen, people are going to leap to the

         14  conclusion that it's going to happen. They've been

         15  so defensive over the years that they're now in a

         16  position where they can't say anything. And the same

         17  thing is true of the NRC. The NRC now admitted that

         18  there was any possibility of a release, there would

         19  be immediate - you were saying it, therefore it's

         20  absolutely true. So, they are in a very difficult

         21  position and I don't think you can expect to get

         22  from them a spin-free answer. And the only thing

         23  you're going to be able to do is to go around them,

         24  it seems to me, and make your own decisions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.
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          2                 I guess I would like to have

          3  consultations with you after the fact on how we can

          4  get good minds to the table and try to make a

          5  difference on this trying topic.

          6                 Just very, very quickly because we

          7  have to move along.

          8                 To what extent would the spent fuel

          9  rods need to be exposed to result in a radiological

         10  release? I guess I'm answering my own question.

         11                 DR. BEYEA: It would have to be

         12  overheated, and they have to catch fire.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Which means that

         14  they would have to be exposed to the air. So, the 23

         15  feet of water, so you would have to -- go ahead.

         16                 DR. BEYEA: Right. We looked at

         17  complete loss of coolant. You actually don't have to

         18  lose complete loss of coolant, but you have to lose

         19  a lot of coolant.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         21                 DR. BEYEA: And at some point I'd like

         22  to read --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I guess you

         24  could either lose it by attacking the facility or

         25  creating a situation which it would leak out, or
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          2  prevent the ability of new water to circulate in, in

          3  which case it would boil off after I guess some

          4  period of time?

          5                 DR. BEYEA: That's so. And there are

          6  quick ways that it can happen, and there are slow

          7  ways that it can happen. And some could be dealt

          8  with later, some could not be dealt with later.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         10                 DR. BEYEA: The thing we came up with

         11  is it's so cheap to get rid of this problem, that

         12  it's just a no-brainer to us.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         14                 DR. BEYEA: The 0.03-0.06 cents per

         15  kilowatt-hour, you just do it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         17                 DR. BEYEA: You don't argue about

         18  these things, because the more we argue, you know we

         19  sit here and argue about the details of an accident

         20  in spent fuel, we're just giving information to

         21  people who might actually use it.

         22                 I would like to read, if I could, the

         23  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I would like to

         25  indicate that I took the tour of the plant last
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          2  spring, Entergy did indicate a willingness to -- I

          3  don't want to, I'll let them speak for themselves,

          4  but they were very open to the prospect of dry cask.

          5                 DR. BEYEA: Yes, well, they are going

          6  to have to, they do some of it now anyway because

          7  they've run out of room, the question is what we

          8  would like to do is get most of it out, so you can

          9  go to open frame storage. We don't gain anything

         10  unless we go to the old open frame storage.

         11                 The old frames, before they reracked

         12  them, they had a lot of air gap, so if you had a

         13  loss of water, there was plenty of ways for the air

         14  to come in, but because they didn't have any place

         15  to send the fuel, they put in new Warren racks to

         16  make so they wouldn't go critical, so they could

         17  store much more fuel in there.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         19                 DR. BEYEA: It's the reracked, dense

         20  packed that are the danger. So, if you take out most

         21  of the spent fuel, we also want them then to get rid

         22  of those racks and put in the open frame racks.

         23  That's where you gain your safety. Plus you've also

         24  got most of the spent fuel out and into the dry

         25  casks.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Terrific.

          3                 Oh, just one final point. There was

          4  testimony with regard to the New York City Water

          5  Supply, do you have anything to add to that

          6  discussion on potential -- briefly, I know it's

          7  important, but anything that anyone has to add

          8  regarding the New York City Water Supply.

          9                 If it's not your area, then don't

         10  feel a need to comment.

         11                 MR. MANGANO: No, I haven't actually

         12  done that analysis, but I would just remark that

         13  anything, that you can't take anything that was

         14  presented at the licensing hearing more than 20

         15  years ago for granted at this stage, so I would

         16  think that a reevaluation is going to be necessary

         17  anyway.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 DR. BEYEA: Can I read this one quote

         21  from our paper about the airplane crash?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         23                 DR. BEYEA: "Based on calculations

         24  using phenomenological formula derived from

         25  experiments with projectiles incident on reinforced
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          2  concrete, penetration cannot be ruled out for a

          3  high-speed crash, but seems unlikely for a low-speed

          4  crash." That's what the paper actually said.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

          6  very much. I really appreciate the opportunity to

          7  hear your views and thank you for your

          8  recommendations and we'll be in touch.

          9                 Next panel. We're just going to

         10  briefly hear, we have a scientific panel on deck,

         11  but we have an elected official here Michael

         12  Kaplowitz. I would just like to put him on to hear

         13  his statement and then we'll go to the next

         14  scientific panel which was scheduled to go right

         15  after the one we just heard.

         16                 So we're calling Michael Kaplowitz,

         17  who will just put the next panel on notice. So,

         18  right after Mr. Kaplowitz speaks we'll have Rodger

         19  Shaw, Dr. David Lever, Jack Devine, will be

         20  speaking.

         21                 Mr. Kaplowitz.

         22                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We meet again.

         24                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Yes, sir. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you for
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          2  coming. We appreciate it.

          3                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Thank you, and thank

          4  you for your courtesy.

          5                 It's good that one environment chair

          6  treats another environment chair with due process.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thanks

          8  very much.

          9                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: A brief statement, if

         10  I might.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. We're

         12  going to put you through the same hoop.

         13                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Excellent.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         16  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

         17  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth or

         18  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         19                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Yes.

         20                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Good afternoon. My

         24  name is Michael Kaplowitz. I'm a Westchester County

         25  Legislator and Chairman of the Board's environment
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          2  health committee. Parenthetically I do represent

          3  Somars, Yorktown, New Castle, much of this area is

          4  within the ten-mile emergency evacuation planning

          5  zone.

          6                 Thank you for the opportunity to say

          7  a few words at this hearing. I'm here to give

          8  enthusiastic support for the resolution that is

          9  before your committee with a few small substantive

         10  additions.

         11                 Additionally I did appear before your

         12  Committee last year in --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         14                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: -- Support of an

         15  earlier environment committee resolution on Indian

         16  Point.

         17                 The Westchester County Board of

         18  Legislators has unanimously or overwhelmingly passed

         19  a series of Indian Point resolutions, five in total,

         20  over the last year and one half. I have included

         21  copies for the members, two in particular have

         22  called for Indian Point closure.

         23                 Just to walk you briefly through, Mr.

         24  Chairman, and through you to your Committee, you'll

         25  see stapled resolution series, each and every one of
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          2  these resolutions was unanimously adopted by the

          3  County Board of Legislators, including the

          4  legislator that represents the Buchanan, Cortlandt,

          5  Hendrick Hudson School District, most affected areas

          6  that I'll discuss briefly.

          7                 The point of that is that we were

          8  able to find in an area where there is not a lot of

          9  agreement, and in fact arguably a tremendous amount

         10  of contentiousness, we were able to find the middle

         11  ground that moved we believe this dialogue forward

         12  productively, and I think you'll see some of the

         13  language in these resolutions, and you've, I believe

         14  admirably, have incorporated a lot of those

         15  considerations in your resolved clause and in the

         16  resolution that you're considering.

         17                 The only two resolutions I want to

         18  draw your attention to are the resolution in 2003

         19  that you'll see at the back and the resolution just

         20  before that, 142 2002. They do call for an orderly

         21  closure and decommissioning of Indian Point with a

         22  feasibility study to consider the jobs, power and

         23  tax considerations. The last one in light of the

         24  Witt Report also calls for immediate closure due to

         25  that which is found in the Witt. In the matter of
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          2  intellectual honesty, that was passed 16 to 1. The

          3  aforementioned Cortlandt representative did not

          4  support that particular resolution.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Back to my testimony.

          7  The resolutions do cover security, closure and

          8  decommissioning, the issue of studying conversion of

          9  the Indian Point site and alternative fuels, and as

         10  well as most recently reaction to the Witt Report on

         11  evacuation planning. They create a body of work that

         12  is admirably summarized in your proposed resolution

         13  before you today. The reasons to remain concerned

         14  about Indian Point are many, but can be summarized

         15  as follows:

         16                 Potential operational difficulties

         17  endemic in aging plants.

         18                 Potential terrorist attack in this

         19  new difficult age and questionable security.

         20                 See inadequacies in what I call the

         21  "Paul Revere Syndrome," one by land, two by sea,

         22  three by air, when your board has questioned your

         23  committee, certainly we have done also in our

         24  appropriate fashion, it is quite clear that the

         25  security is problematic.

                                                            140

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 And when you see the January 2002

          3  Indian Point Guard study revealing overwhelming lack

          4  of confidence and security measures, obviously

          5  continues to underscore a concern that we have as

          6  public officials.

          7                 When combined with the potential for

          8  disastrous consequences should something untoward

          9  happen, then the consequences to people and property

         10  and the ability to adequately and timely evacuate

         11  the area residents within the number of Indian Point

         12  are problematic, and you then have compelling

         13  reasons to close and decommission.

         14                 In the interest of, and a comment I

         15  just wanted to mention, dealing with water, I did

         16  mention it the first time I was here. You are

         17  correct in your resolution dealing with the

         18  proximity of your reservoirs and the proximity of

         19  the Catskill, Delaware and Croton waterways

         20  themselves, the aqueducts, and when you're going to

         21  hear later about a plume theory, a questionable

         22  plume theory, in many scenarios that plume would

         23  take you right over the reservoirs or over these

         24  aqueducts and what would the potential fall-out be

         25  from an untoward incident on your water?
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          2                 When should we close Indian Point?

          3  When is the best time to plant an Oak tree? Twenty

          4  years ago. When is the next best time? Obviously

          5  today.

          6                 How do we close Indian Point? By

          7  recognizing that legitimate impediments to closure,

          8  mainly the loss of power in the region, the loss of

          9  significant tax revenue to the affected communities

         10  of Buchanan, Cortlandt, the Hendrick Hudson school

         11  district, and Westchester County, and the loss of

         12  potentially 1,500 jobs. These are all significant

         13  and relevant and must be addressed.

         14                 County Executive Spano, other elected

         15  officials and interested parties and myself are

         16  working on a series of draft RFPs that will study in

         17  a comprehensive fashion detailed, credible, regional

         18  and disinterested ways to affect the closing and

         19  decommissioning of Indian Point as related to power,

         20  taxes and jobs.

         21                 I will get you a copy of these draft

         22  RFPs, invite you and through you the City Council of

         23  New York to join us in the study effort with

         24  concurrent financial commitment, our budgets

         25  perhaps, maybe the magnitude isn't as large, but our
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          2  financial position is problematic as well, and, so,

          3  we are looking for some financial opportunity to

          4  partner in this draft RFP to help pay for this

          5  study.

          6                 This affect could be, we find the key

          7  that unlocks the door of opportunity and decision,

          8  and could lead directly and expeditiously to the

          9  orderly closure and decommissioning of Indian Point.

         10                 To view Indian Point in our

         11  community, the classic cost benefit analysis is a

         12  very helpful way. In public service that's how we

         13  obviously weigh many of these things. It's a

         14  weighing process. Such analysis shows benefits of

         15  Indian Point that are financial, in some ways purely

         16  financial, and very likely replaceable; at a

         17  potentially huge cost on the cost side, to

         18  potentially 20 million people living within 50 miles

         19  if something untoward happens. In some a cost

         20  benefit scale is heavily tipped against a nuclear

         21  Indian Point.

         22                 To the proposed resolution itself,

         23  and I'll finish my comments up on this. It's very

         24  well drafted, if I might, it's quite a good

         25  iteration of the most relevant and timely thoughts
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          2  on the subjects and the environment, if you will, as

          3  reflected in the New York City area municipal

          4  resolutions passed thus far.

          5                 A few small proposed amendments, if I

          6  may? First, the word "decommissioning" should be

          7  preceded by the word "closure," since

          8  decommissioning without closure is like eating the

          9  stake without killing the cow. You have to pull the

         10  plug before you clean up the plant.

         11                 Second, the phrase "renewable energy"

         12  is admirable and the Holy Grail for all of us.

         13  However, extensive study by the Board of

         14  Legislator's Environment and Health Committee thus

         15  far has shown that true renewable energy, such as

         16  geothermal, wind, photovoltaic, hydrogen-based fuel

         17  cell, might not be technologically possible or

         18  efficient at this time at Indian Point site.

         19  However, alternative fuels, such as natural gas, are

         20  readily available and far less obnoxious than

         21  nuclear fuel.

         22                 Also, conversion of the IP nuclear

         23  facilities themselves might not be practical since

         24  the Turbine building and others are probably too

         25  radioactive to be reused. However, conversion of the
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          2  Indian Point 230 acre site is absolutely possible,

          3  as done in Colorado and South Dakota. Therefore, I

          4  would add the word "site conversion."

          5                 Again, parenthetically, Entergy

          6  themselves have an Article 10, a proposal to build

          7  332, totaled 330 megawatts of natural gas driven

          8  peaking power. If, in fact, they can do 330, they

          9  can do 2230 which would wrap up all of the mega

         10  wattage and allow them to remain in the revenue

         11  profit-making business, and this is a capitalist

         12  system.

         13                 Additionally, conservation efforts,

         14  i.e. demand site alternatives must also be

         15  considered since the recent California experience

         16  has shown motivated governmental and citizen action

         17  can save significant megawattage. Inclusion of

         18  language calling for an energy demand side analysis

         19  would also be appropriate.

         20                 Therefore, I would propose you amend

         21  the resolve clause slightly by calling for "the site

         22  conversion to a facility powered by a renewable or

         23  alternative energy source with due consideration for

         24  the study and enactment of comprehensive

         25  conservation and demand site alternatives."
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          2                 In conclusion, I, and my colleagues,

          3  urge you to adopt this resolution with changes.

          4  Thank you for your fine efforts, and look forward to

          5  continuing to work with you to close and

          6  decommission Indian Point to better protect all our

          7  New York residents.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          9                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Thank you, gentlemen.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chairman.

         12                 We're joined by Council Member

         13  Jennings, a member of this Committee from Queens.

         14                 With regard to renewables, you had

         15  read off a list. Actually, I didn't have any of

         16  those things in mind when I dropped in this

         17  renewable. One of the other committees I serve on is

         18  the Sanitation Committee and when I was a staff

         19  analyst to this Committee which I now chair that,

         20  once upon a time used to have Sanitation as part of

         21  its purview, and I got interested in some of the

         22  technologies out there that, you know, are used to

         23  convert MSW into synthetic gases called --

         24                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Biomass and other --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Syn gases, that
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          2  kind of thing, and so I'm looking upon MSW as a

          3  potential renewable resources, you know, acid

          4  hydrolysis processes, I mean it's a whole thing.

          5  And, so, I really wasn't thinking of windmills or

          6  solar panels, whatever, it's hard to get to 2,000

          7  megawatts using those, but there are facilities

          8  using this technology throughout Europe and it's

          9  kind of a hobby of mine, and, so, I thought that

         10  might be an opportunity to solve somebody's either

         11  up there, or somebody's MSW problem, as well as

         12  fulfill the Governor's renewable portfolio standard,

         13  and make the place non-nuclear. It's nice to dream,

         14  but I think that was my thought.

         15                 With regard to the recommendation

         16  that was just made by the prior panel, Dr. Beyea,

         17  about putting together a panel of scientific experts

         18  because the federal government is apparently

         19  non-cooperative, is that something that ever crossed

         20  your mind to do, to try to put your own science

         21  together?

         22                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Exactly.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Because I'm

         24  contemplating this at the recommendation of Dr.

         25  Beyea, and so I'm thinking you're a chair of an
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          2  environmental committee, faced with this before I

          3  was, and did you think of that and what happened?

          4                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: We had called for, and

          5  I didn't quite hear full testimony, if it was

          6  related to evacuation planning, related to the

          7  science of Indian Point --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: He had made a

          9  recommendation that it's difficult for people like

         10  myself and Peter Vallone, Jr., and Alan Jennings to

         11  digest all the fast and flying science that's coming

         12  before us and trying to separate fact from hyperbole

         13  and bluster from nonsense and so we recommended that

         14  you get some propeller heads in the room

         15  essentially.

         16                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: The answer is yes,

         17  we're looking at propeller heads, if you would,

         18  that's what the draft --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's like not

         20  a pejorative term, by the way.

         21                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: It's a term of

         22  science, I think.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Exactly.

         24                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Certainly in the

         25  metropolitan New York area.
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          2                 Draft RFP is just for that. The

          3  request for proposal is in draft form a three-part

          4  proposal. The first point is to say what if Indian

          5  Point closed tomorrow due to ... pressure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          7                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: What would the affect

          8  be on the power grid? What would the affect be on

          9  jobs? What would it be on taxes? What would the

         10  affect be?

         11                 More than that, are there

         12  conservation demand side alternatives that are

         13  available? And are there alternative fuels and

         14  modalities that we can look at?

         15                 The RFP by definition will bring in

         16  disinterested credible scientific people.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         18                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: The panel that you're

         19  referring to --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But it also

         21  starts with the premise that there is sufficient

         22  science on the table to say that the plant should be

         23  closed. I guess that would be like the starting

         24  point.

         25                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: That is our starting

                                                            149

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  point.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          4                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: And you see the

          5  resolutions that build to that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          7                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: If you're looking

          8  preparatory to that, then clearly you'll do your own

          9  methodology as we've done ours.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         11                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: But what's going to

         12  come out of this in many minds is a confirmation of

         13  why we're at that starting point.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         15                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: That is that if in

         16  fact we get back from credible, disinterested

         17  technical people is that in fact you have the best

         18  modality already --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         20                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: We're going to find

         21  that out. We don't believe that that's the case.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         23                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: So, the RFP will start

         24  at, but will confirm what many of us believe as

         25  public officials and citizenry and in the scientific
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          2  community as well.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          4                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: So, that's the first

          5  one.

          6                 The second one will look credibly at

          7  the idea of converting Indian Point, as we've

          8  mentioned here to natural gas or alternative fuels,

          9  including renewables that will be in there. And we

         10  will be testing your theory --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         12                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: -- The idea that you

         13  have and other theories as to whether the state of

         14  technology today and the financial world today

         15  allows for 1,900 of megawatts to be produced by a

         16  different fuel.

         17                 I've joked that if enough of you and

         18  I could go up to Indian Point, our hot air could

         19  probably dry a couple of these turbines, but we're

         20  not renewable, so we have to find other ways to do

         21  it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         23                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: And the third study of

         24  the RFP is specifically to the county exec's idea

         25  and to give him his due. He believes that
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          2  Westchester County itself and perhaps on a regional

          3  basis need to look at a condemnation at full value

          4  or some kind of takeover.

          5                 I don't share that thought, I believe

          6  that Entergy will, in profit-making fashion,

          7  voluntarily in a negotiated fashion sit at a table,

          8  pull out from the bottom draw their plans for 2,230

          9  megawatts natural gas, which I believe has already

         10  been studied, if they were a reasonable

         11  profit-making entity, and in fact we will then

         12  decide on shareholder, taxpayer and rate payer

         13  contribution in fair fashion to the cost of how do

         14  we decommission, how do we go on a revenue basis

         15  going forward to remunerate them and then how do we

         16  build a new plant.

         17                 So, all three of those draft RFPs are

         18  a mouthful but it does begin to answer questions

         19  that we, like you, have, which is we're not

         20  scientists, we're just not the technical people.

         21  Give us, as policy makers, the answers, because our

         22  constituents for sure are crying that they want

         23  Indian Point closed in ever-creasing numbers. I have

         24  been approached by not a single person, other than

         25  either a worker, or a family member, or someone who
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          2  was directly tax affected by that facility and say

          3  please keep this plant open. And I don't impugn the

          4  motivations of any of the above --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Because I understand

          7  why we're therefore looking for a credible way so as

          8  not to drive the Hendrick Hudson school district

          9  into bankruptcy, if you will --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         11                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: We have a

         12  responsibility to them and we're going to do what we

         13  can to come through with that responsibility, but at

         14  the same time we have the responsibility to the

         15  public at large, and that's why we are at this

         16  particular position of closing, but looking for

         17  credible alternatives.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great. Well,

         19  thank you very much, Mr. Kaplowitz. We appreciate

         20  the opportunity to hear your views and thank you,

         21  and we'll be in touch with you to get whatever

         22  information we can about what you're doing up there

         23  with the RFPs and --

         24                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Draft RFPs at this

         25  point.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Draft RFPs. So

          3  thank you very much, we appreciate it.

          4                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman. I appreciate it. Thank you to the

          6  Committee.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And as I said

          8  before, the next panel, Roger Shaw, Dr. David

          9  Leaver, Mr. Jack Devine.

         10                 Thank you very much. Thanks for being

         11  here. I appreciate the opportunity to hear from you.

         12                 MR. SHAW: Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thanks for your

         14  patience.

         15                 MR. SHAW: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Donna DeCostanzo

         17  will administer a group oath, and then we can

         18  proceed.

         19                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         20  right hand.

         21                 In the testimony that you're about to

         22  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         23  whole truth or nothing but the truth?

         24                 MR. SHAW: I do.

         25                 MR. LEAVER: I do.
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          2                 MR. DEVINE: I do.

          3                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          5  much. And in whatever order you wish, you can state

          6  your names for the record and proceed with your

          7  testimony.

          8                 Now, it's my understanding that

          9  you're here at the request of the Entergy people,

         10  and you're being paid for your presence here. That

         11  no way, in my mind, you know, impugns the scientific

         12  validity of what you have to bring to the table, but

         13  for the purpose of people in the audience, they

         14  should know that you're here, courtesy of the

         15  Entergy people and we greatly appreciate your being

         16  here and we greatly appreciate the people from

         17  Entergy who have made these people available to us.

         18                 MR. SHAW: Absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         20                 MR. SHAW: Thank you.

         21                 My name is Roger Shaw, and first of

         22  all, I'd like to thank the Committee for inviting me

         23  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

         25  put the mic sort of right in front of your mouth
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          2  there.

          3                 MR. SHAW: Thank you for inviting --

          4  can you hear me? To provide testimony on this issue

          5  of utmost importance regarding the health and the

          6  safety of the people of New York City.

          7                 I can assure you that my remarks are

          8  offered today with public safety as the primary

          9  issue.

         10                 I am a radiological engineer and

         11  board certified health physicist with the American

         12  Board of Health Physics with over 27 years of

         13  professional experience in radiation protection,

         14  occupational health, environmental radiation,

         15  emergency preparedness.

         16                 I am the former Director of Radiation

         17  Protection at Three Mile Island and Oyster Creek

         18  nuclear plants. I am the principal of RP Shaw

         19  Consulting, located in Red Bank, New Jersey. I

         20  currently serve as the project manager of an

         21  independent expert task force to evaluate emergency

         22  preparedness at the Indian Point Nuclear Plant.

         23                 My brief testimony today focuses on

         24  the scope and make-up of our task force and our

         25  assessment of the draft report by the James Lee Witt
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          2  Associates dated January 10th, 2003, entitled Review

          3  of Emergency Preparedness at Indian Point and

          4  Millstone. Our task force has been engaged by

          5  Entergy Nuclear for the express purpose of providing

          6  advice, guidance and oversight of efforts to improve

          7  radiological emergency preparedness for the Indian

          8  Point Entergy Center. These efforts are ongoing as

          9  we speak.

         10                 The Charter that established this

         11  group and our mission explicitly establishes that we

         12  are fully independent, and that there are no

         13  constraints whatsoever on our review process,

         14  deliberations or deliverables.

         15                 Our independent export task force

         16  embodies extensive in-depth experience and expertise

         17  in virtually every aspect of emergency management.

         18                 Members have nearly 300 years of

         19  collective experience directly applicable to the

         20  task at hand and other consultants available to us

         21  provide a total combined nuclear experience

         22  approaching 500 years.

         23                 Our members include those with

         24  degrees at the Masters and PhD level, University

         25  Professors, Professional Engineers, Certified health

                                                            157

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Physicists, nuclear plant operators and former FEMA,

          3  NRC and US National Laboratory staff members.

          4                 The Task Force has expertise in a

          5  wide range of disciplines, including:

          6                 - reactor design and safety analysis.

          7                 - severe accident consequences and

          8  management.

          9                 - probabilistic risk assessment.

         10                 - radiological source term analysis.

         11                 - meteorology and atmospheric

         12  dispersion.

         13                 - dose assessment.

         14                 - radiation health effects.

         15                 - emergency preparedness and

         16  management.

         17                 - emergency notifications.

         18                 - evacuation modeling; and sociology

         19  and public behavior in crisis situations.

         20                 Members of our Task Force are clearly

         21  identified by name and that each member has signed

         22  the transmittal of our comments on the Witt Report,

         23  and a copy of our response to the draft Witt Report

         24  is attached to my written testimony today.

         25                 Two members of the Task Force are
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          2  here today and will brief the committee on the

          3  results of our evaluation. Mr. Jack Devine, who was

          4  the primary author of our report, will provide a

          5  synopsis of our findings and recommendations. Dr.

          6  David Leaver, a recognized expert in safety analysis

          7  will address the key topic of terrorism and its

          8  consequences.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         11                 MR. DeVINE: Good afternoon. My name

         12  is Jack DeVine. As Roger mentioned, I am a member of

         13  the committee, of the Task Force. You have our

         14  report, and in the interest of economy we chose not

         15  to put in separate testimony.

         16                 The report captures our thinking I

         17  think quite clearly and we felt that was the best

         18  written testimony to provide.

         19                 I know you've got a ton of material

         20  to read.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: When we started

         22  this process I didn't wear these reading glasses,

         23  and my hair was all one color.

         24                 MR. DeVINE: And we're going to try to

         25  help you in your quest to separate foster from
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          2  nonsense, as you mentioned to the last witness. I'm

          3  not sure where we want to be on the scale, but we're

          4  going to try to give you our situation quite

          5  clearly.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          7                 MR. DeVINE: With respect to our

          8  report, we would urge you to read it thoroughly. We

          9  tried very hard to make it a concise, clear, simple

         10  report. The conclusions in each case are boxed.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This is the

         12  report you speak of, right?

         13                 MR. DeVINE: That's the report that we

         14  submitted. There's a brief cover letter, the report

         15  itself is 15 pages. There are appendices that go

         16  another 25, but we tried very hard to cut through

         17  all the stuff that's in the Witt Report --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         19                 MR. DeVINE: And we'd ask you to read

         20  that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I can read

         22  the Witt Report, I can certainly read this.

         23                 MR. DeVINE: Yes, sir.

         24                 I've been involved professionally in

         25  nuclear power for about 40 years, not quite that
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          2  long. I won't bore you with details of my

          3  background, it is listed in the appendix of the

          4  report. However, one specific element I think is

          5  worthy of mentioning. I was with the General Public

          6  Utility System for 22 years, starting 1970. As you

          7  may know, GPU is the owner of the Three Mile Island

          8  Plant. I was involved in the immediate response and

          9  then recovery for the next six years after the TMI

         10  accident.

         11                 And it is a very central part of my

         12  being. It's very real, it's very pertinent. Nuclear

         13  safety is not an abstract concept for me. I was

         14  involved in reacting to the accident, in examining

         15  the results of the accident, of understanding its

         16  causes and its consequences. Further, I lived in the

         17  community and I understand I think the trauma that

         18  my friends and neighbors went through in that

         19  accident.

         20                 It's a fundamental part of my make-up

         21  and I certainly carry it to our task force efforts

         22  and to this testimony this morning.

         23                 In my testimony I'll be summarizing

         24  our conclusion in fairly brief form. As you well

         25  know, the Witt Report is 500 pages. You asked us to
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          2  be brief and we're going to try to do that. So this

          3  is a very summary level pitch.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Sure.

          5                 MR. DeVINE: And we'll try to respond

          6  to any detailed questions that you have.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great.

          8                 MR. DeVINE: To our conclusions: In

          9  summary, our team unanimously found --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is there a

         11  conclusion page that I can reference as you speak?

         12                 MR. DeVINE: Yes, there is.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Go ahead, do it

         14  verbally.

         15                 MR. DeVINE: Page 15 of our report is

         16  the conclusions. Early in the report is an overview,

         17  and I think those two will summarize it pretty

         18  quickly, and I will follow that fairly closely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's fine.

         20  That's fine.

         21                 MR. DeVINE: Our team unanimously

         22  found the Witt Report to be flawed in fundamental

         23  ways. It is illogical, it's conclusions are

         24  unsupported, and in our view they are not

         25  supportable. It is wrong on many facts and is sorely
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          2  lacking in perspective. It is simply not a valid

          3  basis in its current form for decision-making.

          4                 Now, one point on that,

          5  interestingly, as we conducted this review, we found

          6  it was somewhat unscientific because the Witt Report

          7  is very unscientific. So, we're not going to get

          8  into in this discussion, at least in my piece, into

          9  rems and rads and cesium and that sort of thing.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         11                 It purports certain very simple

         12  points, and we examined whether or not those are

         13  viable and supportable.

         14                 Let me give you some examples. Number

         15  one, the Witt Report draws conclusions on matters of

         16  great importance with little apparent basis, other

         17  than the opinions of its authors. As a notable

         18  example, a central premise of the Witt Report is

         19  that a terrorist caused radiation release from the

         20  Indian Point would be more severe in magnitude and

         21  timing than that for which the emergency management

         22  process is designed to accommodate. This is

         23  presented without reference, basis or explanation.

         24  In fact, he states in the report that it wasn't his

         25  job to find out if that is true. And it is simply
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          2  not correct. The potential terrorist caused

          3  consequences are not fundamentally different or more

          4  severe than the consequences of accidents or natural

          5  events such as earthquakes, for which emergency

          6  management processes and systems have been designed.

          7                 Dr. Leaver is going to present this

          8  topic in more detail, but let me make two points

          9  now.

         10                 First, the Witt Report is often

         11  described as providing new and alarming insights

         12  into Indian Point's vulnerability to terrorism.

         13                 On the contrary, the report did not

         14  examine this issue at all.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Back up again on

         16  that just a second.

         17                 MR. DeVINE: The Witt Report is often

         18  characterized as providing new and alarming insights

         19  about the terrorist vulnerability in Indian Point.

         20  It doesn't do that. There is virtually no

         21  information about the terrorist risk. The authors

         22  simply assume it to be very great, without basis,

         23  and then draw the conclusion also without basis that

         24  the emergency plans do not provide adequate

         25  protection from that risk.
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          2                 I think you'll find this clear. I

          3  downloaded this from the Internet when it first came

          4  out in anticipation that this was going to be

          5  something that was going to put a lot of

          6  information, shed a lot of light, perhaps points of

          7  contention on the subject of the terrorist threat,

          8  and I was amazed that it simply doesn't cover it.

          9                 There's a chapter in the Witt Report

         10  that talks about the -- I forget, chapter three,

         11  it's basically the release form, or the accident

         12  threat or something like that, and it's pretty much

         13  a generic discussion of what happens when radiation

         14  goes into the air. It is not an assessment of

         15  terrorist vulnerability, of terrorist consequences.

         16  They accept at face value that there would be more

         17  severe in magnitude in timing and then go from

         18  there. It's a fundamental gap in the Witt report,

         19  certainly from the standpoint of using it from a

         20  decision point.

         21                 Secondly, I would urge you not, and I

         22  realize this is not the subject of discourse so I

         23  will just mention it now, I would urge you not to

         24  accept at face value that nuclear plants are

         25  attractive targets for terrorism. Mr. Brodsky
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          2  pointed out that terrorists are smart, and I, as a

          3  reasonable person I would expect that they're going

          4  to go after targets which are in fact somewhat

          5  accessible and in which they would have a reasonable

          6  chance of creating enough damage to harm people

          7  visibly, and it's extremely difficult to do that at

          8  a nuclear power plant. I would simply urge you to

          9  keep that perspective in mind.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I guess that

         11  would also depend on the level of sophistication of

         12  the terrorists and the weapons that they might be

         13  able to possess.

         14                 MR. DeVINE: Of course.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I mean, we had a

         16  couple of guys with screwdrivers, or box-cutters, or

         17  whatever it is that brought the nation to its knees

         18  on September 11th, and one can only, you know, fear

         19  that as they get more sophisticated, something short

         20  of having like a nuclear device themselves but some

         21  sort of armament or ability or capability that would

         22  be more than that which you saw on September 11th.

         23  So, it's something people are certainly worried

         24  about in a post-September 11th world, and I guess

         25  some of the things that Mr. Witt talks about are
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          2  more almost sociological in nature about people have

          3  a different mindset and they're going to respond in

          4  a different way and this whole shadow evacuation

          5  that people are, you know, at a pin drop are going

          6  to be having all kinds of -- anyway, I don't mean to

          7  testify here or ask you questions.

          8                 MR. DeVINE: The point is well taken.

          9  My point is simply I would urge you not to accept at

         10  face value this idea that this is a vulnerable

         11  target, that obviously if you're a terrorist, that's

         12  where you're going to go because I think even with

         13  very sophisticated capability, the likelihood is

         14  they're going to go to places where they can cause

         15  real damage, real harm, real carnage, not a

         16  statistical increase in cancer 30 years from now.

         17  There's a fundamental difficulty of attacking a

         18  nuclear plant that is simply a reality.

         19                 It does not mean that we should not

         20  be dealing with it responsibly and we are trying to.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         22                 MR. DeVINE: I'm trying to simply give

         23  you that perspective.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         25                 MR. DeVINE: Next point.
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          2                 The Witt Report repeatedly fails to

          3  provide perspective or context, and this is an area

          4  that we were very troubled with because we feel it

          5  makes the report quite misleading.

          6                 Some examples. It describes the many

          7  challenges related to protecting the public during

          8  emergency conditions, things like you mentioned,

          9  communications difficulties, shadow evacuations, et

         10  cetera, implying that these are extraordinary and

         11  perhaps intractable problems. They really aren't. In

         12  fact, they are --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Excuse me, I

         14  would just like to ask the Sergeant to close the

         15  door, please. The noise is very disruptive. Thank

         16  you.

         17                 MR. DeVINE: Thank you.

         18                 These are not intractable problems.

         19  These, in fact, are the stock and trade of emergency

         20  planners. They apply to every kind of emergency

         21  everywhere.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm sorry, I got

         23  lost after the door was shut.

         24                 MR. DeVINE: He tabulates and

         25  emphasizes the many difficulties in protecting the
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          2  public, such as, you know, not everybody speaks

          3  English. You know, it might happen during rush hour,

          4  there may be a bridge down, some people may leave,

          5  they may pick up their kids in school. These are

          6  across the board, across the nation, across the

          7  world for any emergency planning, these are things

          8  people simply have to deal with, and he sort of

          9  raises these up and puts them in the pile of things

         10  that everybody have to be worried about, when in

         11  fact there's really nothing new and nothing unique

         12  here.

         13                 Another example: He cites many, many

         14  shortcomings. In fact, the bulk of his report is a

         15  catalog of shortcomings in emergency preparedness

         16  methods at the state, federal local and company

         17  level.

         18                 He doesn't put these in perspective.

         19  Some are valid, some are not. Some are minor, some

         20  are significant. He recommends improvements to

         21  these, but in no case did we find in his report

         22  anywhere where he identifies a specific

         23  recommendation that must be taken in order to have a

         24  satisfactory emergency management process. And that

         25  ties to his final conclusion, because that's
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          2  bothersome. He says in aggregate that they cause the

          3  emergency management process to be ineffective, but

          4  he can't point to anything that is serious enough

          5  that it must be solved. He simply lists a lot of

          6  things that you could do to improvement. And the

          7  fact the emergency management process is a

          8  constantly improving process everywhere.

          9                 Thirdly, he is very critical of the

         10  methodology, and you mentioned this before, of

         11  emergency exercises, and therefore their usefulness

         12  in validity. But he fails to acknowledge that

         13  nuclear plant exercises have enormous value as they

         14  are done right now, and its virtually non-existent

         15  in protection from industrial events and other

         16  industries, infrequently and methodically engaging

         17  all of the public and private organizations that

         18  have to interact in dealing with an emergency, and

         19  that's a very philosophical point because he seems

         20  to argue, you know, this kind of an action or this

         21  prescribed rule or this part of a procedure may not

         22  deal with this specific event, but he seems not to

         23  accept the more fundamental principal that with an

         24  established communication system and resources in

         25  place to deal with the twists and turns that will
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          2  occur for any emergency condition that there is an

          3  inherent effectiveness.

          4                 His arguments against, in our view,

          5  his arguments about, you know, with respect to

          6  disagreeing with the methodology of emergency

          7  procedures are really quibbling, they're not

          8  fundamental in context.

          9                 Third point: Witt argues that nuclear

         10  plants such as Indian Point that are adjacent to

         11  high population areas should have different

         12  requirements than plants otherwise situated, because

         13  protective actions are more difficult in the

         14  consequences of delay or hire, and certainly that's

         15  an issue which you're sensitive to. But the point is

         16  that in fact they do have different requirements.

         17  Every emergency plan is site specific, it takes into

         18  account, it is mandated to take into account the

         19  population, the topology, the geography, the

         20  meteorology, all of the factors that influence

         21  effective emergency planning. And Witt acknowledges

         22  that with respect to population and the timing for

         23  evacuation, that it's been handled correctly. So,

         24  while he argues on one hand that, gee, it should be

         25  a different set of requirements, he seems to ignore
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          2  the fact that they are different and that they have

          3  been properly handled by his own assessment.

          4                 From all of these, and this is the

          5  bottom line, the Witt report leaves to the

          6  conclusion the current radiological response system

          7  and capabilities are not adequate to overcome their

          8  combined weight and protect the people from an

          9  unacceptable dose of radiation in the event of a

         10  release from Indian Point.

         11                 We disagree emphatically with this

         12  conclusion.

         13                 He provides no supporting analysis or

         14  explanation of how these individuals, many of which

         15  are minor and/or separable factors, somehow combine

         16  to render the whole system impractical. He doesn't

         17  attribute individual weight to the problems. He

         18  indicates that none is individually so severe that

         19  would stop it, but he says that all together they're

         20  too hard and he leaves it at that, with no

         21  supporting analysis. How much is too much? It leaves

         22  any responsible party in a quandary about how to

         23  address that fundamental finding, because nobody can

         24  tell how many of those problems must be solved so

         25  that some weight now tips the balance the other way
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          2  and now this emergency planning process is suddenly

          3  once again viable.

          4                 It is a indefensible in our view to

          5  reach a conclusion of that importance without clear

          6  and solid foundation. And as you already pointed

          7  out, that is the Witt Report. Everything else is a

          8  lot of detail but the bottom line in the Witt report

          9  is that it won't work, and he arrives at that

         10  conclusion without a trail that one can analyze or

         11  assess. And that's why I said that our analysis is

         12  less scientific and more fundamental.

         13                 Without question, protecting the

         14  public from radiation that could be released from a

         15  nuclear plant an accident or by an act of nature or

         16  by terrorism is the most fundamental responsibility

         17  of anyone involved in nuclear plant design

         18  construction, operation or emergency preparedness,

         19  and I will tell you, I harbor no illusions about the

         20  dawning challenges of effective emergency

         21  management.

         22                 Many of Witt's observations are

         23  valid, some of his recommendations are sound, but

         24  his conclusion is not. He catalogs problems, he

         25  misstates the population issue, he accepts without
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          2  challenge an incorrect premise about the terrorism

          3  threat, and then he adds it all up to a very

          4  fatalistic conclusion that's just too hard. And we

          5  find that very, very troubling. I should have

          6  mentioned it at the beginning, but I think you

          7  alluded to it earlier, that we are dealing with the

          8  draft Witt report, and perhaps he'll provide some

          9  more sharpness on that point, but in the draft issue

         10  it simply wasn't there.

         11                 We know that nuclear plant emergency

         12  management processes work. We know that those that

         13  are in place --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We know that

         15  they work but we haven't had that many accidents to

         16  kind of like test them.

         17                 MR. DeVINE: That's right. That's

         18  right. That's interesting, and, again, take a look

         19  at the report; for example, one of our Committee

         20  members who is in fact a recognized expert on things

         21  like evacuation points out that where there have

         22  been evacuations, not as a result of nuclear plant

         23  accidents but because a train derailment or

         24  something like that, in an area that happens to be

         25  covered by a nuclear plant emergency plan, they have
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          2  gone far more smoothly and far more effectively and

          3  far more quickly than others. Clearly, there is

          4  value. I think the question is, are they so

          5  deficient that they wouldn't work, or is the value

          6  inherently there and fine? And that's really our

          7  bottom line.

          8                 Let me make another point, because --

          9  as an aside, because it came up over and over and

         10  over again this morning with respect to Three Mile

         11  Island. You know, having lived through that, I

         12  always find myself sort of calibrating against, you

         13  know different issues against that reality, and

         14  reality is a pretty good teacher, and if you're

         15  thinking if it's 40,000 foot level by TMI, here's

         16  the bottom line I think. First of all, it's an

         17  accident that we in the industry did not think would

         18  happen, so it taught us the sobering lesson that

         19  we're not always as smart as we think we are, and

         20  I'm somewhat receptive when our critics say you guys

         21  don't know at all. We've got to constantly train

         22  ourselves to expect the unexpected.

         23                 I think emergency plans are kind of

         24  designed in that way, and that's a reflection of

         25  that, recognizing they're so much more solid than
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          2  they were, they were almost non-existent before the

          3  TMI accident.

          4                 Secondly, the accident was very

          5  severe, it gave us an example of what nuclear safety

          6  means. We wrecked the core in two and a half hours,

          7  and it was in effect a full melt of the core.

          8                 Would you like me to hold for a

          9  second?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just repeat the

         11  last sentence.

         12                 MR. DeVINE: Second point. Big picture

         13  from TMI. How much damage a nuclear accident can

         14  cause in a plant? It was very severe. It was really

         15  a full melt of the core, and, in fact, it wasn't

         16  until two years later they actually realized how

         17  significantly the core melted. So any of us in our

         18  business who think that this nuclear safety stuff is

         19  a scientific analysis and it's a calculation of heat

         20  removal and that sort of thing, it's pretty shocking

         21  to see the real thing.

         22                 On the other hand, the release of

         23  radioactivity from that accident was far, far lower

         24  than any of the projections that existed at that

         25  time would have predicted. On the part of the NRC,
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          2  the NRC today has been accused of being --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It was less

          4  you're saying? You mean the amount that was reduced

          5  was less than anyone would have been --

          6                 MR. DeVINE: Far more than anybody.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Far less

          8  released than anyone would have estimated.

          9                 MR. DeVINE: Far less was released.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Considering the

         11  extent of the meltdown.

         12                 MR. DeVINE: Right. Much worse event,

         13  accident than we expected, much less release. Tying

         14  those two things together, all the factors that tend

         15  to diminish release in a real accident have been

         16  either not considered or were very conservatively

         17  considered, such that the actual release was much

         18  less.

         19                 And then the ultimate bottom line in

         20  terms of people is that no one was hurt despite a

         21  severe meltdown. No one was hurt and that has been

         22  studied and evaluated for 20 years and every

         23  independent evaluation that's looked into that has

         24  come to the same conclusion, no one was hurt from

         25  any radiation-related consequence of the accident.
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          2                 Final, final point is everybody was

          3  terrified. So, there is no question in my mind that

          4  this is a traumatic event, and people are afraid of

          5  nuclear power plants, and in it if there's any

          6  vulnerability to terrorism at Indian Point, it is

          7  because, not because of the high potential to hurt

          8  people but because of the high potential to scare

          9  people.

         10                 So we have to recognize how real that

         11  visceral anxiety is and how it does affect

         12  everything we do.

         13                 I apologize for a somewhat rambling

         14  summary, but I wanted to capture some of the points

         15  that came out this morning. Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         17  you. Because that's the purpose of this. I mean, if

         18  you heard stuff that came before and that's the

         19  whole idea to have that kind of give and take. Thank

         20  you very much, Mr. DeVine, right?

         21                 MR. DeVINE: Right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, please

         23  continue.

         24                 MR. LEAVER: My name is Dave Leaver.

         25  My area of professional experience is with nuclear
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          2  power plant design safety analysis and probabilistic

          3  risk assessment, PRA. I have an electrical

          4  engineering degree from University of Washington,

          5  bachelor degree and a PhD from Stamford University

          6  in mechanical engineering. I was an officer in the

          7  Navy in the Nuclear Submarine Program.

          8                 My testimony today stems from work

          9  which I did as part of this independent task force

         10  which Roger Shaw mentioned that reviewed the draft

         11  Witt Report.

         12                 Although not mentioned in the stated

         13  purpose of the draft Witt Report, it's clear that

         14  the underlying context of the report is the implicit

         15  threat of terrorism post-September 11th.

         16                 It's also clear that the report's

         17  assumptions regarding the potential consequences of

         18  terrorist-induced radiological release at Indian

         19  Point, had a strong bearing on the report's

         20  conclusions, in particular the conclusion which

         21  we've heard a number of times today, and I'll quote,

         22  current radiological response system and

         23  capabilities are not adequate to protect the people

         24  from an unacceptable dose of radiation in the event

         25  of a release from Indian Point.

                                                            179

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 I'd like to make three points today

          3  in my testimony. The first point is that contrary to

          4  the draft Witt report, the radiological consequences

          5  from a terrorist event at a nuclear plant are not

          6  fundamentally different from other types of events,

          7  non-terrorist events that are already considered.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I could, just

          9  now you heard Mr. DeVine's testimony, as well as I

         10  did, and to the extent that you'll be speaking to

         11  the same issues and pretty much the same slant on

         12  it, I mean rather than to be duplicative, to the

         13  extent that you can bring value added to the

         14  discussion that was not sort of already covered by

         15  Mr. DeVine.

         16                 MR. LEAVER: I understand. I think I'm

         17  going to be able to do that. Absolutely. I'll

         18  certainly respect that and go quickly and try to

         19  deal with some additional points.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But my wife is

         21  from a Navy family, so I'll cut you some slack.

         22                 MR. LEAVER: There you go. Okay, glad

         23  to hear that.

         24                 The second point I want to make is

         25  that while improvements can and are being made to
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          2  emergency planning at Indian Point, that it does

          3  today adequately address terrorist events. Again,

          4  this is contrary to the Witt Report. And the third

          5  point I want to make is updated information which is

          6  expected to show that the likelihood of spent fuel

          7  pool accident at Indian Point is low and would not

          8  pose undue risk to the public.

          9                 All right, the first point:

         10  Consequences of terrorist-induced events. If you

         11  consider two types of core damage events, events

         12  which could cause an accident such as happened at

         13  Three Mile Island in 1979, one type is accidental

         14  events where the core damage is caused by an

         15  equipment failure or human error.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         17                 MR. LEAVER: These events have been

         18  considered for years.

         19                 The second would be a

         20  terrorist-induced event, which has been considered

         21  since September 11th. From a technical standpoint,

         22  there is no difference in the magnitude and timing

         23  of a radionuclide releases from these two types of

         24  events. Both types events could involve slower or

         25  faster accidents, smaller or larger accidents.
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          2                 Today's emergency planning at Indian

          3  Point, everywhere, in fact, was developed on

          4  radionuclide releases from accidental events, but it

          5  would be equally applicable to releases from

          6  terrorist-induced events.

          7                 I would also add for your

          8  consideration that there has been a great deal of

          9  evaluation since September 11th of terrorist

         10  accidents, and the implications of nuclear safety.

         11                 Our task force reviewed two recent

         12  detailed technical studies on the consequences of

         13  terrorist attacks on nuclear plants.

         14                 The first study, addressing the risk

         15  to the public from an armed terrorist ground attack

         16  of a nuclear plant, and I was a co-author of that

         17  study; the second study addressed the effect of a

         18  nuclear plant on a nuclear plant from impact of a

         19  large commercial aircraft, on a direct hit on the

         20  containment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         22                 MR. LEAVER: We reviewed these

         23  studies. In my judgment, these studies were very

         24  complete factual documents with well-supported

         25  conclusions.
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          2                 These studies concluded the

          3  following, the risk to the public from a core damage

          4  event caused by an armed terrorist ground attack on

          5  a US commercial plant is small, and is actually less

          6  than the risk from accidental core damage events

          7  postulated for US commercial plants that have been

          8  considered for the last couple of decades.

          9                 Second point: A direct hit on a

         10  nuclear plant containment by a large fully loaded

         11  commercial aircraft would not reach the containment

         12  structure. Similar conclusion on the direct hit on

         13  the spent fuel storage structures.

         14                 Third, because of their strong and

         15  effective security system, safety system and

         16  containment structures and the attendant likelihood

         17  that the health consequences of a terrorist-induced

         18  event would be relatively small, commercial plants

         19  are considered in the view of this report,

         20  unattractive targets for terrorist groups that are

         21  intent on causing loss of life.

         22                 Okay, second point, general point.

         23  Emergency plan treatment of terrorist-caused events.

         24  Our evaluation, task force evaluation, indicated

         25  that existing emergency plans do in fact address
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          2  potential impacts of a terrorist event and that

          3  annexes or other separate consideration of

          4  terrorist-caused releases which were called for in

          5  the Witt report are unnecessary.

          6                 This is based on several facts.

          7  First, as I mentioned, the radiological consequences

          8  of terrorist events are not fundamentally different.

          9                 Second, existing emergency planning

         10  guidance, this is something that I think would be

         11  useful information for you to be aware of, and we

         12  can certainly provide this public information.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         14                 MR. LEAVER: Existing emergency

         15  planning guidance is based on a wide range of

         16  accident types. There's an NRC EPA report, new reg

         17  396, which is the technical basis for the ten miles

         18  which apply to all nuclear plants in nine states,

         19  and this in turn is based on --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Notwithstanding

         21  the comment of Mr. Brodsky, I don't know if you were

         22  here to hear his testimony.

         23                 MR. LEAVER: I was here to hear his

         24  comment, and I don't know how he could have been so

         25  misinformed about that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          3                 MR. LEAVER: But in any event, this

          4  ten-mile zone is based on work which includes

          5  actions with large rapid release, as well as slower

          6  accidents.

          7                 Now a second NRC report, this is an

          8  NRC joint report with FEMA, new reg 0654, provides

          9  criteria, guidelines to licensees and off-site

         10  agencies on plan preparation implementation. Now,

         11  this report specifies the time of the release that

         12  should be assumed is from one hour to 24 hours after

         13  the initiating event. This is in table 2 of new reg

         14  654. Now, armed terrorist ground attack, a study

         15  which I mentioned, indicates the time for

         16  terrorist-induced core damage accidents is two hours

         17  to 24 hours, which is very similar.

         18                 So, that gives you some facts that

         19  support the notion that these terrorist accidents

         20  are not fundamentally different.

         21                 The third main point in my testimony,

         22  and this is a very brief, spent fuel pool accident

         23  risk, this was not explicitly addressed in the Witt

         24  Report, but there's been so much discussion about

         25  this, a lot of discussion here today, and I just
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          2  wanted to make a couple of small points here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please.

          4                 MR. LEAVER: This matter is still

          5  under study at this time and I suspect will be

          6  studied for some time in the future. There are two

          7  facts I want to mention, just to help place the

          8  safety concerns on pools and perspectives.

          9                 First, much of the debate on spent

         10  fuel pool accidents, as drawn on a 2001 study by the

         11  NRC, actually sponsored by the NRC, it was done by

         12  one of the laboratories, which is now believed to

         13  have significantly overstated the consequences of

         14  the spent fuel pool accident. More realistic

         15  information on the consequences of these accidents

         16  is expected to be available soon.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. But still

         18  the prior study is still the study of the records

         19  so-to-speak?

         20                 MR. LEAVER: That's right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Continue, okay?

         22                 MR. LEAVER: The second point, is

         23  Indian Point spent fuel pools, there are three

         24  pools, one for each unit, are embedded in solid

         25  ground, such that would appear to me extraordinary
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          2  difficult and unlikely, short of an extreme act of

          3  war, that a terrorist attack could rapidly drain a

          4  pool and cause a severe release.

          5                 So, just to summarize then three

          6  points, four conclusions. First, the consequences of

          7  a terrorist-induced core damage event are not unique

          8  relative to other types of accidental events.

          9                 Secondly, the risk to the public from

         10  terrorist core damage events is small, well below

         11  the NRC safety goals.

         12                 Third, existing emergency planning at

         13  Indian Point is designed for a variety of accident

         14  types, no fundamental changes are necessary to

         15  address terrorism.

         16                 And, finally, with more recent

         17  information and additional study it's expected that

         18  the spent fuel pool accident risk at Indian Point

         19  will be low.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         21  you very much.

         22                 Council Member Jennings, you can ask

         23  your question now, if you wish, okay? And I just

         24  have to pardon myself for one minute and Council

         25  Member Jennings has a question. He has a time
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          2  commitment, he has to leave.

          3                 Council Member Jennings.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Thank you

          5  for joining us today. You know in this day and age

          6  some of us are paranoid about terrorism and some of

          7  us take it to be very real, and certainly in the

          8  events of 9/11, the chickens has come home, and

          9  we've had disasters here in New York City, and even

         10  a few years ago we've had another terrorist act,

         11  we've had three so far in this country, one in 1980

         12  here in New York, and then in 1992, 1990, in

         13  Oklahoma where gentlemen with a big truck in front

         14  of the Oklahoma City's federal building and blew it

         15  up.

         16                 Now, if you could tell me your

         17  knowledge of the Indian Point Nuclear Power Plant,

         18  in terms of its security, how many gates and how

         19  many steps is it to get into the facility?

         20                 MR. DeVINE: First of all, I have to

         21  say that we did not evaluate that; and secondly, I'm

         22  somewhat reluctant to answer. I've been there many

         23  times, I'm reluctant to answer with any specificity,

         24  because some of that information is protected

         25  information, so I'd have to refer that to plant
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          2  personnel. Perhaps Mr. Slobodien.

          3                 I will say one thing that I think is

          4  important. I would not want to leave the impression

          5  at all that security or a terrorism threat is being

          6  dealt with casually. I ventured an opinion that

          7  nuclear plants are not very attractive targets. But

          8  I've spent most of, you know, most of my life, you

          9  know, at or near working with nuclear plants, and

         10  getting in and out of nuclear plants is in order of

         11  magnitude more difficult now than it was before.

         12  They are really, have really tightened up.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So, there is

         14  security. There's a gate in front, and if we need to

         15  get into the facility there's security guards are in

         16  front of the facility?

         17                 MR. DeVINE: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So, the

         19  likelihood of someone driving a truck into the

         20  facility is probably unlikely?

         21                 MR. DeVINE: That's true. And there

         22  are several layers, and nuclear plants all have

         23  several layers of security, so as you get into the

         24  more sensitive and important parts of the plant,

         25  there are additional barriers.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So, if

          3  someone wanted to, like Oklahoma, bring a large

          4  U-Haul truck in with explosives, pull it up into the

          5  front of the gate because they can't get in and set

          6  it off, how much damage could take place to the

          7  plant?

          8                 MR. DeVINE: In terms of the kinds of

          9  damage that would cause a release, little.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: The same

         11  particular type of bomb that was used in Oklahoma.

         12                 MR. DeVINE: Again, I have to qualify

         13  any response to that because we didn't look at that

         14  and I'm not an expert in explosives; however, that

         15  bomb in Oklahoma City was right in front of the

         16  building, first of all.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Right.

         18                 MR. DeVINE: Secondly, it was a

         19  relatively fragile building. This was a commercial

         20  building.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Right.

         22                 MR. DeVINE: Neither of those are true

         23  at a plant like Indian Point. The plant is

         24  extraordinarily rugged. Dave Leaver described

         25  analyses that show a fully, a large airplane fully
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          2  loaded with fuel can't penetrate the containment.

          3  So, my guess is a truck bomb also would sort of

          4  bounce off, and it can't get close. So, for all

          5  those reasons, you're really not talking the same

          6  kind of vulnerability.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So if it

          8  went off outside the gate --

          9                 MR. DeVINE: Hurt a lot of people.

         10  Hurt a lot of people.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: But it

         12  wouldn't really affect the plant itself?

         13                 MR. LEAVER: The truck bomb question

         14  has been looked at, and we can't say too much about

         15  this in public, but I'm certain that the Council

         16  could probably get information on this through

         17  channels with the NRC. But really the truck bomb is

         18  not the main issue with terrorism. The main issue is

         19  terrorists taking over the site. And this would be,

         20  in our judgment, extraordinarily difficult. I'm not

         21  saying it couldn't happen, but it would require an

         22  extremely large force, highly trained, sophisticated

         23  equipment, years of preparation, and even then, then

         24  they have to do certain things to cause an accident,

         25  and the conclusion of the group that did this report
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          2  that I mentioned was that while we made some

          3  assumptions of that terrorist could accomplish

          4  certain things, it was extraordinarily difficult,

          5  unlikely to happen and even if it did, the

          6  consequences were relatively small.

          7                 This report may also be available to

          8  the Council should you wish to see it. You probably

          9  have channels to do that, I don't know what they

         10  would be.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: And you've

         12  already testified as to large commercial aircraft

         13  hitting directly on the facility would not cause a

         14  core meltdown.

         15                 MR. LEAVER: This was a study that was

         16  done using the most state-of-the-art finite element

         17  methods for modeling the wall of the containment,

         18  which is a three to four foot thick wall with rebar

         19  the size of my arm criss-crossing it, and they had a

         20  fully loaded 767 400 jet make a direct perpendicular

         21  impact --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Fully loaded

         23  with what?

         24                 MR. LEAVER: Maximum weight. Maximum

         25  weight, everything.

                                                            192

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Okay,

          3  because, you know, some critics of yours may say,

          4  well, they said the World Trade Center wouldn't fall

          5  either, and that that plane hit the building --

          6                 MR. LEAVER: Well, I don't know who

          7  said the World Trade Center wouldn't fall, but this

          8  analysis was peer reviewed and I suspect you could

          9  get this airplane analysis as well. It was a very,

         10  very detailed technical evaluation, and the

         11  conclusion was that while there would be some damage

         12  to the external part of the containment, that no

         13  part of the aircraft or the fuel would penetrate the

         14  containment.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Did they do

         16  a test also with fuel with explosives?

         17                 MR. LEAVER: Explosives on the plane?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Yes.

         19                 MR. LEAVER: I don't believe so.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Okay, thank

         21  you.

         22                 You can have it back, Mr. Chairman.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         25  Council Member Jennings.
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          2                 Okay, I appreciate the opportunity to

          3  hear your testimony.

          4                 I guess one of the things that sort

          5  of sticks in my mind, and I guess a lot of people's

          6  minds, you know, the person who wrote the Witt

          7  Report is none other than, like the former Director

          8  of FEMA, you know, someone who has got juice in the

          9  area of emergency management planning, he was the

         10  head of the whole show, and, so, that's why

         11  certainly I think people have an obligation, if not

         12  an inclination, to take whatever he says very

         13  seriously. So, this is sort of like a box that we're

         14  in just because of who is saying this, gives it a

         15  lot of sort of --

         16                 MR. LEAVER: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- You would

         18  think like the yoda of, you know, environmental

         19  preparedness.

         20                 Now, and I guess this is a

         21  speculative question, is it your assessment, or

         22  would it be your expectation that Mr. Witt's final

         23  report is going to differ somewhat significantly

         24  from what is out there on the table now based on any

         25  anecdotal information you may have --
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          2                 MR. DeVINE: I guess we'll find out --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Hard question

          4  for you to answer. I would imagine that the

          5  community of people who were involved in these kinds

          6  of issues is somewhat small and, so, what do you

          7  hear?

          8                 MR. DeVINE: We have no information

          9  and wouldn't expect to have information.

         10                 However, the report that you have was

         11  delivered to him on his schedule, which I think was

         12  February 7th. We made two strong recommendations,

         13  and we tried to keep it clear. Our first

         14  recommendation was that, you know, absent sufficient

         15  new information, he simply had to temper that

         16  fundamental conclusion. I have no knowledge as to

         17  whether he will or not, but we felt strongly that he

         18  must, we urged him to do that.

         19                 Secondly, we urged him to put his

         20  recommendations in perspective that in fact those

         21  were suggestions for further consideration and not

         22  essential prerequisite to a satisfactory plan,

         23  because in fact that's where they were.

         24                 We're hoping that some measure of

         25  that might be captured in his final report.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have any

          3  sense of the people who participated with him in

          4  putting this report together, and do you believe

          5  he's going to reveal the make-up of his scientific

          6  team that put this report on the street?

          7                 MR. SHAW: We know that an

          8  organization IEM was associated heavily with the

          9  effort for James Lee Witt. We do not have a list in

         10  writing let's say of who participated and what their

         11  backgrounds are, that sort of thing.

         12                 Of course we want to be very careful

         13  that we keep speaking about James Lee Witt, but I

         14  want to be very careful that we're not attacking the

         15  person. We evaluated the report on scientific and

         16  technical merit.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Of course. Of

         18  course. Which is why I'm taking this from like a

         19  James Lee Witt issue to people who actually did the

         20  analysis and created the report.

         21                 You know, that was really what I was

         22  getting at.

         23                 MR. SHAW: Sure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So we have the

         25  same sensitivity.
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          2                 Again, I posed this question earlier

          3  to the previous panel of scientists and if there is

          4  indeed a culture of, I don't know, misinformation or

          5  fear of the truth or some very compelling evidence

          6  that FEMA in the basic way they operate, that

          7  they're not adhering to all the latest science and

          8  so on, and to the extent that that were true and

          9  there is bonafide science out there that states

         10  that, why has there not been some very successful

         11  challenge to FEMA and the way that they operate and

         12  the way that they prepare and monitor evacuation

         13  plans?

         14                 Because as I said before, there are

         15  federal agencies all the time that -- if people can

         16  set their cell phones on vibrate or turn them off,

         17  that would be great. So, same question, different

         18  panel, please.

         19                 MR. SHAW: I've got a quick answer

         20  that may help.

         21                 We heard earlier that maybe a study

         22  by the National Academy of Sciences of Experts might

         23  help to further the information that we have

         24  relative to the consequences of a release, and what

         25  are the frequencies of a severe core action, that
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          2  type of thing. The National Academy of Sciences is

          3  an independent body, and at the same time it's

          4  notable that National Academy of Sciences has not

          5  condemned the current process that the NRC operates

          6  under or that FEMA operates under.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Have they been

          8  asked to? Is that something that they would do on

          9  their own, or would someone have to ask them to do

         10  that, or how does that work?

         11                 MR. SHAW: They could be asked to do

         12  it, of course, and I'm not sure of any exact studies

         13  that they've done, but they've been asked to look

         14  at, for example, the case of a radiological

         15  dispersement device and issue an NCRP, National

         16  Council of Radiation Protection has done that, NAS

         17  can be asked to do that, but it would seem very

         18  unlikely to me that if people were very much aware

         19  that there was fatal flaws in the plans of FEMA,

         20  that the NAS or other organizations will not come

         21  forward. It seems highly unlikely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How about the --

         23  this is something I talked about with Mr. Witt

         24  himself. He indicated that the day after September

         25  11th there was a new methodology that was much more
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          2  performance-based, that was put into the federal

          3  register the day after September 11th. He indicated

          4  to me, I don't want to mischaracterize what he said,

          5  but it was his belief that that's been sitting out

          6  there on the federal register, hasn't been enacted,

          7  and that the performance-based measures that he

          8  believes are necessary to adequately assess these

          9  kinds of evacuation plans, that that's not being

         10  done.

         11                 Now, my consultations with FEMA

         12  directly are actually through staff, is that FEMA

         13  indicates that the September 12th paradigm, whatever

         14  you want to call it, that's put out on the federal

         15  register had been adopted, and had even been updated

         16  in April of 2002 or something; could you help me to

         17  sort of figure out what's really going on here, Witt

         18  is saying one thing, FEMA is saying something else,

         19  I'm sitting here behind this table trying to figure

         20  out like which end is up.

         21                 MR. SHAW: I think there is also at

         22  least a quick answer to that, and that is it's

         23  probably a matter of interpretation in terms of are

         24  the exercises that are being carried out and graded

         25  by FEMA, are they performance-based versus function,
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          2  which is one of the things that the Witt Report

          3  says.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 MR. SHAW: The reality is that FEMA

          6  has been conducting performance-based graded

          7  exercises since January or February of last year,

          8  and that is what FEMA will tell you, if you ask

          9  them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I know, that's

         11  what they say. But it was former Director of FEMA

         12  who says ont-aah they're not doing it so here I am.

         13                 MR. SHAW: I cannot explain that,

         14  other than interpretation of what is

         15  performance-based.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         17                 MR. DeVINE: Let me add a little, two

         18  points. One, in our report, and I can find it for

         19  you in a second, there's reference to a specific

         20  FEMA guidance which is in effect now, which changes

         21  the guidelines for those exercises. I use the term

         22  quibbling, and let me try to explain that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Said what?

         24                 MR. DeVINE: Quibbling.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, quibbling.
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          2                 MR. DeVINE: You know, the idea that

          3  he made a very big deal about the fact that they

          4  should be performance-based, it seems obvious to a

          5  reasonable person that there has to be some balance

          6  in these exercises. Some level of specific criteria

          7  checking, you know, did all the right people get

          8  notified in the right time frame, all those things

          9  which are not performance-based are valuable,

         10  because they test and exercise and demonstrate the

         11  capability of the process to do the things they can

         12  do. His criticism is that more broadly they don't

         13  translate to some assessment of was the whole thing

         14  successful, was enough dose averted, et cetera. And

         15  that's a sensible thing to do as well.

         16                 I think we took in good spirit the

         17  idea that you ought to take the big picture of you

         18  as well, but it's not a matter of throwing out the

         19  baby with the bathwater, it's a matter of

         20  incorporating some different dimensions and

         21  exercises and making them better. We would agree,

         22  but it doesn't mean the whole process is fatally

         23  flawed.

         24                 MR. SHAW: As one point of fact, the

         25  September 2002 exercise at Indian Point was in fact
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          2  graded under the new process performance based

          3  criteria, I feel.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right, that was

          5  the attack thing, but that doesn't have to do with

          6  the evacuation thing, I guess.

          7                 MR. SHAW: No, it was the entire

          8  exercise.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see.

         10                 MR. SHAW: Yes, the entire exercise at

         11  Indian Point for September 2002 --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Uses the

         13  performance paradigm.

         14                 MR. SHAW: Absolutely.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         16                 MR. LEAVER: I also think the

         17  performance approach is evolving in FEMA's mind. I

         18  mean it's something to probably continuing to

         19  evaluate and we may see changes in the future.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         21                 I know you mentioned a study, going

         22  through a fully loaded 767 and you can provide us

         23  information on that. I know that staff in the

         24  briefing documents that were brought to my attention

         25  made reference to an NRC study that estimated that
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          2  one of two aircraft could penetrate a five foot

          3  thick reinforced concrete wall; are you familiar

          4  with that?

          5                 MR. LEAVER: I believe someone

          6  mentioned that this morning. I don't know what that

          7  refers to.

          8                 The study that I was referring to was

          9  presented to NRC by the industry in December, this

         10  past December, and summaries of that study are

         11  available to the public, and as I mentioned, you

         12  could probably get more details should you wish to

         13  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         15                 MR. LEAVER: The Council could, and

         16  the place to go would be to the Nuclear Energy

         17  Institute.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. I see.

         19                 We've heard testimony before from

         20  people from Entergy indicating that a plume of any

         21  consequence, in terms of health consequences, could

         22  never make its way to New York City, and we've heard

         23  quite, you know, contrary testimony from other

         24  people.

         25                 Plume question: New York City, Indian
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          2  Point, blows here; radioactive plume can get here

          3  and cause damage to New York City or no?

          4                 MR. LEAVER: Well, I guess as a

          5  scientist I wouldn't say that is impossible, but our

          6  independent group is looking at this, and other

          7  questions, and we believe that it would be

          8  extraordinary and likely that there would be a

          9  significant effect to at a distance as far away as

         10  New York City.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         12                 MR. SHAW: That issue, if I may,

         13  Chairman, real briefly gets to -- you heard earlier

         14  that it depends on the amount of material that's

         15  released and that you can change those numbers and

         16  people do use different numbers for different

         17  scenarios, but it also has to do with the

         18  meteorology that is chosen, has a very high impact

         19  in addition to the source term, the amount of

         20  material that's released, and in addition, the thing

         21  that needs to be tagged of that is the frequency of

         22  how often could that occur.

         23                 Obviously one in 100 is not

         24  acceptable, so then you get into frequencies in our

         25  numbers like one in 10 billion, one in 100 billion,
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          2  are those acceptable numbers of risk? And that

          3  becomes a matter of public policy and so forth with

          4  public input. So, the one piece that we leave out of

          5  this is frequency.

          6                 Can you have really high numbers

          7  under some very, very, very nasty scenarios that you

          8  trade on paper? You have to look at the frequency of

          9  what those are.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         11                 We heard testimony before also about

         12  the CRAC-2 report, am I saying that right? I don't

         13  have it in front of me.

         14                 MR. SHAW: That's right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: CRAC-2, of

         16  Sandia and according to testimony from Entergy, when

         17  it was put out by Sandia, 600 deaths, that's looking

         18  at the old way of looking at it but with newer

         19  information the number would be more like zero, and

         20  other people who have paraded the report around

         21  indicated that we're talking of deaths in the range

         22  of 140,000 plus, with all kinds of, the same

         23  question I put to them to you, what's your take on

         24  the real meaning of the Sandia Report, which was

         25  done for Indian Point, so it's particularly relevant
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          2  here?

          3                 MR. LEAVER: Well, as you said there

          4  were two reports, one that was actually done by

          5  Sandia, was the one that had the 600 number.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          7                 MR. LEAVER: The other report I have

          8  not seen, and, so, I can't tell you how, whoever did

          9  that, how they arrived at that conclusion.

         10                 What I can tell you, I'll give you

         11  another perspective on it. As part of one of the

         12  studies that I mentioned, the one on the ground

         13  attack --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         15                 MR. LEAVER: The risk of ground attack

         16  from a nuclear plant, given that a terrorist group

         17  could successfully cause an accident at a nuclear

         18  plant, which is a huge feat in itself --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         20                 MR. LEAVER:-- As we discussed

         21  earlier, the expected number of early fatalities

         22  that we calculated was two. And this was not at the

         23  Indian Point site, but it was at a site, it was done

         24  on a generic basis, and it was at a site which had

         25  unfavorable meteorology and a rather substantial
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          2  number of people in the vicinity of the plant.

          3                 So I suspect this other study was

          4  flawed but I can't comment beyond that because I

          5  haven't seen it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          7                 MR. DeVINE: May I toss in another

          8  perspective point?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         10                 MR. DeVINE: Dave is the scientist and

         11  I'm not. But I mentioned the TMI experience --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're not a

         13  scientist? This is like a science panel.

         14                 MR. DeVINE: I confessed, I'm sorry.

         15  I'm an engineer.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, engineer,

         17  okay. That counts.

         18                 MR. DeVINE: In any case. Thank you.

         19                 The TMI event was instructive in many

         20  ways. I mentioned before that the release was much

         21  less than would have been calculated to the point

         22  that the industry then embarked with NRC on numerous

         23  tests and evaluations and has subsequently reduced

         24  the allowable source term, that's a word that's been

         25  used often, to the point that people before the

                                                            207

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  terrorism issue came up, were seriously

          3  reconsidering is ten miles much too conservative,

          4  and should we be thinking of a smaller version?

          5                 You asked a very good question

          6  before, how come, you know, you're getting these

          7  very different projections? If anything they may be

          8  diverging. The question about why is NRC not

          9  adopting these projections of extraordinarily high

         10  fatality numbers, fly in the face of the fact that

         11  their own evaluations are showing that as we get

         12  smarter, as we learn more, as we have better tools

         13  to analyze, that the projected consequences of

         14  radiation releases from plants are less than they

         15  used to think 20, 30 years ago.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you.

         17  Thank you all very much for your testimony. I

         18  appreciate your being here.

         19                 MR. DeVINE: Thank you.

         20                 MR. LEAVER: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we have

         22  the next two panels. Gavin Donohue, of the

         23  Independent Power Producers of New York; and Stewart

         24  Silbergleit of Energy Associates; to be followed by

         25  Alex Matthiessen of RiverKeeper, and Daniel
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          2  Rosenblum from the Pace Energy Project. So, those

          3  would be the next two panels. And Jonny Evers, from

          4  the New York State Business Council.

          5                 Okay, we'd ask you to take the oath

          6  as administered by Counsel, and then we'll proceed.

          7                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          8  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

          9  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         10  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         11                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         13  you very much.

         14                 I'd like you to give your testimony.

         15  As we get later and later in the day, we're trying

         16  to ask people to be sort of more and more concise

         17  with what they have to sort of bring to the table,

         18  and so many good people want to testify. Some people

         19  testified before, I gave them a little bit of

         20  latitude, but to the extent that people could be

         21  concise, it would be greatly appreciated.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 Okay, when the light on the

         24  microphone is off, it means that it's on. Light off,

         25  mic on. It's sort of a City Council
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          2  counter-intuitive thing. It's sort of a test for

          3  witnesses.

          4                 MR. DONOHUE: Thanks for having me

          5  here today. I've reduced my testimony significantly,

          6  but I have a brief statement that I'd like to read

          7  into the record.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We need you to

          9  state your name for the record.

         10                 MR. DONOHUE: I'm Gavin Donohue,

         11  Executive Director of the Independent Power

         12  Producers of New York. We're commonly referred to as

         13  IPPNY, and we're a trade association representing

         14  the competitive power generation industry in New

         15  York.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just want to

         17  make sure I have your testimony.

         18                 Okay, I have Mr. Donohue, okay.

         19                 MR. DONOHUE: We represent natural gas

         20  pipelines and powerplant developers throughout the

         21  state.

         22                 I'm here to tell you that

         23  decommissioning Indian Point will result in huge

         24  increases in the rates all consumers and businesses

         25  in New York City pay for electricity.
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          2                 A significant decline in the quality

          3  of air breathed by all New Yorkers, and an

          4  unacceptable reduction in the reliability of the

          5  electric system that New Yorkers depend on.

          6                 Indian Point supplies New York City

          7  of at least 30 percent of the electricity used every

          8  day. This amount of electricity cannot be replaced

          9  or conserved away. The New York Independent System

         10  Operator issued a report just this week that says

         11  even with Indian Point operating, New York City's

         12  electric supply is already close to levels required

         13  to ensure reliability.

         14                 Attached to your testimony, a

         15  forecast shows that as early as this summer, the

         16  City will have to rely on reduced usage to meet

         17  reliability requirements. We simply cannot afford to

         18  remove a huge portion of existing generation from

         19  the mix. Last time just one of the units at Indian

         20  Point was out of service for an extended period,

         21  electric rates in the City dramatically shot up 30

         22  percent. At such a large portion the City's electric

         23  supply is removed. Not only will costs increase

         24  dramatically, but air quality will suffer dramatic

         25  decreases. New York will need to call on every
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          2  ancient, dirty, diesel generator in the City to run

          3  continuously to avoid blackouts.

          4                 These back-up generators are

          5  notoriously dirty, often emit at street level and

          6  will have a profound affect on New York City's air

          7  quality.

          8                 Counting on demand response programs

          9  and back-up generators to meet New York's growing

         10  appetite for power will also impact system

         11  reliability.

         12                 Quite simply, New York, which

         13  currently has one of the most reliable electric

         14  systems in the country, could wind up looking more

         15  like the State of California.

         16                 Indian Point is an extremely safe

         17  facility and forcing it to stop generating

         18  electricity will not increase its safety.

         19                 Even if the plant ceased operations,

         20  nuclear fuel would need to be stored on the site for

         21  at least ten to 15 years.

         22                 Furthermore, federal officials have

         23  called Indian Point the best defended industrial

         24  facility in the country. That assessment, combined

         25  with strict Nuclear Regulatory Commission
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          2  regulations and the millions of dollars Entergy has

          3  invested in security since buying the plants,

          4  ensures that Indian Point is indeed safe.

          5                 Closing the plant provides no

          6  security benefit but will cost the public a great

          7  deal.

          8                 Public misunderstanding of the

          9  security risks posed by nuclear power plants has

         10  unfortunately given people the false impression that

         11  we would be better off without Indian Point

         12  operating. But nothing could be further from the

         13  truth. There would be unacceptably high costs

         14  involved both in decommissioning the plant and

         15  replacing the electricity. That lost electricity

         16  would have to be met, at least first with

         17  inefficient, unreliable back-up generation.

         18                 In short, anyone calling for the

         19  removal of 2,000 megawatts of electricity from New

         20  York will have a lot to explain to the public.

         21                 You will have to explain the certain

         22  deterioration in air quality and increase in power

         23  costs that will result if the plant is closed. You

         24  will have to explain why in a desperate attempt to

         25  keep the lights on, every inefficient,
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          2  high-emission, diesel-fired, back-up generator in

          3  the City must now run throughout the summer ozone

          4  season.

          5                 You will have to explain why the

          6  electric system which was designed to permit no more

          7  than one major outage every ten years now can expect

          8  one every two years.

          9                 You will have to explain how to meet

         10  the growing demand for electricity in New York, when

         11  the last two years alone there have been over 20

         12  announcements of record-breaking electricity usage,

         13  which I've attached to your testimony as well.

         14                 You will need to explain who is going

         15  to generate the electricity to fuel New York's

         16  economic recovery. The New York Independent System

         17  Operator found that New York City needs up to 3,000

         18  additional megawatts of new generating capacity by

         19  2005 and those calculations were made assuming

         20  Indian Point continued to operate.

         21                 Indian Point is too vital to the

         22  health and welfare of New York to allow hysteria and

         23  political maneuverings to decide its future. Indian

         24  Point is key to maintaining a safe, reliable and

         25  reasonably priced supply of electricity for the
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          2  entire downstate area, but especially for New York

          3  City.

          4                 Thank you for providing me the

          5  opportunity to testify today.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. We'll

          7  take all of the testimony and then we'll ask

          8  questions. But when you say you'll have to explain

          9  "you'll," you mean me?

         10                 MR. DONOHUE: I mean elected

         11  officials.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You mean me.

         13                 MR. DONOHUE: Try to keep your

         14  attention.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's also,

         16  because you read it on the record, becomes a sworn

         17  statement, by the way. This is now a sworn

         18  statement. I'll save my questions and follow what I

         19  just laid out there.

         20                 MR. DONOHUE: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But thank you.

         22  Thank you very much.

         23                 Next witness, okay, I have Stuart.

         24                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: Good afternoon. My

         25  name is Stuart Silbergleit. I am Executive Vice
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          2  President and General Counsel of the Energy

          3  Association of New York State, a trade association

          4  whose members are major electric and gas

          5  corporations in the state, including Entergy Nuclear

          6  Northeast, the owner of the Indian --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Could you kind

          8  of get to those? I see you have a very, very lengthy

          9  statement here.

         10                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: Actually what I was

         11  going to say is that I'm not reading that statement.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, fine. Okay,

         13  good. Okay.

         14                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: And what we bring to

         15  the table is a statewide perspective. And as I was

         16  just going to say, I've tried to abbreviate my

         17  comments.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         19                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: It is important as

         20  the Committee proceeds with its deliberations that

         21  it reflect on the following facts:

         22                 First, Indian Point has been

         23  providing energy to New York City safely for more

         24  than 20 years.

         25                 Second, Indian Point's location in
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          2  Westchester County is critical to supplying up to 40

          3  percent of the downstate region's daily electric

          4  demand.

          5                 Third, the electricity generated at

          6  Indian Point is emission free and does not

          7  contribute to air pollution in the region.

          8                 Fourth, Indian Point directly employs

          9  over 1,500 highly skilled union and management

         10  workers and contributes over $350 million annually

         11  to the region's economy; and

         12                 Fifth, to close Indian Point because

         13  of fear is to declare the attacks on New York and

         14  Washington a success. The goal of the terrorists is

         15  to frighten us and disrupt our lives. We must resist

         16  acting irrationally out of fear.

         17                 New York City needs more electricity,

         18  not less. Despite urgent calls by the New York

         19  Independent System Operator, the entity responsible

         20  for ensuring the reliability of the State's electric

         21  system, by the New York Building Congress, the New

         22  York City Partnership, the Business Council of New

         23  York State and others, for thousands of megawatts of

         24  new generation in New York City, little of that is

         25  being built, and no new baseload plants will be on
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          2  line to serve the summer's load.

          3                 In light of these facts, the value

          4  and importance of the state's current fleet of power

          5  plants cannot be overstated, especially the Indian

          6  Point facility which has been safely providing

          7  Downstate with clean, low-cost, reliable electricity

          8  for decades. It provides power that is necessary for

          9  fuel diversity, job growth and reliability.

         10                 And I want to depart a little from my

         11  testimony there.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         13                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: Because others have

         14  raised the possibility of converting the power plant

         15  to natural gas as the panacea, as the answer. First

         16  of all, if anybody is familiar with the attempts to

         17  bring natural gas to the region, and the concerns of

         18  the neighbors and the opposition that they have

         19  experienced, they will know it's no easy task, and I

         20  imagine that some of the people that are opposing

         21  the nuclear power plant are similarly opposing the

         22  new transmission lines and gas transmission

         23  facilities.

         24                 The other thing is diversity, and I

         25  don't think anybody here has mentioned that. And
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          2  this is, one of the strengths of New York is that

          3  its electricity is generated by a variety of fuels.

          4  We have hydropower, we have nuclear power, we have

          5  coal, we have oil, and we have natural gas, and

          6  that's a strength because in the event of a problem

          7  in any one of those areas, and we've had those

          8  problems, we've had coal strikes, we've had natural

          9  gas disruptions, we've had increases in natural gas,

         10  we've had -- we're going to possibly have a war, and

         11  oil may be a problem, so a strength we have in New

         12  York State is the variety of fuel we use to generate

         13  electricity, and the feeling we can just move

         14  everything to natural gas because it happens to be

         15  clean and it may be available, we would be putting

         16  all our eggs in a single basket and that's not

         17  healthy. It will come back to haunt us.

         18                 Electricity is the engine that fuels

         19  the City's economy, and notwithstanding a natural

         20  recession and the aftermath of the tragic attack

         21  September 11th on our country, New York City's

         22  electric demand continues to rise.

         23                 The Indian Point power facility is

         24  one of the largest energy complexes in the state

         25  providing 2,000 megawatts to the downstate region.
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          2  It is power delivered around the clock and is

          3  indifferent as to whether the sun is shining or the

          4  wind is blowing.

          5                 Resolution 64-A calls for the

          6  conversion of Indian Point to a facility powered by

          7  a renewable energy resource. However, less than two

          8  percent of the electricity consumed in New York is

          9  currently generated by non-hydro renewables. It is

         10  wishful thinking to assume that the 2,000 megawatts

         11  of critical or electricity power provided by Indian

         12  Point is readily replaceable by renewable energy

         13  resources. It would likely require, for example, the

         14  construction of hundreds of windmills over 30 feet

         15  tall --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think I

         17  already to my concept regarding, you know,

         18  renewables, and I just, I want to just, if you could

         19  just focus on those things that bring an addition of

         20  value added to the conversation, I would appreciate

         21  it.

         22                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: The realistic

         23  potential for building any new energy-generating

         24  facilities of any type, as well as key natural gas

         25  and electricity transmission facilities, is quite
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          2  limited, in light of the Enron debacle, the

          3  tightness of the financial market and other

          4  uncertainties.

          5                 With respect to the safety of Indian

          6  Point, despite various media reports, public

          7  reactions and other developments precipitated by the

          8  recently released draft report, the Witt report that

          9  you were talking about, that report did not say that

         10  the plant is unsafe, and those that imply otherwise

         11  are fueling public fears unnecessarily --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That report was

         13  not asked to state whether the plant was safe or

         14  not.

         15                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: Exactly. But it

         16  didn't.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         18                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: All I'm suggesting

         19  is some are using it and indicating that it is.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see. Got

         21  it. Point well taken.

         22                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: In fact, no federal

         23  or state public safety agency at any level has ever

         24  said the facility should be closed or that it is

         25  unsafe or it fails to conform with all current
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          2  federal regulations.

          3                 The former Director of the State's

          4  Office of Public Security, after in-depth inspection

          5  of the security precautions that the plant asserted

          6  that Indian Point is an extremely safe place and has

          7  spoken favorably on the subject at various forums.

          8                 The Director of the Nuclear

          9  Regulatory Commission's Regional Office that covers

         10  New York called Indian Point "the most heavily

         11  defended plant in the country," and the Chairman of

         12  the NRC called Indian Point "one of the best

         13  defended industrial facilities in the world."

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Once again,

         15  again, I'm trying to create a new standard here. I

         16  mean, we've really heard this a couple of times

         17  already.

         18                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: One is reminded of

         19  the words spoken by FDR when he told Americans "We

         20  have nothing to fear but fear itself." Those words

         21  were as true today as they were 70 years ago. It is

         22  inexcusable to allow fear and public misconceptions

         23  to result in the promulgation of ill-conceived and

         24  detrimental public policy.

         25                 Calling for the closure of one of the
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          2  most secure industrial facilities in the world, not

          3  because it is unsafe, but because the emergency plan

          4  might be improved upon in light of the events of

          5  9/11, would be akin to demanding that all airports

          6  and airlines be permanently shut down, not because

          7  they're unsafe, but because the history has shown

          8  that thousands of planes in the air each year are

          9  potential missiles.

         10                 We are not considering closing the

         11  City's subways, at least I hope not, even after the

         12  tragic event that occurred recently in South Korea,

         13  but increased security and planning, and actions of

         14  that sort are certainly appropriate.

         15                 The Committee must also consider the

         16  inevitable increase in electricity prices that Gavin

         17  was referring to, and the degradation of reliability

         18  of the region's electric system should Indian Point

         19  close.

         20                 The decisions of businesses to expand

         21  or relocate to New York City, and thus the health of

         22  the City's economy and the jobs that go with it,

         23  will largely be determined by a sufficient supply of

         24  reliably, of reliable competitively priced

         25  electricity.
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          2                 The premise of this resolution is to

          3  address a perceived threat to a potential disaster.

          4  Given the extreme importance of the facility, and

          5  the infinitesimal possibility of a situation at the

          6  facility ever affecting the City of New York, the

          7  real potential for disaster lies in the campaign

          8  that seeks to end the flow of electricity from

          9  Indian Point.

         10                 If Indian Point becomes unavailable

         11  and despite everyone's best efforts to keep the

         12  lights on, there simply isn't enough power, and

         13  bodegas in the Bronx must close their doors or EMTs

         14  cannot the heart attack --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         16  you. Sure. Okay, if you could summarize your

         17  statement, I would appreciate it.

         18                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: The members of this

         19  Council know that real leadership often means making

         20  hard choices and presenting their constituents with

         21  the truth even when it's complex and unpopular.

         22                 It is critical for this City to

         23  exercise the kind of leadership now and not hand

         24  those who would terrorize our City and State such an

         25  easy and massive victory as to voluntarily eliminate
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          2  20 to 40 percent of the area's electric supply.

          3                 We urge that this resolution crafted

          4  and promoted out of fear be unanimously rejected.

          5                 And I have just one other thought.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          7                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: Without flattering

          8  you, Mr. Chairman, I've been very impressed with the

          9  way this hearing has been going on, and how you have

         10  fairly allowed all the free flow of discussion, and

         11  I was also impressed with the fact that you took the

         12  time to visit the plant, and I would suggest that

         13  before there is action taken on this resolution or

         14  any subsequent resolution, that it would be a good

         15  idea for the rest of the panel to visit the site as

         16  well and get their own sense for just how secure the

         17  facility is, I think it would be a benefit to the

         18  City of New York and certainly to the panel.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         21  you very much. I appreciate your comment.

         22                 MR. EVERS: I'll make it very quick,

         23  Mr. Chairman. And I'll give you a little aside. I

         24  was President of the Albany Board of Education for a

         25  few years and went through a lot of these hearings
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          2  so you're doing a pretty good job up there.

          3                 The Business Council is a statewide

          4  association of 4,000 businesses and Chambers of

          5  Commerce, and I'm going to just summarize this on

          6  four key points. There is a growing and dangerous

          7  gap between energy we had and what we need. A study

          8  by our research affiliate, the Public Policy

          9  Institute, concluded that New York State must add at

         10  least a dozen new power plants with at least 9,200

         11  megawatts of generating capacity within the next few

         12  years.

         13                 In light of that, and in addition to

         14  that, the independent system operator, which is

         15  responsible for assuring reliability supplies of

         16  electricity for the state researched similar

         17  conclusions and decided that at least 3,000

         18  megawatts are needed in New York City. We all know,

         19  and it's been stated several times today that Indian

         20  Point provides almost 2,000 megawatts to New York

         21  City. Thus, that would be almost 5,000.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It only produces

         23  2,000 megawatts to begin with.

         24                 MR. EVERS: Correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And all of the
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          2  power does not come to New York City.

          3                 MR. EVERS: That's also correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: New York City

          5  does have an 80 percent ISO mandated in-city

          6  generation mandate, and so somehow I just don't see

          7  how all these numbers add up, but, you know,

          8  continue.

          9                 MR. EVERS: Well, I'm also basing this

         10  a little in light of the ISO's revelation yesterday

         11  that the in-city capacity I believe was only 67

         12  megawatts of a cushion, and that is considering also

         13  an emergency demand response programs, and the zonal

         14  pressures in the north of us could cause problems in

         15  the southern zones.

         16                 Third, closing Indian Point, I don't

         17  want to be repetitive, let me give you the third

         18  point, is importing power from outside the states is

         19  just not factual as well, when you consider the

         20  southern zones and the congestion in those areas,

         21  limited transmission systems.

         22                 And fourth, that you can't conserve

         23  your way out of this point as well, and that 2,000

         24  megawatts in a single instance is not a viable way

         25  to conserve. You couldn't do just 2,000 in a single
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          2  instance, that takes years of ramping up.

          3                 So, I won't be repetitive in these

          4  things. It is a strong congestion argument, a strong

          5  emergency demand response argument, and also an

          6  in-city argument as well. So, we think that the

          7  2,000 megawatts from Entergy Nuclear must be

          8  preserved.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, certainly

         10  the whole notion of energy reliability is one of the

         11  most paramount things in my mind. Of course just

         12  like the debate about nuclear safety and that whole

         13  argument in the hearing, disparate views on that, of

         14  course there are, and you know of them, there's all

         15  kinds of analyses that have been offered that say

         16  this or that, and so leaving me and my colleagues in

         17  the unenviable position of trying to wade through

         18  this scientific morass, but we certainly appreciate

         19  the perspectives that you bring to the table.

         20                 But I remember one thing from the

         21  last hearing, that back in I guess it was May of

         22  last year, April of last year, whenever we had the

         23  last hearing, that Entergy's own economist painted a

         24  much less bleak picture of what it would mean

         25  economically in terms of wholesale and retail prices
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          2  than did the independent system operator. I found

          3  that curious, that Entergy's own hard economist

          4  would not make the most forceful case. I expected

          5  the most, you know, dire numbers to sort of come

          6  from them, and not from the ISO, and so this is

          7  another example of information just coming from

          8  every direction.

          9                 MR. EVERS: Mr. Chairman, as a

         10  business association I think the Business Council

         11  has come up with the most dramatic figures, claiming

         12  we need 9,200 new megawatts to ensure pricing

         13  because we're looking at this from a reasonably

         14  priced electricity for manufacturing and

         15  commercials.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         17                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: One comment.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, please.

         19                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: On any of the

         20  studies that you've looked at is that gas prices

         21  have risen significantly, probably since any of

         22  those studies, and I would suggest that probably the

         23  impact, if Indian Point were to close, would be even

         24  higher today than it was at any point in the recent

         25  past.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Because of the

          3  recent spike?

          4                 MR. SILBERGLEIT: Recent spike, and I

          5  might add, that there is an expectation that it's

          6  not going to drop so suddenly, and that we may be on

          7  a trend because natural gas is being consumed at

          8  greater levels.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, I made

         10  some notes here, but we spoke to that. We spoke to

         11  that. I think I'm finished, unless there's anything

         12  else you might want to mention?

         13                 MR. DONOHUE: Just for the record,

         14  because my testimony did say you, you, you. When I

         15  drafted this, my staff drafted it --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I got him

         17  nervous. I got him nervous.

         18                 MR. DONOHUE: No, I was an elected

         19  official for awhile and when the sponsor's name was

         20  on it, I was assuming you were advocating that

         21  position until I actually came here and listened to

         22  the way you were listening to both sides of the

         23  argument.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I do have a

         25  resolution on the table, I am the sponsor of that
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          2  resolution, but at the end of the day, I mean you

          3  know as a former legislator what counts is what

          4  happens at the end.

          5                 MR. DONOHUE: Sure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's not over

          7  til it's over. This is still a work-in-progress,

          8  still subject to modification and it has been a very

          9  intensive couple of weeks for me, and I'm doing my

         10  best to assimilate and to be open to all

         11  perspectives. That's really my obligation and I take

         12  it seriously and thanks for recognizing that.

         13                 MR. DONOHUE: The one thing I just

         14  would like to say, one last point, there were folks

         15  this morning talking about converting the plant to a

         16  natural gas plan. One, there's some locational

         17  problems with that. We can't get millennium

         18  pipelines sited yet, I don't know where the natural

         19  gas would come from in an incidence like that, the

         20  need for more transmission infrastructure, and

         21  everybody here is worried about the safety which

         22  should be paramount, but we're talking about

         23  advocating a position of having natural gas coming

         24  into a facility while you're trying to decommission

         25  a nuclear plant to me doesn't sound like that's too
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          2  safe of a scenario. So, I just wanted to make that

          3  point as well.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's not

          5  something which is in my resolution, but it's

          6  something which is, it gets talked about a lot and

          7  I'm grateful to have your perspective on it.

          8                 So, thank you very much. I appreciate

          9  it. Thanks for being here with us.

         10                 MR. DONOHUE: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And the next

         12  panel, Alex Matthiessen of RiverKeeper, and Daniel

         13  Rosenblum from Pace Energy Project.

         14                 Okay, I just want to announce the

         15  next witness. The next witness is going to be Mark

         16  Williams from Local 1-2, followed by Robert Lesko of

         17  the AFT and Lenora Colbert of 1199.

         18                 Okay, thank you very much for being

         19  here today. We really appreciate the opportunity to

         20  hear your good views, we want to thank you for the

         21  extraordinary access that we've had to you and your

         22  staff in all the information that you provided to

         23  us, and for your tireless advocacy on this extremely

         24  vital issue.

         25                 We're also very grateful for your
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          2  patience. It's been a long day and we appreciate it.

          3  But you had the benefit of hearing all that came

          4  before, and so you'd be much better equipped to make

          5  a very significant value added in our proceeding.

          6                 So, with that said, I thank you, and

          7  the Counsel to the Committee Donna DeCostanzo will

          8  do the group oath and then we'll proceed.

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         10  right hand.

         11                 In the testimony that you're about to

         12  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         13  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 Do we have written statements?

         19                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: We've submitted them

         20  I believe.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Oh, okay,

         22  right here. Okay.

         23                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Mr. Chairman, thank

         24  you very much. My name is Alex Matthiessen with

         25  RiverKeeper. Thank you very much for the opportunity
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          2  of having us, holding this hearing today and

          3  allowing me the opportunity to speak.

          4                 I do want to point out that in

          5  addition to our testimony that we've submitted, we

          6  have also submitted an updated version of an

          7  independent study that was released today to the

          8  press that demonstrates that indeed we do not need

          9  to rely on Indian Point's power, and I'll get into

         10  more of the details later.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         12                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: If I could be

         13  allowed, I heard a lot in the previous panels to say

         14  that it's just a bit of a stretch in terms of the

         15  truth, and I would like the opportunity as with my

         16  formal remarks during the Q and A to go through as

         17  quickly as I can some of those points.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         19                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: And make rebuttals

         20  to them.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         22                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Okay, first, today

         23  we are here to thank you for putting this resolution

         24  Number 64-A forward, calling for the decommission of

         25  the Indian Point plant. We wholeheartedly agree with
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          2  the direction of this resolution. We think it's a

          3  good resolution and we encourage you in the

          4  strongest terms to pass it as quickly as you can.

          5                 We have submitted some written

          6  comments to the Council about the resolution, there

          7  are some minor things we might encourage you to

          8  improve upon.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         10                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: But basically it's a

         11  very good resolution.

         12                 Just to remind the audience, and of

         13  course you know this, that New York City, as the

         14  home of 9 million people and the world's capitol for

         15  the financial markets, is particularly at risk as a

         16  result of this Indian Point Nuclear Power Plant, a

         17  mere 22 miles north of the City.

         18                 Both NRC and independent experts and

         19  the experience of Chernobyl demonstrate very clearly

         20  that either an accident at the reactor or an

         21  accident or attack on the spent fuel pools would

         22  result in a spread of radiation for potentially

         23  hundreds of miles. The NRC itself has acknowledged

         24  this in recent studies, causing tens of thousands of

         25  long-term cancers and deaths.
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          2                 Second, as I don't need to tell you,

          3  New York City doesn't have an evacuation plan. I

          4  think that that's fairly outrageous, considering,

          5  again, the population density, the significant

          6  possibility of a radiation event reaching New York

          7  City in the event of an accident, and given that

          8  it's virtually impossible to evacuate the City.

          9                 So, in a nutshell, here's what we

         10  know to date about Indian Point, and I won't get

         11  into the details. You've heard a lot of it already

         12  today.

         13                 We know that the inadequate security

         14  of the plant, either from the ground, from the air,

         15  from the water, the security guards themselves and

         16  internal energy report has revealed that they cannot

         17  today protect this plant against a terrorist attack,

         18  especially one of the magnitude that we saw in 9/11

         19  a year and a half ago.

         20                 Now, they have trotted out people

         21  like James Kalstrom and others who apparently

         22  visited the site for all of two hours to come out

         23  and declare the plant it's safe, it's one of the

         24  most robust and best defended in the country, but in

         25  fact, I would put my stock and my money in the
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          2  security guards themselves and not on some hired

          3  political gun to come in and try and convince the

          4  public that everything is fine.

          5                 And, again, I'll get into details if

          6  you're interested during the Q and A on the security

          7  problems at the plant.

          8                 Second, the evacuation plan, as I

          9  said, is non-existent for New York City, and is

         10  absolutely unworkable for the ten-mile radius around

         11  the plant.

         12                 James Lee Kalstrom -- I'm sorry,

         13  James Lee Witt, the country's leading expert in

         14  emergency planning, has concluded that not only is

         15  the current plan inadequate, but it cannot be made

         16  to work, even given the recommendations he put

         17  forward to deal with a 9/11 type of, or the current

         18  terrorist environment threat that we face.

         19                 His recommendations, to be clear,

         20  were simply ways to improve the plan so that if you,

         21  God willing, had a much more minor event, as you

         22  would have an approved evacuation plan, and we're

         23  fully in favor of making those improvements.

         24                 I want to note, though, that

         25  absolutely those recommendations should be taken
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          2  seriously, and if you're to implement them, the

          3  counties don't have the expertise or the technology

          4  or the resources to do it, you have to have FEMA to

          5  come in and do that, that should happen regardless

          6  of whether the plan is shut down or not.

          7                 Secondly, just briefly, New York's

          8  water supply, you already heard testimony this

          9  morning, but would be greatly imperiled as a result

         10  of an attack there, or an accident.

         11                 Third, NRC's own studies have shown

         12  that you would have trillions of dollars worth of

         13  damage again, or imply that you would have trillions

         14  of dollars worth of damage in the New York City

         15  area, their own study said about a half a trillion

         16  dollars of damage to Westchester County. I don't

         17  need to tell you that would probably cause the

         18  collapse of the US economy, let alone the world

         19  economy, and that sounds like hyperbole, but let's

         20  face it, this is the world's financial center, if

         21  something happens to New York City, we're in big

         22  trouble.

         23                 Therefore, arguably, it's hard to

         24  argue that there's any single facility in the entire

         25  world, frankly, and I know again it sounds like
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          2  hyperbole, but think about it, that is a more

          3  attractive target than Indian Point.

          4                 The terrorists have come up and said

          5  themselves on Al-Jazeera TV last fall and said that

          6  "we are looking for targets in the US."

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm sorry, the

          8  terrorists for something, TV?

          9                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: The Al Qaida

         10  terrorists were interviewed on Al-Jazeera TV and

         11  they acknowledged that they are looking for US

         12  terrorist targets for future attacks that would

         13  cause the most severe economic and psychological

         14  damage and the greatest number of fatalities. Well,

         15  it's hard to argue there's any better site to

         16  accomplish those goals than attacking Indian Point.

         17                 The final reason, of course, is that

         18  there's no liability coverage essentially. There's a

         19  total of $9.4 billion coverage for the entire

         20  industry, that's not been paid forward so we'd have

         21  to go after nuclear power companies to claim that

         22  money, and $9.4 billion just by point of reference

         23  pales in comparison to the kind of damage that would

         24  result from even a modest accident, let alone a

         25  major release of radiation.
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          2                 Just by way of comparison for the

          3  audience, the World Trade Center accident cost an

          4  estimated $84 billion. Again, we've only got a cap

          5  of 9.4 for the entire nuclear industry.

          6                 And finally, and I'll get into some

          7  detail in a second, we just don't need this energy,

          8  and this idea that Entergy and some of their hired

          9  guns are putting forward that the sky is falling if

         10  we don't have Indian Point's power we're going to

         11  perish and black outs and so forth is just

         12  ridiculous. It really is.

         13                 And I can tell you, after listening

         14  to some of the experts that we had up here, you

         15  know, it's remarkable how pessimistic and gloomy

         16  these individuals are. And I can just tell you, I'm

         17  glad that these guys weren't running our space

         18  program back in the sixties when we put a man on the

         19  moon. I mean, it's just ridiculous to think that we

         20  can't replace 2,000 megawatts worth of power.

         21  There's nothing special about those 2,000 megawatts,

         22  they can come from a variety of sources, we have

         23  many of our options, and I take great offense that

         24  these guys who have their heads buried in the sand

         25  are thinking as if we're a country from 30 years
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          2  ago.

          3                 Let me just summarize --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think it's

          5  really an issue of -- I don't know so much as having

          6  heads buried in the sand, but we all know what it

          7  takes to site a facility, to get a facility built,

          8  2,000 megawatts is 2,000 megawatts, I don't know,

          9  though, I just have to speak to the characterization

         10  that you made that I just want to be silent in the

         11  face of it.

         12                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: I'm just saying, of

         13  all the things that we are faced with and sort of

         14  challenges in the world today, trying to replace

         15  2,000 megawatts in the New York City area has got to

         16  be pretty low among them in terms of how difficult

         17  it is.

         18                 You know, I'm not saying that you can

         19  just shut the switch down tomorrow and do nothing,

         20  but there are certainly things that you want to do

         21  to ensure that you've got the most reliability

         22  possible, ensure that you suppress any kind of price

         23  effects. The fact is those things are easily

         24  accomplishable, they do take some time, we have to

         25  do them, they take some political will, but it's

                                                            241

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  just a question of doing it. That's the only point I

          3  wanted to make.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Fine.

          5                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: In terms of

          6  reliability, the study that again we released that

          7  was done by an independent consulting firm up in

          8  Cambridge, Massachusetts, showed that essentially

          9  we've got all the reliability we need, it's an

         10  updated study from last year and shows that even

         11  though you had one plant that was cancelled, had

         12  some delays in the projected time that they're going

         13  to be up and running, there's also been some new

         14  plants that have been added to the mix and approved

         15  by New York State.

         16                 Essentially what you do see is a

         17  slight tightening that will happen over the next two

         18  summers, summer of 2003 and 2004, and assuming that

         19  you shut down Indian Point tomorrow, summer of '03

         20  is relevant.

         21                 But, again, it doesn't suggest that

         22  you're going to have blackouts or brownouts, it

         23  simply just says that you're going to have a slight

         24  dip in your overall capacity and you're going to

         25  have a slight dip therefore in your reserve margin,
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          2  it doesn't mean you're going to automatically have

          3  blackouts, it just means you've got a little bit

          4  less of a cushion. The question really is, can you

          5  do other things to make up for that slight drop?

          6                 Starting in 2005, I think it is

          7  fairly safe to say there are things that New York

          8  State can do to expedite the building of these

          9  plants to replace this power starting again in 2005

         10  and beyond.

         11                 Again, you had mentioned yourself

         12  you're very familiar with it so I don't need to give

         13  you a lecture on that, but, you know, we have to

         14  remember here that New York City is constrained by

         15  the 80 percent rule, so it doesn't really matter

         16  what the source of power is outside of that area, as

         17  long as it's available, the fact is, is that New

         18  York only needs to get about 2,500 megawatts into

         19  the City, they're constrained, they're getting about

         20  that much. The question is does it exist? It does

         21  exist. Do we have transmission capacity? Yes, we do.

         22                 You know, and then finally, I

         23  mentioned already, we have a choice, it's just a

         24  matter of political will. We have to facilitate the

         25  construction of new plants. Again, that's within our
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          2  power to do. The PSC can implement policies and

          3  direct the utilities to enter into long-term

          4  contracts, which will facilitate the financing of

          5  some of these plants that have gotten stalled

          6  because of credit constraints in the market.

          7                 Likewise, despite what that gentleman

          8  said in the previous panel, most of the groups that

          9  are in favor of shutting Indian Point are not

         10  opposed to new sources of power or transmission

         11  lines.

         12                 To give you an example, RiverKeeper

         13  is not opposed to the Millennium Project. We do have

         14  some concerns about the siting across the river, but

         15  if they were to correct those we would potentially

         16  be in favor of that project.

         17                 There's a new project Conjunction,

         18  which you're well aware of.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         20                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Which I am very

         21  excited about. We are not taking an official

         22  position on it. That's 2,000 megawatts coming down

         23  from New York City -- sorry, from Albany to New York

         24  City, most of it or half of it buried underground,

         25  the rest of it on existing right of way. I think

                                                            244

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  that's very promising, could be on line by 2005 and

          3  something that we should seriously consider.

          4                 And then finally, and Dan will get

          5  into more of the details here, we do need to pursue

          6  anyway, whether we shut this plant down or not, an

          7  aggressive energy efficiency and conservation

          8  strategy.

          9                 New York used to be a leader on this

         10  in the last five or ten years, we've really fallen

         11  behind and that's inexcusable no matter what the

         12  fate of Indian Point.

         13                 But the point is, it's important to

         14  remember, and these guys will trot out the

         15  California example over and over again, but,

         16  remember, California didn't have a shortage of

         17  supply. They messed up their D regulation policies

         18  and they had price gouging from Enron-style

         19  companies outside the state. That's why California

         20  had a problem, not because of the constraint in

         21  energy supply. That was ridiculous. And it's

         22  important to remember that in response to that,

         23  whatever the cause, the state implemented very

         24  aggressive energy efficiency conservation programs,

         25  managed to reduce consumption by ten percent. If you
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          2  apply those same kind of policies here in New York

          3  State, that 10 percent would equal 2,000,

          4  coincidentally 2,000 megawatts. Are you going to get

          5  it all there easily? No, that takes some time to do,

          6  but you could implement these kinds of policies in

          7  time for this summer, let alone next summer. You can

          8  do it in a matter of weeks or months.

          9                 So, I would just summarize by saying

         10  that we appreciate that you put this resolution

         11  before the Committee. We urge you strongly to pass

         12  this as quickly as you can. I think that this is

         13  long overdue. We've got 270 other elected officials

         14  around the State of New York, Connecticut and New

         15  Jersey, who are already crying for the closure of

         16  this plant. New York City has to be a leader on this

         17  issue considering the population density you have

         18  here in the City, and I just want to remind you that

         19  only a year, year and a half ago this same Council

         20  passed a resolution overwhelmingly to clean up the

         21  PCBs from the Hudson River, and you did so wisely.

         22                 I would say if you compare that kind

         23  of threat to the kind of threat that we're now

         24  facing from Indian Point, albeit relatively small,

         25  it's not like the probability is high that it's
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          2  going to happen, but it's a very significant risk

          3  that didn't exist before. But, again, if you compare

          4  those two things, then I would think that the same

          5  Council should pass this resolution.

          6                 Finally, I would encourage you to put

          7  pressure on FEMA. Their behavior in recent weeks is

          8  nothing short of outrageous. They are trying to pass

          9  the buck back and forth between the counties and the

         10  State, and they need to take responsibility and

         11  acknowledge what everybody else knows, even without

         12  being an emergency expert, and that is that this

         13  plan can't work. There's nothing that these guys can

         14  say to address the issue.

         15                 You can tinker with a plan, but you

         16  can't change the fundamental road network around

         17  that plant, and you can't change the population

         18  densities, and you can't change the way people are

         19  going to behave and react, in the event of a

         20  terrorist attack especially.

         21                 And then, finally, I would encourage

         22  you to support the Westchester proposed transition

         23  plan, which Andy Spano and Mike Kaplowitz and other

         24  are trying to raise money for.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, I was very
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          2  interested in what that was all about. I've got to

          3  find out more about that.

          4                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: What these guys are

          5  trying to do is take a proactive stance to say, hey,

          6  listen, assuming we're going to shut down Indian

          7  Point, how can we put a study in place that

          8  anticipates the kinds of impacts that might result

          9  in terms of workers, in terms of the local tax base

         10  in the Buchanan area, and also in terms of energy

         11  and say let's make a plan, put together a plan so we

         12  can make a much more smooth transition. And I'd be

         13  happy to talk to you about that more, but we

         14  encourage the Council to consider contributing

         15  financially, say $100,000, to get that study up and

         16  running.

         17                 And then, finally, I would encourage

         18  you all as elected officials to demand that NYISO

         19  (phonetic) provides the data behind some of their

         20  recent analysis. I think in the past it's been

         21  pretty easy to obtain that data, and suddenly

         22  they're closing the doors, not allowing us to see

         23  it. If they really are willing to stand behind some

         24  of the claims they've made in recent days, I'd like

         25  to --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you mean the

          3  ISO?

          4                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Right, the New York

          5  Independent System Operator.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          7                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Sorry, I'm

          8  butchering the acronym there, but, yes, the ISO.

          9                 We would like to see those stats and

         10  figures and let independent economists take a look

         11  at them and see if they reach the same conclusion.

         12                 Unfortunately, NYISO, which is the

         13  agency that we have to rely on for these figures, is

         14  not always as independent as it could be. I think

         15  that's it's quite sympathetic to the Entergy Power

         16  Company, and I've even shifted some of their

         17  analysis and forecasts in the last year, which are

         18  hard to explain.

         19                 So, we've heard all the arguments. We

         20  know Westchester County doesn't want this plant,

         21  people don't want it, the County Executive doesn't

         22  want it, the Legislature doesn't want it. I think

         23  that it is common sense that if a community living

         24  around this dangerous plant doesn't want it, that it

         25  ought not to operate.
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          2                 I encourage, basically Entergy has

          3  run out of excuses, and I think it's time for the

          4  New York City Council to provide some leadership and

          5  move as expeditiously as it can to pass this

          6  resolution, and I would encourage you to amend the

          7  resolution to include a time factor.

          8                 You call for the decommission of the

          9  plant, you don't call for it to be commissioned by

         10  any particular time, I think it's important to

         11  include that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Any particular

         13  recommendations that you like to make, and of course

         14  that goes for everyone here, please, you know, down

         15  to the wording we'd be happy to listen to input

         16  people had.

         17                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: We will submit

         18  recommendations on that account.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Thank you very much

         22  for the opportunity to testify.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         24                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Good afternoon. My

         25  name is Dan Rosenblum.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You have to do

          3  the mic trick.

          4                 MR. ROSENBLUM: It seemed a little

          5  quiet. Okay.

          6                 My name is Dan Rosenblum from the

          7  Pace Law School.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just move the

          9  mic closer to you, so that way you don't have to

         10  lean so much.

         11                 MR. ROSENBLUM: All right. All right,

         12  thank you.

         13                 I'm going to limit my testimony today

         14  to describing why closing Indian Point should not

         15  have significant impact on reliability in Downstate

         16  New York.

         17                 I want to describe why existing

         18  generation in transmission resources, combined with

         19  aggressive energy efficiency and conservation, will

         20  provide safe and reliable energy to Downstate New

         21  York.

         22                 And before going into the analysis, I

         23  want to talk about what the facts are, give you some

         24  background, some of which you heard. But Indian

         25  Point's capacity, just about 2,000 megawatts, is
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          2  just about 6.2 percent of the peak demand forecast

          3  for the summer, for the state as a whole. About 5.2

          4  percent of the forecast, including reserve margin.

          5  It's about 16 percent of the Con Edison service

          6  territory peak demand, as set a couple of years ago.

          7                 New York State has an integrated

          8  electric power system that includes hundreds of

          9  generating facilities and thousands of miles of

         10  transmission lines. The system is integrated with

         11  the PJM, Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Maryland pool to

         12  the west, New England power pool, and the Canada. We

         13  have the access to a tremendous amount of power

         14  throughout the region.

         15                 I don't have to tell you about the 80

         16  percent rule, you know about it. What that means, of

         17  course, is that we know we have 8,860 megawatts

         18  right off the bat out of the 11,020 megawatt peak

         19  load forecast for the summer. So, we're a pretty

         20  good way along without any additional power.

         21                 We also know that approximately 5,000

         22  megawatts of power can be imported into New York

         23  City over existing transmission lines, from

         24  Westchester County and Upstate New York, Long

         25  Island, and from New Jersey.

                                                            252

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 And we know that the power systems in

          3  PJM New England have far more power than they need,

          4  they reserve margins in excess of 30 percent, so

          5  there is power out there.

          6                 We also know that from the New York

          7  ISO's very recent forecast of Monday, that there

          8  will be 1,231 megawatts of new capacity installed in

          9  Eastern New York by the beginning of this summer,

         10  and an additional 1,900 megawatts of capacity should

         11  be generated in electricity in New York City by

         12  2006, and another 2,200 megawatts in other parts of

         13  the state, again by 2006. There's a lot of power

         14  coming in.

         15                 All right, what happens when Indian

         16  Point is shut down? And I'm saying when it is, not

         17  when it will be, I assume it has to be. The good

         18  news is that nothing should happen. Even on the few

         19  summer days and hours when high heat, high humidity

         20  for summer peaks, there's an ample supply cushion

         21  that should provide that the lights stay on. And to

         22  the extent necessary, energy can be brought in from

         23  out of state, can be imported to augment in-state

         24  resources.

         25                 Again, in New York City, you already
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          2  have 80 percent there, the question is how you find

          3  the remaining portion, the 5,000 megawatts coming

          4  into the City will provide that power.

          5                 For the rest of the state, reserve

          6  margins will fall somewhat below the New York ISO

          7  required 18 percent. Again, there is more than

          8  enough power available from out-of-state that can be

          9  imported to meet energy needs.

         10                 There is enough power to more than

         11  meet energy needs, there is not enough to, up to the

         12  full reserve margin that differential can come from

         13  out of state.

         14                 Of course reserve margins are

         15  required because unanticipated events do occur. You

         16  do have unexpected outages, you have transmission

         17  lines go down, you may have much greater heat and

         18  humidity than you expect. The good news is that

         19  generating plant forced outages are going down,

         20  they're now down below a ten percent forced outage

         21  rate, but they go down.

         22                 My point today is that while in-state

         23  supplies combined with the availability of imported

         24  energy should provide a more than adequate defense

         25  against unanticipated problems. There are additional
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          2  and very important lines of defense that ensure

          3  reliability. One of those is the on-site generation.

          4  Often known as distributor generation, it's what you

          5  often find in hospitals as back-up power, you find

          6  in office buildings, the elevator is going, you find

          7  in some manufacturing facilities.

          8                 The down side as you said earlier is

          9  that it can be dirtied. Most of it is as of now

         10  dirty diesel. We're hoping to move that to a cleaner

         11  type of energy in the future, but for now it's

         12  dirty. But it's there if we need it.

         13                 Longer term, there is a tremendous

         14  potential for building a significant amount of

         15  distributed generation, generally using natural gas

         16  and far cleaner than existing diesels.

         17                 A study recently conducted by the

         18  Pace Energy Project in the energy nexus for the New

         19  York City Energy Research Development Authority

         20  finds that just one substantive distributed

         21  generation combined heat and power, where you

         22  generate heat and use the excess, you generate

         23  electricity and use the excess heat, can potentially

         24  add 4,500 megawatts of capacity Downstate within the

         25  next ten years.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Say that again.

          3                 MR. ROSENBLUM: It can potentially --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But what's it?

          5                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Combined heat and

          6  power. It's the generation of electricity using the

          7  excess heat for, could be for district heating,

          8  could be for cooling.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, what does

         10  that come from? No, no, I don't understand where

         11  this power is coming from.

         12                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Oh, I'm sorry. Okay,

         13  fine. Combined heat and power.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Combining heat

         15  and power.

         16                 MR. ROSENBLUM: It's basically a

         17  generation plant, and unlike most generation plants

         18  where you lose most of the heat --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see. Okay.

         20                 MR. ROSENBLUM: You save it and use it

         21  for -- it's called co-generation, I'm sorry.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, co-gen.

         23                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Far more efficient.

         24  Efficiencies range up to 90 percent instead of the

         25  38 or so percent.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          3                 MR. ROSENBLUM: So, environmentally

          4  it's just wonderful.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 MR. ROSENBLUM: But in the next ten

          7  years we can get 4,500 megawatts of CHP, combined

          8  heat and power, in Downstate New York. It's a

          9  tremendous amount of power.

         10                 The close of Indian Point would

         11  likely accelerate the development of combined heat

         12  and power to a greater extent than we had projected

         13  in that study because you're likely to have some of

         14  the higher prices. And to the extent people are

         15  worried about reliability, and I don't think they

         16  have to be, but to the extent they are, they might

         17  be more likely to try to generate their own

         18  electricity.

         19                 To the extent there is concern about

         20  reliability, government should resolve tariff

         21  barriers, interconnection requirements, and

         22  permanent issues that may inhibit the development of

         23  otherwise economic combined heat and power projects,

         24  they're often stymied by really unnecessary

         25  barriers.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          3                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Now, in addition to

          4  on-site generation, conservation provides another

          5  very important line of defense.

          6                 I heard other witnesses say you can't

          7  conserve away, and that's just rhetoric. I mean, the

          8  reality is, and we can talk to you now about studies

          9  showing that you can in fact do so.

         10                 Conservation provides a low-cost and

         11  environmentally superior means to further and

         12  dramatically increase reliability.

         13                 Conservation is as simple as shutting

         14  off unnecessary lights, turning down air

         15  conditioners, switching off unnecessary power using

         16  equipment. It's not rocket science.

         17                 Combined with simple energy

         18  efficiency measures, like compact fluorescent bulbs

         19  or energy efficient refrigerators, you can have a

         20  dramatic demand reduction.

         21                 Benefits of such a program in

         22  addition to ensuring that there is enough energy,

         23  include helping to ensure that transmission and

         24  distribution lines are not pushed past thermal

         25  limits, and eliminating the emissions associated
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          2  with the electricity that would otherwise have to be

          3  generated.

          4                 I wish Charlie Komanoff were here

          5  today. He was supposed to be on the panel, and I

          6  assumed he'd be talking about this in detail. But

          7  the California experience in 2001 provides an

          8  excellent demonstration that conserving energy can

          9  provide tremendous reliability benefits and provide

         10  them very quickly.

         11                 In 2001, California used the

         12  culmination of conservation and energy efficiency to

         13  reduce demand 14 percent in June of that year.

         14                 This conservation success in

         15  California can largely be replicated in New York

         16  City and surrounding suburbs, according to a study

         17  that Charles Komanoff did last year with the

         18  RiverKeeper and the Pace Energy Project and the

         19  Natural Resources Defense Council.  According to

         20  that study, implementation of an aggressive

         21  conservation program could reduce summer peak loads

         22  in southeastern New York State, that's New York

         23  City, Westchester, and Long Island, by 5.6 to 14.8

         24  percent.

         25                 Those percentages translate into very
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          2  significant reduced demand for electricity. At the

          3  low end we're talking about 1,163 megawatts. That's

          4  the low end. The high end, 3,032 megawatts, and a

          5  central estimate just over 2,000 megawatts, or the

          6  capacity of Indian Point.

          7                 So, within a very short time we can

          8  conserve away the need for Indian Point.

          9                 Just one more level of defense here.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Last point?

         11                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Yes, actually.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I thought

         13  you said that.

         14                 MR. ROSENBLUM: No, no, no. I have one

         15  more.

         16                 Another line of defense is energy

         17  efficiency, which I distinguish from conservation,

         18  which is more behavioral, energy efficiency is more

         19  using, more efficient appliances, so you get the

         20  same service from less input.

         21                 New Yorkers voice a tremendous amount

         22  of energy using inefficient appliances --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And they always

         24  will.

         25                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Well, we can do a
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          2  whole lot better, in part by changing the market.

          3  But they may.

          4                 Other states have shown that you can

          5  really have a tremendous impact. Lighting motors are

          6  just terribly inefficient right now. This is not

          7  behavioral, this is a question of making a decision

          8  to buy something more efficient so you save money,

          9  not just to do good.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Which we're

         11  doing in the Council. We're doing this Energy Star

         12  Program with washing machines so we save water, in

         13  addition to energy, and Speaker Miller and myself

         14  have coauthored an energy conservation report. We're

         15  very serious about this issue.

         16                 MR. ROSENBLUM: The leadership is

         17  really essential, such an incredible savings

         18  available, at really, really no cost.

         19                 Should note that energy savings from

         20  an aggressive energy efficiency program could exceed

         21  the energy savings described above for conservation

         22  over a longer time horizon. Behavioral changes don't

         23  last as long. Energy efficiency, when you put in new

         24  appliances, you got it, it's good.

         25                 We expect a study to be released by
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          2  the New York State Energy Research and Development

          3  Authority any day now, given some estimate of what

          4  the potential is in New York State. We don't have it

          5  yet.

          6                 So, for now we can look at a very

          7  similar study completed in Vermont to give us some

          8  reasonable approximation. That study estimate set a

          9  concerted sustained campaign involving highly

         10  aggressive strategies to improve energy efficiency,

         11  could result in reductions of 15.2 percent of the

         12  statewide electricity sales within five years, and

         13  30 percent within ten years.

         14                 The Vermont strategies focus on new

         15  construction, renovation, replacement, retail

         16  product purchases, early retirement, and

         17  supplemental measure retrofits by residential,

         18  commercial and industrial electricity users. Across

         19  the board tremendous savings.

         20                 We should be able to do even better

         21  here. We have higher saturation of air conditioning,

         22  and when Indian Point is closed, we're going to have

         23  somewhat higher prices and effective pricing will

         24  encourage people to invest in energy efficiencies.

         25                 So, energy efficiency is another
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          2  layer of defense over and above conservation, over

          3  and above the on-site generation, over and above the

          4  fact we already have plenty of power in transmission

          5  to move more power in.

          6                 I'll skip most of the summary and

          7  just say to provide yet more reliability we're going

          8  to have to implement a concerted sustained campaign

          9  involving highly aggressive strategies to improve

         10  energy efficiency in Downstate New York.

         11                 The conservation campaign can be done

         12  right away --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'll ask you to

         14  summarize, please.

         15                 MR. ROSENBLUM: I'm doing that right

         16  now.

         17                 Okay, the summary is we do not need

         18  Indian Point. What we do need is to work together to

         19  take advantage of the opportunities that I just

         20  described.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         23  you. Certainly whatever you have in the way of these

         24  studies, do we have these studies already from you?

         25                 MR. ROSENBLUM: You have the Komanoff
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          2  study.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          4                 MR. ROSENBLUM: We can send you the

          5  study on combined heat and power.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, terrific.

          7                 MR. ROSENBLUM: And I can provide --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, that's

          9  right. Yes, we have that.

         10                 MR. ROSENBLUM: I can provide you

         11  access to the Vermont study.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         13  you very much. Let me just ask some questions.

         14                 Mr. Matthiessen, you made reference

         15  to a recent NRC study or studies that indicated

         16  there could be potentially thousands of deaths

         17  associated with radiological release, what study was

         18  that? Do we have that?

         19                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Yes, I'll just

         20  mention briefly, then I'm going to pass it to my

         21  associate Kyle Ravin, who is our RiverKeeper's

         22  policy analyst, but essentially this --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, was Kyle

         24  going to present testimony?

         25                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: He wasn't going to
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          2  present, but he's here to answer any questions in

          3  case I don't know the answers. But in a nutshell it

          4  was a study that looked at major radiological

          5  releases from a spent fuel pool accident, and I'll

          6  let Kyle give you the date of that study and the

          7  basic findings.

          8                 MR. RAVIN: The report that he's

          9  referring to is Appendix C of new reg document 1738.

         10  It's released in February 2001. It's actually the

         11  document where earlier in the report it addresses

         12  the issue of an airplane crash, an accident, an

         13  airplane crash into a nuclear power plant and the

         14  width of the walls of the spent fuel pool. It

         15  provided the probability that one out of two

         16  aircraft today would be able to permeate the five

         17  foot thick spent fuel pool wall 45 percent of the

         18  time.

         19                 This was related to the spent fuel

         20  pool walls, but it actually also applies to the

         21  containment dome. As you know, parts of the

         22  containment dome are three and a half feet thick.

         23  So, it was a report designed to deal with accident

         24  consequences associated with the spent fuel pool

         25  disaster.
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          2                 The numbers actually also can be

          3  applied to the containment dome. But for us --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Can they be

          5  applied to the containment dome? Because, you know,

          6  the physics of a containment dome versus a wall, I

          7  mean a wall is a flat surface, you can have a

          8  containment dome, the fact that it sort of curves

          9  out in all directions, I think it's no more -- I

         10  just have questions about the applicability of one

         11  to the other, flat surface versus like a geodesert

         12  kind of thing.

         13                 MR. RAVIN: My understanding is it

         14  could still be used in that way.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         16                 MR. RAVIN: In terms of the spent fuel

         17  disaster issue, I think it's probably almost more

         18  important to focus on a ground attack. As you know,

         19  Entergy uses mock exercises, mock terrorist attacks

         20  at the site. A security officer, Foster Zeh, came

         21  forward in December of last year to talk about how

         22  he participated in these exercises and within 40

         23  seconds he was able to gain access to the spent fuel

         24  pool buildings and place charges, explosives, in key

         25  locations that would result in a catastrophic
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          2  accidents should they have been real explosives.

          3                 He was asked to dum down many times,

          4  to dum down his attack on the plant. He was one of

          5  the mock attackers.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Who is this now?

          7                 MR. RAVIN: Foster Zeh. He was going

          8  to be here today --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This is all in

         10  the report?

         11                 MR. RAVIN: This is all in the report.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The report that

         13  you cited about, the one that Alex cited, right?

         14                 MR. RAVIN: It's in our testimony here

         15  today.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         17                 MR. RAVIN: Foster Zeh was interviewed

         18  by "Good Morning America", in which he talked about

         19  many of these concerns. He was featured in a New

         20  York Times' article on December 8th, and he's

         21  written his concerns to the Institute Nuclear Power

         22  Operations, and so they're documented there.

         23                 He's an accredited security officer

         24  with a great deal of background.

         25                 He's trained a number of the security

                                                            267

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  guards at the Indian Point site, and he feels, and a

          3  number of other security guards feel, that the spent

          4  fuel pool buildings are not adequately protected in

          5  the wake of 9/11. And as you know, ABC News just did

          6  a story on it last month about how Entergy had

          7  hydrogen tanks closely positioned towards the spent

          8  fuel pool buildings.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. And, so,

         10  Alex's report that he referenced is an NRC report,

         11  and yours is from, the other one you are talking

         12  about is --

         13                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: He initially was

         14  confirming some of the things I said about the spent

         15  fuel pool access and dispersing radiation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         17                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: He then went on to

         18  talk about some of the vulnerabilities of the spent

         19  fuel pool --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         21                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Based on eyewitness

         22  accounts from some of the security guards at the

         23  plant basically suggesting that it's not secure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And that's all

         25  documented in something that we can get?
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          2                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Yes, we can submit

          3  that documentation to you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          5                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: I think it's in my

          6  testimony, in the witness testimony.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Right.

          8                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: And we can also

          9  provide you with other reports. There is an internal

         10  Entergy report that was leaked to RiverKeeper a few

         11  months ago that just documents some of the very

         12  serious security problems at the plant. And, again,

         13  that's why I say, I trust those security guards are

         14  telling the truth about security of the plant and

         15  not some hired, retired FBI agent who doesn't have

         16  any expertise in that particular area to tell us

         17  what the real nature of the security is.

         18                 If I can make one quick point,

         19  Chairman?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         21                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: I heard one of the

         22  previous Entergy's hired experts make a big case

         23  about some study that the nuclear industry released

         24  several months ago showing that you actually could

         25  not penetrate a containment dome.
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          2                 They base that on a Sandia lab study

          3  from many years ago, and when they issued that

          4  report several months ago, Sandia Lab's own

          5  officials were appalled by the misuse of that

          6  information by the energy industry, sorry, the

          7  nuclear energy industry, and they disavowed the use

          8  of the studies and the analysis they had done as a

          9  way of trying to make the claim that these

         10  containment domes are in fact robust enough to

         11  protect against a commercial jet liner crashing into

         12  it.

         13                 Likewise, the NRC is still looking

         14  into this question. They had acknowledged that they

         15  are not sure yet whether or not that that is

         16  possible, and I had a slightly different

         17  understanding, we'll clarify and get that

         18  information to you, but I was under the impression

         19  that the NRC had also released a study or a comment

         20  that suggested that about 45 percent of the time you

         21  could have penetration of the engines from a

         22  commercial jet liner through a wall in a containment

         23  dome. So we'll clarify that for you later.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Anything that

         25  you could bring to our attention would be greatly
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          2  appreciated.

          3                 And with regard to energy

          4  reliability, certainly it's an issue that we have a

          5  lot of concerns about. You know, I know that it's

          6  clearly important to get people to change their

          7  habits and to embrace energy efficiency, but the

          8  wide-sweeping changes that we would need to make in

          9  order to make that happen seemed, you know,

         10  incremental, although theoretically it could be

         11  done.

         12                 But as the energy, if we were to take

         13  2,000 megawatts off-line, I clearly would, I mean

         14  this is the whole supply and demand thing. So, you

         15  take 2,000 megawatts off, we have a supply, and you,

         16  yourself, indicate that we would be looking at price

         17  increases that could induce people to do in-house

         18  generation or these other kinds of things, what kind

         19  of price increases do you expect might be in the

         20  offing if we were to take 2,000 megawatts from

         21  Indian Point off line in the short term?

         22                 MR. ROSENBLUM: There is no way I can

         23  predict. It takes a sophisticated study to do that.

         24                 I live with the Entergy study from

         25  last year, a five to eight percent, and point out
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          2  that to the extent you conserve energy, or use

          3  energy efficiency, you keep the price increases from

          4  going higher. You'll probably make them much lower

          5  actually.

          6                 Prices go up because you have to go

          7  to the next more expensive unit of electricity

          8  production. If you don't have to produce that

          9  energy, you hold the price increases lower.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon me?

         11                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Okay, what I said is

         12  one of the reasons why prices go up, when you shut

         13  down Indian Point, is because you have to use the

         14  next more expensive source of energy. To the extent

         15  you have less electric demand because of

         16  conservation or energy efficiency, you don't have to

         17  use those more expensive units, so you minimize or

         18  eliminate the price increases.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         20                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Not to mention the

         21  people who actually conserve have lower bills.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         23                 Same question, I guess this is the

         24  last question, this happened a couple of times

         25  already, this question: if the NRC and FEMA are
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          2  really part of a culture of cover-up like with

          3  regard to, I've asked before -- you already know

          4  what the question is, I'm losing my ability to

          5  articulate as the day goes on. I think I'm getting

          6  dehydrated or something, but why haven't people

          7  taken on the NRC and FEMA? And as we do with all

          8  kinds of other federal agencies, hit them with the

          9  science, and that, you know, your job is to do this,

         10  is to make sure that you protect evacuation plans,

         11  and why has not the scientific community, as it has

         12  in other efforts, you know risen up and taken FEMA

         13  and the NRC to task and make them do the appropriate

         14  standards and oversight that are necessary for them

         15  to carry out their constitutional mandate?

         16                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Well, I was hoping to

         17  get a chance to answer that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: There you go.

         19                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Alex wants to answer

         20  too, but let me tell you my thought. I used to be a

         21  state regulator and at that point it was just --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: State regulator

         23  where?

         24                 MR. ROSENBLUM: In Illinois. I was a

         25  state regulatory commissioner, for four years, and
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          2  it was kind of nice to know that people couldn't

          3  challenge us, unless they can show that we were

          4  really, really wrong. Because courts defer to our

          5  technical expertise.

          6                 Same thing here. It's very hard to

          7  challenge an administrative decision by an agency

          8  that's assumed to have the expertise.

          9                 Now, when I've been an advocate I'm

         10  equally frustrated. It's outrageous. But the reality

         11  is that it's very hard to challenge the technical

         12  expertise of an agency, and that may help explain

         13  why you see this what otherwise looks very strange

         14  situation.

         15                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: I have a slightly

         16  more cynical view of that, and that is that, I mean,

         17  frankly, the NRC by design promulgated regulations

         18  that they would use to regulate this industry that

         19  gave them almost a monopoly on any kind of

         20  regulation over this industry. They took that power

         21  away from the counties that had to host these

         22  nuclear power plants, and they took it away from the

         23  state that also has to house and regulate other

         24  different kinds of facilities in the state, thereby

         25  giving themselves full control, and my view of this,
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          2  it sounds conspiratorial, because there was a lot of

          3  problems with this industry, not just in terms of

          4  safety and emergency planning, but also just in

          5  terms of cost. And, so, I think they created so many

          6  hurdles essentially that make it beyond full

          7  regulation even of Congress, both the NRC and FERC,

          8  another federal agency, or have special commissions

          9  that are kind of slightly beyond the full control of

         10  Congress.

         11                 But I think that you've raised a very

         12  important point, and I think that it's just a matter

         13  of time before one of our leading elected officials

         14  who represent us down in Washington are going to

         15  call for such a study to be done by the National

         16  Academy of Sciences, or the National Research

         17  Council or some such independent research agency,

         18  and I think it ought to be done.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you very, very much. We greatly appreciate the

         21  opportunity to --

         22                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Jim, I had said

         23  earlier that just listening to some of the testimony

         24  that I had a bunch of quick points I wanted to go

         25  through. If there is not time for that, I could
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          2  submit it afterwards. If that's your preference, or

          3  I can try and do it quickly.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: In the interest

          5  of moving along, if that would be okay, that would

          6  be great.

          7                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We appreciate

          9  it.

         10                 I would also like to direct the

         11  Sergeants to open a window, it's getting a little

         12  hot in here. But thank you.

         13                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Thank you.

         14                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Thank you very much,

         15  appreciate it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         17  much, and I want to hear those points. I mean I'm

         18  just saying --

         19                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: We'll submit them to

         20  you at a later date.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Terrific.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 Mark Williams, the next witness.

         24                 Mr. Williams.

         25                 MR. WILLIAMS: How are you doing,
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          2  Councilman?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          4                 MR. WILLIAMS: For the record?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure, I just

          6  have to do the routine.

          7                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          8  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

          9  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         10  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         11                 MR. WILLIAMS: Yes, I do.

         12                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Williams. Thank you for the opportunity to be here.

         15                 We thank your for the opportunity to

         16  hear your views. You've given us extraordinary

         17  access to you and your people, and I appreciate that

         18  very much, and as a union member myself, I'm very

         19  concerned about the fate of the people that you

         20  represent, and I know you have a long history in

         21  this industry, and also at this facility. So, for

         22  many reasons, you're someone that we want to be able

         23  to work closely with on this issue. So, thank you

         24  for being here. Thank you for your patience.

         25                 MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, and

          3  what do you got?

          4                 MR. WILLIAMS: I had a prepared

          5  statement but I think in the interest of expediting,

          6  one of the beautiful things about going last is you

          7  hear what everybody said, so --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, you're not

          9  last. You're not last.

         10                 MR. WILLIAMS: Well, getting there.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How many people

         12  still want to testify? There's a lot of people that

         13  want to testify. We got a lot of them.

         14                 MR. WILLIAMS: Okay. But, again, in

         15  the interest of speeding things up, I just wrote

         16  down some issues that I would like to just talk

         17  about as it went on.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         19                 MR. WILLIAMS: The first thing I would

         20  like to talk about is the gentleman over here,

         21  Daniel Rosenblum, who just talked about the 80

         22  percent rule and the power.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         24                 MR. WILLIAMS: While I don't

         25  necessarily disagree with the numbers that he put up
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          2  there, what I do disagree with is the ultimate

          3  conclusion, while PJM and the New England systems

          4  may have excess power, there is one major problem,

          5  that's delivering that power. You can't deliver

          6  power from surpluses up in Albany, the New England

          7  states, PJM, under those systems, because the

          8  transmission lines are already at full capacity.

          9                 So, you only have two options, you

         10  either have to juice up the current transmission

         11  lines from the current 345,000 volts.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         13                 MR. WILLIAMS: Up to the 750,000 volts

         14  that was proposed over in New England --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Excuse me. It's

         16  not necessary to open up any more windows. We're

         17  good. We're good. Okay. I'm getting over the flu, I

         18  don't want it back. As a matter of fact, I've got a

         19  breeze back here. Okay. Can't satisfy me.

         20                 Sorry, about that, Mark.

         21                 MR. WILLIAMS: That's fine.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You were

         23  indicating that the power lines you have to --

         24                 MR. WILLIAMS: Right. Right now those

         25  power lines are being used at full capacity. They
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          2  currently run those big high tension lines you see

          3  here at 345,000 volts. A utility up in New England

          4  suggested in order to bring some power down into New

          5  York they would have to increase those lines from

          6  345,750 volts. The problem that is it's costly to

          7  one, it's cheaper than running new lines, but it is

          8  costly because you have to bring in new transformers

          9  and whatnot, there's a lot of infrastructure that

         10  has to get done.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Wouldn't you

         12  just run new -- I mean, wouldn't you just put

         13  another 375 next to another --

         14                 MR. WILLIAMS: No, they want to juice

         15  up the voltages. It's cheaper to juice up the

         16  voltages. It's cheaper to replace the current

         17  transformers and to raise the voltages, as opposed

         18  to going through miles and miles and miles and miles

         19  of cable.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see.

         21                 MR. WILLIAMS: Because it's a costly

         22  project. Because cable only runs in the 1,000 foot

         23  sections.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         25                 MR. WILLIAMS: So, it splices and
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          2  everything. They'd rather just go after the

          3  infrastructure of the transformers.

          4                 The other alternative, since that's

          5  not an option, is to run new cables, and that's

          6  going to have to be dealt with with the federal

          7  government through the Federal Energy Regulatory

          8  Commission, which is what they're looking at now.

          9                 Originally Blumenthal, who is the

         10  Attorney General up in Connecticut, and has since

         11  came out against closing Indian Point, he is also

         12  against producing the power in New England, allowing

         13  it to come down into New York.

         14                 He, and the other Attorney Generals

         15  up in New England States of Rhode Island,

         16  Massachusetts and Vermont have all come out against

         17  his proposal. Reason being is that they don't want

         18  to be a low-cost supplier of power to New York. They

         19  don't want to see their rates go up because of

         20  competition. New York getting the benefit of not

         21  having to produce power down here, and their

         22  supplies come down here as well.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Am I missing

         24  something, or is there like -- isn't there supposed

         25  to be wholesale deregulation and everyone --
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          2                 MR. WILLIAMS: Not across state lines

          3  like that. Not in terms of like where the power

          4  would have to come in.

          5                 In other words, the Attorney

          6  Generals, in order to solve the problem of delivery,

          7  because I already told you, the power lines are

          8  maxed out right now, so the only way you could do

          9  this is what they call a regional transmission

         10  organization, which is what the PJM is, it stands

         11  for Pennsylvania, Jersey Maryland with a New England

         12  ISO.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         14                 MR. WILLIAMS: They are against that

         15  because that would open up the door to allow

         16  producers in New England to bring the power down to

         17  New York.

         18                 Our Attorney General in Elliot

         19  Spitzer was in favor of it, but I think since then

         20  he's written a report where he now is against it as

         21  well.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me see if I

         23  got this. There is a wholesale deregulation, people

         24  can buy and sell, but that doesn't mean you have to

         25  construct all these pathways to make that possible.
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          2                 MR. WILLIAMS: Because there's pockets

          3  right now. Without infrastructure improvements, that

          4  can't happen.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. And so

          6  wholesale deregulation is based on you've got to do

          7  it over the existing translation capabilities, and

          8  that doesn't mean you've got to construct all of

          9  this stuff in order to make this happen?

         10                 MR. WILLIAMS: Well, now, FERC wants

         11  that to happen.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         13                 MR. WILLIAMS: FERC wants to make that

         14  happen.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That doesn't

         16  mean people have to --

         17                 MR. WILLIAMS: Home rule and the

         18  Attorney Generals are rising up against it and

         19  they're trying to fight and they're trying to block

         20  it. So, now what's being pushed is what they call a

         21  standard market design, which would try to open up

         22  the grid even further. But that, again, would be a

         23  federal energy regulatory commission decision.

         24                 So, again, I would take issue with

         25  the report, saying while it sounds nice, while, you
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          2  know, you can make them do it, you can't move power

          3  down here like that.

          4                 The other issue that was brought up

          5  as far as power, there was an article released I

          6  think in Crain's, or one of the business journals

          7  recently, about a gentleman who wants to start a

          8  company, or he has started a company, to bring power

          9  from Albany, the 140 mile trip down from Albany down

         10  to New York City. He wants to use the existing

         11  railway right of ways like was stated.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm very

         13  familiar with the project.

         14                 MR. WILLIAMS: What's that?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I am very

         16  familiar with the project.

         17                 MR. WILLIAMS: There are a lot of

         18  people that are coming out against it. It's DC for

         19  1, it requires generators in New York City, it has

         20  DC generators that go take, can put power into DC,

         21  we don't have it going the other way. So there's a

         22  problem with that of getting that DC down and then

         23  putting it onto the system. So, there's a lot of

         24  problems that would have to be done with that.

         25                 Another quick question or issue, you
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          2  raised the question, you know, about why hasn't FEMA

          3  and NRC not shut down Indian Point plants.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, I didn't

          5  really say that.

          6                 MR. WILLIAMS: No, you were saying

          7  about the science.  I think to characterize it, why

          8  hasn't all the science risen up.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         10                 MR. WILLIAMS: That's the question we

         11  ask. You know, how come MIT, RPI, Stanford, all

         12  these great institutions of learning, Manhattan

         13  College, for that matter, which used to have a

         14  reactor in their science labs, why --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Are you at

         16  Jasper?

         17                 MR. WILLIAMS: No. My brother was

         18  though. Both of them were.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Jasper is at

         20  Manhattan College --

         21                 MR. WILLIAMS: After the father.

         22                 But anyway, why they have it, and we

         23  believe it is because it is just not there. Instead

         24  you have the opposite, you have engineers currently

         25  working on nuclear power trying to improve it at all
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          2  times. To say that nuclear power is dead in this

          3  country is not accurate.

          4                 The TVA just announced back in August

          5  of this year that they're going to take $1.8 million

          6  to restore two of the Browns Ferry Nuclear Power

          7  Plan Projects that were put on hold in 1985, and

          8  they're in the process of bringing a third one

          9  on-line as well. And the reason being is they need

         10  this power, and they can't use fossil fuel because

         11  the coal plants have polluted the area so bad that

         12  they just can't tolerate another coal or fossil fuel

         13  plant.

         14                 In terms of again, you know, power,

         15  we had a contingency of labor leaders from Japan

         16  that came to our union, 12 of them, over there their

         17  unions are all nationalized, they came over here to

         18  see how deregulation was working in our country and

         19  they came obviously to New York City because of our

         20  power system over here. The question did come about

         21  nuclear power. Currently Japan produces 34 percent

         22  of their power with nuclear. They just put a new

         23  plant on line, which I think bought their power to

         24  like 32 or 33 percent, but they have 11 more plants

         25  that are scheduled to come on line in the next ten
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          2  years.

          3                 Now, arguably, in terms of

          4  population, Japan is much more highly densely

          5  populated than even New York City is, and when you

          6  look at other first world nations, like France where

          7  it's 75 percent nuclear, Germany where it's like 40,

          8  46 percent, so on down the line, where terrorism has

          9  been --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Not to be

         11  cynical but these are like pretty, you know,

         12  terrorist-friendly countries.

         13                 MR. WILLIAMS: That's my point. And

         14  England as well, which has had its share of

         15  terrorism over there and yet they still rely on

         16  nuclear power.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, my point

         18  was missed. They're not us, but go ahead.

         19                 MR. WILLIAMS: Right. But there are,

         20  England does experience its share of terrorism over

         21  there, and with all the 430 nuclear power plants

         22  that are operating worldwide, terrorism should have

         23  at least sooner or later hit one of those targets if

         24  it was a doable project. And, so, again, I don't

         25  really believe that it is doable.
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          2                 And also, those governments would be

          3  totally irresponsible if they knew that nuclear

          4  power was this monster that we've heard it out to

          5  be. I think it was referenced that it would cause

          6  the wreckage -- Indian Point could possible cause

          7  the ruin of our economy and the world I think was

          8  the words that were stated.

          9                 So, moving on, the risk of nuclear

         10  versus a coal plant. You had a doctor here earlier

         11  that testified, I think his name was Dr. Beyea,

         12  Breya?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         14                 MR. WILLIAMS: I've been to many of

         15  his talks, and I've asked him in the audience, and

         16  he matter of factly has answered the question,

         17  what's the risk of nuclear versus coal? In other

         18  words, how does coal fire plants, or fossil fuel

         19  fire plants stack up with nuclear? And his response

         20  was, well, oh, there's no comparison, they're both

         21  terrible. There is no -- coal plants he said are

         22  good for eight to 15,000 respiratory deaths a year.

         23  He says so it comes down to where if you have an

         24  accident in a nuclear power plant, you could die

         25  faster, where coal plants are killing us every day.
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          2  So, he said there's no choice. It's not a choice.

          3  You need to shut your coal plants down as well. So,

          4  that was his statement. I was hoping that I could

          5  get maybe somebody to ask that question, but I'm

          6  sure he would have answered it.

          7                 Again, in terms of safety overall,

          8  you know, the nuclear industry is the safest

          9  industry in this country, in terms of construction,

         10  in terms of mining, in terms of the airline

         11  industry, even in terms of electrical generation in

         12  New York State, there have been more deaths and more

         13  injuries at generating facilities owned by Con

         14  Edison, than there are totally in all of nuclear

         15  power in its existence in this country.

         16                 The three foot --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And also

         18  nuclears are much more labor intensive.

         19                 MR. WILLIAMS: Much more labor

         20  intensive, that's correct. You're 100 percent right.

         21  And, so, it provides more jobs for the economy,

         22  provides less damage to the environment.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I was just

         24  getting to your analogy because your average nuclear

         25  plant has much more in the way of employees than you
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          2  would like in a Con Ed system that's traditional

          3  fossil fuel powered.

          4                 MR. WILLIAMS: Right. Right.

          5                 What makes nuclear again attractive

          6  is it is a high job industry, high technical jobs,

          7  you know, a lot of training that comes with it, and

          8  it's also a low-cost energy and it's an

          9  environmentally safe energy, as opposed to those

         10  other plants.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, I would

         12  agree with that. Well, I mean, I was just making an

         13  analysis of, you know, numbers. Please continue.

         14                 MR. WILLIAMS: In terms of the Witt

         15  Report, you know, the Witt Report never said shut

         16  Indian Point down. It never made that conclusion.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It was never

         18  asked to.

         19                 MR. WILLIAMS: Right, it was never

         20  asked to. Correct. But nor did it, as it's been

         21  somewhat reported.

         22                 The Witt Report also did mention,

         23  though, about the demagoguery, without naming any

         24  groups or any individuals, it did talk about the

         25  demagoguery by so-called advocacy groups and
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          2  politicians.

          3                 What he said, one of the main factors

          4  of why the evacuation plan has problems, is that

          5  because these groups are constantly out there

          6  referring that it will never work that, and

          7  basically turning the public, instead of saying, you

          8  know, this is what we have to do to make it better,

          9  this is how we have to raise the bar, this is how we

         10  all have to work together. They're saying just the

         11  opposite, and it's having a deleterious affect on

         12  the evacuation plan overall. He said that that

         13  needed to stop and that one of the things that the

         14  Entergy or the nuclear power folks had to do was to

         15  increase the education and the awareness of nuclear

         16  power and its benefits to the general public.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If he's

         18  concerned about that, certainly he has to understand

         19  the splash that he makes as the former director of

         20  FEMA, of all people, to indicate point blank in his

         21  report that there is an evacuation plan that does

         22  not work, and of course I'll hold my final judgment

         23  on that until we have the benefit of hearing the

         24  final report. And I don't know what his final report

         25  is going to say, whether or not he's going to back
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          2  off that assertion or what, but he seems to be --

          3  you know, created quite a stir when he as former

          4  Director of FEMA made the pronouncement that we have

          5  an non-workable evacuation plan, but we'll see if

          6  that assessment passes muster in light of his final

          7  report, and what is ultimately said about it by

          8  others.

          9                 MR. WILLIAMS: In terms of, you know,

         10  the Witt Report, our issue and the union's

         11  perspective is, again, our members up there are

         12  highly trained, well skilled, highly professional

         13  people. Some of them were in this room, but I think

         14  they got tired and fell asleep -- no.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's why we

         16  opened the windows.

         17                 MR. WILLIAMS: Yes. They are the first

         18  responders in any evacuation notification-type

         19  scenario, and when we filed our comments on the Witt

         20  draft report, that was one of the points that we

         21  made salient, that they never contacted our people,

         22  they never looked to talk to the health physics

         23  technicians who will play a tremendous role in the

         24  event of an emergency, they never talk to our

         25  control room operators, his groups never talked to
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          2  our plan operators, they never talked to our

          3  emergency planning people, the people that run the

          4  environmental sirens, the people that -- so he never

          5  talked to any of our people, and we thought that was

          6  a major flaw, a missed opportunity in the report.

          7                 He also never talked to local Fire

          8  Departments up there, and that was reported just in

          9  the general news as well, to bear that out, and we

         10  also thought that was a missed opportunity, and they

         11  are the Fire Department that would be the first

         12  responder, and he never even reached out to that

         13  Fire Department. Those are two areas where we

         14  thought were major and missed opportunities.

         15                 To try to figure this out, the shadow

         16  evacuation, everybody says it's going to take place.

         17  We did have an event up there when it was owned by

         18  Con Edison, and we had in the Year 2000 we had a

         19  tube rupture up there, the so-called shadow

         20  evacuation everybody was talking about never

         21  occurred. People didn't just run and start, you

         22  know, leaving, even though it did reach the category

         23  of alert, and I'd like to point that out, because I

         24  think just the opposite happens, people do engage. I

         25  think when people do hear that there is a legitimate

                                                            293

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  need to listen they do tune in, they do engage and

          3  they do pay attention and respond the way they're

          4  supposed to. That aside, that 2000 tube rupture also

          5  led to a Public Service Commission hearing that's in

          6  the process of being settled right now. Because the

          7  2000 tube rupture, Con Edison had to shut that plant

          8  down and eventually replaced the stem generators.

          9  With that, they had to go out and buy replacement

         10  power.

         11                 That replacement power wound up

         12  costing the consumers in overcharges $273 million.

         13  Con Edison was awarded to keep that money

         14  temporarily by the PSC and now they're in the

         15  process of trying to negotiate a settlement.

         16                 For people to say that having Indian

         17  Point not on the line is going to not cost the

         18  consumer anything, you had them down for a three-,

         19  maybe a four-month period and the overcharges were

         20  over $250 million.

         21                 Just going down the rest of it.

         22  Insurance. There has been a big to do made that you

         23  can't get your insurance in the case of a nuclear

         24  accident. And they point to that because it would be

         25  so cost prohibitive.
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          2                 Just the opposite. I talked to the

          3  insurance industry, people from the insurance

          4  industry. The reason why you can't get nuclear

          5  insurance for a nuclear disaster is because there's

          6  no need for it, nobody wants it. If the product was

          7  needed and consumers wanted it, just like flood

          8  insurance, just like anything else, there would be a

          9  need for it, and the companies, State Farm and All

         10  State were the two companies I talked to, would be

         11  more than willing to offer that up as a policy to

         12  neighbors if they wanted it. But there's just no

         13  demand for it.

         14                 Pricing. Right now Con Edison -- not

         15  Con Edison -- the Indian Point Nuclear Power

         16  Facility is actually helping to keep your prices

         17  down because they enter into long-term contracts. A

         18  fossil plant can run on coal, gas, oil. They can

         19  turn it on and off as the need requires.

         20                 A nuclear power plant is not designed

         21  that way. A nuclear power plant is designed to run

         22  for its full fuel cycle. Right now that's

         23  approximately two years for a new core.

         24                 Because nuclear power plants are

         25  designed to run, and they actually are hindered when
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          2  they are turned off, because seals dry out, pumps,

          3  you know, valves, they want to run, they want to

          4  keep the water flowing through their systems,

          5  because of that the entity corporation has to enter

          6  into the long-term purchase agreements with the

          7  respective buyers which for Unit 3 would be the

          8  Power Authority, and for Unit 2 would be Con Edison.

          9                 Just to show you some of the savings,

         10  I don't have the exact numbers but you can figure it

         11  out, but it is substantial. The current pricing

         12  mechanism they have in place right now would be good

         13  for I think another year. They're getting 3.6 cents

         14  a kilowatt hour for the power produced at Indian

         15  Point 3, I believe, and 3.1 cents for Indian Point

         16  2. Those rates were negotiated when oil was between

         17  12 and 15 dollars a barrel. Now that oil is going up

         18  and natural gas for that matter is jumping up to

         19  almost 38, 40 dollars a barrel for oil, and they're

         20  predicting it's going to stay there, those costs are

         21  going to go up, and when Entergy goes to renegotiate

         22  those long-term contracts, I'm sure they're going to

         23  be reflected in their pricing. Their pricing will

         24  still be lower, because they are never going to pay

         25  the top price, whatever it is, or any given moment,
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          2  it will always be somewhat lower and reduced.

          3                 So, those plants are giving you a

          4  baseline for how much the other plants are actually

          5  gouging you, you know, to that point.

          6                 That just about covered -- two other

          7  things. Michael Kaplowitz spoke here, and I have to

          8  say that he misrepresented Legislator Oros, when he

          9  referred that even the legislator who has the

         10  Hendrick Hudson School District. Legislator Oros

         11  only voted for that resolution because if you read

         12  the resolution, it said that in order for them to

         13  close the plant, they had to first find replacement

         14  power, they had to also take care of the jobs that

         15  would be lost and training, retraining of the

         16  people, there were four criteria in that resolution.

         17  That's why he voted for that resolution, because he

         18  felt that those protections were in place.

         19                 Prior to those protections not being

         20  in the resolution he would not have signed for that

         21  resolution.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         23                 MR. WILLIAMS: The other thing was,

         24  you had Assemblyman Richard Brodsky was here, and I

         25  was told, I wasn't in the room at the time but I was
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          2  told that he did say that he has done a lot for us

          3  and he worked to protect our jobs. He helped us out

          4  with the pension issues for the Unit 3 which were

          5  owned by the Power Authority, a public utility, to

          6  convert them into a private pension system, that he

          7  did do. But in terms of securing jobs or any other

          8  statements that he made, that was never the fact.

          9                 We negotiated, our local negotiated

         10  with Entergy and the Power Authority, and they kind

         11  of guaranteed job protections or what they call a

         12  sale -- plant sales to protect the jobs and in case

         13  -- I mean protections in case the plants were sold.

         14  That was done strictly by our union. That was not

         15  legislation that was passed on that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         17                 Do you have any comment on the clause

         18  that was put in the resolution regarding worker

         19  protection?

         20                 MR. WILLIAMS: I don't at this time.

         21                 I haven't had a chance to fully

         22  review it and to see how it all lines up, but, no, I

         23  have not at the time, but I will get back to you on

         24  it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 MR. WILLIAMS: And I appreciate it,

          4  for giving me this opportunity.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. I will

          6  state for the record that if James Lee Witt puts

          7  together a report without talking to Mark Williams

          8  in Local 1-2, he's making a mistake.

          9                 MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         11  you for being here.

         12                 Oh, you probably want to know who the

         13  next witness is, right?

         14                 As I had previously announced, Lenora

         15  Colbert, from 1199, Robert Lesko from the AFT, and

         16  to be followed by David Grant of DC 37, to be

         17  followed by Putnam County Legislator Vincent

         18  Tamagia. Vincent, okay.

         19                 I just want to get a reasonable

         20  assurance from County Legislator Tamagia that if I

         21  testify before his Legislature that I'll get better

         22  placement than I'm giving him. So, we got that deal

         23  worked out. That's great.

         24                 Thank you. Thanks very much for

         25  coming here to give us the benefit of your views. We
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          2  greatly appreciate you being here.

          3                 Just for the purposes of -- who is

          4  the AFT? Okay, all right. I'm a member of that

          5  union, so I'll just reveal my alliances here.

          6                 So, Counsel to Committee will give

          7  you the oath.

          8                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          9  right hands.

         10                 In the testimony that you're about to

         11  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         12  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         13                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         15  much for coming and giving us the benefit of your

         16  views. You can go in any order, just state your name

         17  for the record and proceed with your testimony. Once

         18  everyone has testified, we'll do questions.

         19                 MS. COLBERT: Good afternoon. My name

         20  is Lenora Colbert, and I'm a Vice President and

         21  Director of the Occupational Safety and Health

         22  Department for 1199 SEIU, New York's Health Care

         23  Workers Union.

         24                 I'm speaking here today on behalf of

         25  our President Dennis Rivera, who regrets that he is
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          2  unable to be here in person, and in behalf of our

          3  237,000 members throughout New York State and

          4  Northern New Jersey.

          5                 A year ago our union became one of

          6  the first labor organizations to call for an

          7  immediate decommissioning of Indian Point Nuclear

          8  Plant.

          9                 Everything that has happened since

         10  then, and all that we've heard and read has

         11  reconfirmed our belief that closing Indian Point is

         12  imperative. By now you are undoubtedly aware of the

         13  public safety issues. Only 35 miles from where we

         14  sit today, Indian Point is a nuclear facility in

         15  which the densest population in the country.

         16                 More than 250,000 live within a

         17  ten-mile radius. Nearly 20 million people in a

         18  50-mile radius. Indian Point's Unit 2, in

         19  particular, is frequently shut down because of

         20  various maintenance problems, and considered one of

         21  the nations most dangerous reactors, which until

         22  this year was the only one in the United States with

         23  a nuclear regulation commission's worst possibility

         24  red designation, 103 out of -- 103rd out of 103

         25  nationwide.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, I'll just

          3  jump in here for a second, kind of assert my

          4  prerogative here. The characterization as a

          5  dangerous reaction -- as a dangerous reactor is not

          6  one that the NRC people on-site when I visited the

          7  plant shared. So I think it's kind of an inaccurate

          8  choice of words there, but the red designation is

          9  what it is, and so you made that point.

         10                 MS. COLBERT: Okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please continue.

         12                 MS. COLBERT: Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Even prior to

         14  September 11th, the evacuation plan for Indian Point

         15  was non-sensical. On an ordinary evening rush hour,

         16  causes a mere gridlock every day, and there's simply

         17  no way to have a safe and orderly evacuation, given

         18  the size of the surrounding population, in case of a

         19  disaster at Indian Point.

         20                 This point was punctuated by the

         21  recent Witt Report, which led to the four counties

         22  surrounding the plant to refuse to endorse the

         23  evacuation plan.

         24                 Dozens of local school boards,

         25  village, municipal, governing bodies, and local
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          2  legislators, have called in recent months for the

          3  decommissioning of Indian Point for the above

          4  reasons. Like them, our union understands that after

          5  the event of September 11th, 2001, that Indian Point

          6  would be a prime target for an attack, the

          7  consequences of which would be a catastrophe of

          8  unprecedented destruction, loss of lives, economic

          9  collapse and so forth. Even without a terrorist

         10  attack, it would be impossible to evacuate the

         11  surrounding population safely, should there be an

         12  accident. Simply put, this plant should never have

         13  been built in such a populated area. We cannot

         14  imagine that even the most vociferous proponents of

         15  nuclear power would agree that this should be.

         16                 Were we to have the chance today to

         17  start over today, but this is now and we are part --

         18  we appear to ask the New York City to join us with

         19  our many neighboring cities, counties and towns who

         20  in a rising tide of sanity are demanding that Indian

         21  Point be shut down immediately.

         22                 We have to strongly emphasize that we

         23  support creating a transition plan, including

         24  retraining of those workers who face job loss in the

         25  case of a shut down, to mitigate the impact on
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          2  Indian Point labor force. As working people

          3  ourselves, we want to ensure that Indian Point

          4  workers and their families are not harmed.

          5                 Entergy, the Louisiana-based

          6  corporation that owns the plant, falsely claims that

          7  should this plant close, 15,000 employees will be

          8  out of work the next day. That simply is not true.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: For the record,

         10  I just want to say that it's 1,500 is what you meant

         11  to say.

         12                 MS. COLBERT: Fifteen-hundred.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just want the

         14  record --

         15                 MS. COLBERT: Thank you. Right, thank

         16  you.

         17                 Fifteen-hundred employees will be out

         18  of work the next day - that simply is not true. The

         19  task of decommissioning Indian Point would take from

         20  five to ten years, and it is a labor-intensive

         21  endeavor that will employ hundreds of workers.

         22                 We hope that Entergy would choose to

         23  work with regional leaders and develop a plan to

         24  keep their office open and continue to do business

         25  in this region.
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          2                 There are other alternatives to

          3  operating a nuclear power plant at Indian Point

          4  site. In fact, we have been given to understand

          5  Entergy has applied for a state permit to build and

          6  operate 300 megawatts natural gas hard units

          7  adjacent to the nuclear plant.

          8                 Westchester County government

          9  officials are currently studying the possibilities

         10  of alternative power projects at Indian Point site.

         11                 For Entergy to argue that we should

         12  keep Indian Point open in the name of saving jobs is

         13  to be charitable, hypocritical, since the company is

         14  planning to reduce the size of Indian Point work

         15  force by 25 percent in the very near future by

         16  merging the workforces at Indian Point 2 and 3.

         17                 In any case, public safety is our

         18  primary concern, especially as health care workers.

         19  Should a disaster occur at Indian Point, all the

         20  duck tape and plastic screening in the world could

         21  not stop a thousand of our fellow workers, our

         22  neighbors and our family from catastrophe.

         23                 We urge this Council to join us in

         24  calling for the immediate decommissioning of Indian

         25  Point with a conversion plan to ensure that the

                                                            305

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  plant workers and their families are not harmed.

          3                 We thank you very much for the

          4  opportunity to speak with you today.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you. Please give our best regards to Dennis Rivera.

          7                 MS. COLBERT: Thank you.

          8                 MR. LESKO: My name is Robert Lesko,

          9  and I'm Vice President of Local 3882 of the American

         10  Federation of Teachers, and I'm here today as an

         11  officer of Local 3882, representing the 1,700

         12  clerical, technical workers at NYU.

         13                 At Local 3882 we feel it's an

         14  integral part of our mission to actively safeguard

         15  the health and safety of the clerical student and

         16  faculty workforce at NYU, safeguarding against a

         17  University administration seemingly indifferent to

         18  risk posed by construction renovation

         19  inappropriate-placed offices and adequate laboratory

         20  training and the like.

         21                 As an expansion of that mission, last

         22  spring we researched the health and safety risk

         23  posed to our members, their families and the general

         24  public by the continued operation of the Indian

         25  Point nuclear facility. In May, our Executive

                                                            306

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Council passed, unanimously, a resolution calling

          3  for the plant to immediate decommissioning.

          4                 As a labor organization, Local 3882

          5  is sensitive to a decommissioning's displacement

          6  effect upon the current work force at the facility.

          7                 Upon review of reports, such as the

          8  World Wildlife Fund's October, 2001, Clean Energy:

          9  Jobs for America's Future, and the 2002 joint report

         10  by the Economic Policy Institute and the Center for

         11  a Sustainable Economy, Clean Energy and Jobs, we

         12  recognize the potential net job creation effects

         13  resulting from the transition of energy production

         14  to non-nuclear renewable sources. Thusly, our

         15  resolution calls for the appropriate authorities to

         16  assess the number of jobs to be retained for the

         17  safe and orderly decommissioning of the facility,

         18  and to provide retraining to alternative

         19  technologies so as to preserve the livelihoods of

         20  the present workforce.

         21                 In correspondence to City Council

         22  Speaker A. Gifford Miller of last June 4th, Local

         23  3882 expressed the view that "...reportage in The

         24  New York Times, Newsday, The New York Observer, and

         25  the Westchester Journal News has established that
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          2  the possible multi-level, multi-generational

          3  environmental and financial damages of a catastrophe

          4  at Indian Point would be of a scale unprecedented in

          5  human history."

          6                 I am here then on behalf of Local

          7  3882 to re-affirm that position on the matter, and

          8  to urge the Environmental Committee to pass

          9  Resolution 64 amended to call for the immediate

         10  shutdown of the Indian Point nuclear facility.

         11                 Thank you, Chairman, and union

         12  brother.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         14  you very much. Please give my best regards to -- I'm

         15  a member of the PSE CUNY, which is ultimately under

         16  -- well, it's like the New York State United

         17  Teachers. Thank you. Thank you.

         18                 Yes, sir.

         19                 MR. GRANT: Yes, my name is David

         20  Grant. I'm the Vice President of Local 375. We

         21  represent engineers, architects and scientists. We

         22  are also the local that initiated the clean-up of

         23  the World Trade Center, the engineers, and we

         24  completed that clean-up after a round with Mayor

         25  Giuliani.
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          2                 However, I am here today representing

          3  District Council 37, and also the New York City

          4  Chapter of the Coalition of Black Trade Unionists.

          5                 A previous panel has spoke on the

          6  fact that those that are against Indian Point

          7  remaining open are using fear tactics. However, when

          8  you're telling me how closing Indian Point increases

          9  the cost of gas prices, electricity, ruining our

         10  economy and that the air will become unsafe, my

         11  question is who is using this fear tactics?

         12                 Mr. Mark Williams, who is also our

         13  brother, he said that the Governor of Connecticut

         14  has sided with them as far as their Indian Point

         15  remaining open, nevertheless, around February the

         16  11th of this year, we held a press conference with

         17  the Coalition to close Indian Point right here in

         18  front of the FEMA building and the Attorney General

         19  of Connecticut representing the Governor stated that

         20  the Governor and Connecticut is for the closure or

         21  decommissioning of Indian Point Nuclear Facility.

         22                 Also, one of the previous panelists

         23  says that to keep Indian Point power plant open,

         24  stated that if we close it we will become similar to

         25  California, and I agree with brother Alex
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          2  Matthiessen, that we all know now the information we

          3  have gotten from California is that that was a

          4  farce, that it was set up, it was created where the

          5  energy was stolen and sold back to the people.

          6                 So, if that's the depth of his

          7  research, then I think we should listen to that.

          8                 It's also been brought to our

          9  attention that our brothers and sisters unionists

         10  are members at the Indian Point nuclear facility,

         11  that they enjoy a very low property tax, and this

         12  was also arranged by the Entergy company in

         13  Buchanan.

         14                 Well, some time in order to see the

         15  whole picture you have to come out of the jar and

         16  look into it, and we realize that with our brothers

         17  and sisters there enjoying certain benefits, that

         18  they may be somewhat overlooking the safety factors.

         19                 But I come today presenting from DC

         20  37 and the New York City Coalition of Black Trade

         21  Unionists, a pledge that we have made to assist with

         22  help to maintain, to stabilize, replacement

         23  assistance and retraining assistance as DC 37 and

         24  the Coalition of Black Trade Unionists have accepted

         25  through our resolution for the immediate shutdown or
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          2  site conversion of the Indian Point nuclear power

          3  plant facility, and we thank you for the opportunity

          4  to speak today.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you for coming down here and representing the good

          7  folks of Local 375 and the Trade Union, we

          8  appreciate it very much.

          9                 Thank you all very much. I appreciate

         10  it.

         11                 MR. LESKO: I would like to just make

         12  one statement addressing one particular point

         13  addressed about ten minutes ago, in the level of

         14  labor intensiveness in different sectors of

         15  potential and existing sources.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         17                 MR. LESKO: I'm looking at a

         18  Greenpeace report Losing The Clean Energy Race,

         19  which must be dated to early 2002, where the quote

         20  said "The Department of Energy" --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Who quotes? Who

         22  quotes what?

         23                 MR. LESKO: The Greenpeace report,

         24  "Losing The Clean Energy Race To Title." A quote

         25  said the Department of Energy Report stating that
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          2  wind energy provides about five times more jobs per

          3  dollar invested than coal or nuclear power.

          4                 Now, I spent an hour on the

          5  Department of -- US Department of Energy, by the

          6  way, spent an hour on their website last night and

          7  couldn't find its report, which I think has less to

          8  do with the Greenpeace mendacity and it's shifting

          9  prioritization in the current Department of Energy.

         10  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         12  you.

         13                 Okay, we'll hear from Vincent

         14  Tamagia, of the Putnam County Legislature. I just

         15  want the next panel as well, to put them on notice,

         16  and the next panel after this will be a four-person

         17  panel. Angelina Howard, Norris McDonald, Nancy

         18  Bocacci, I hope I'm saying that right. Or Nancy

         19  Bocacci Hendrick, it looks like. Oh, Nancy Bocacci,

         20  sorry. And Stacy Cignarle, I believe is the

         21  spelling. So, that will be the next panel, if

         22  they're still here.

         23                 MR. TAMAGIA: Well, thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. We
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          2  still have to do the thing.

          3                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Would you raise your

          4  right hand?

          5                 In the testimony that you're about to

          6  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          7  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          8                 MR. TAMAGLIA: I do.

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Of course he

         11  does. Of course he does.

         12                 MR. TAMAGLIA: As an elected official

         13  I have to.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Absolutely.

         15  Absolutely.

         16                 Thank you very much for coming down

         17  from Putnam to be with us today. I appreciate it.

         18                 MR. TAMAGLIA: My pleasure. Just so

         19  you know, I have a son who lives right here, we own

         20  property on the upper west side of Manhattan as

         21  well, so I am a taxpayer here in Manhattan.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         23                 MR. TAMAGLIA: So I don't know what

         24  districts you're from but we are --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm from Queens.
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          2                 MR. TAMAGLIA: You're from the Queens

          3  district, okay.

          4                 I just want to start out just by

          5  giving just a real quick history, and I know you're

          6  tired, and I appreciate the fact that --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, I'm ready to

          8  go. I'm ready to go.

          9                 MR. TAMAGLIA: Well, I was the first

         10  legislator in New York State to pass a resolution to

         11  close Indian Point because of the inadequacy of the

         12  evacuation plan. It was prior to 9/11. It was before

         13  all of the hysteria, and all of the scare. It was

         14  just because from a very balanced approach, from a

         15  very common sense place, we cannot evacuate the

         16  people who live in the Hudson River Valley. No way.

         17                 I live within that dangerous zone.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Ten miles?

         19  Within ten miles?

         20                 MR. TAMAGLIA: Yes. And I actually

         21  grew up in five miles, in Continental Village area

         22  of Cortlandt. Thirty-six miles from Manhattan, I

         23  mean 36 miles from Manhattan is Indian Point, and

         24  there you go, you have now millions of people to

         25  think about. But let's just think about the people
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          2  who live there. Within my district I have the

          3  Lakeland School District and we talk about how an

          4  evacuation plan works. On February 14th, this year,

          5  the Lakeland School District tried to do an

          6  evacuation of the children of the school. It was

          7  absolute chaos, and after an hour and a half, they

          8  still didn't have all of the buses loaded with all

          9  of the children.

         10                 In Ossining the school buses are

         11  north of Indian Point. Ossining is south of Indian

         12  Point, and in the event of any kind of an incident,

         13  we would expect the bus driver to drive, cross in

         14  front of Indian Point, get the buses, and then go

         15  back to Ossining and try to evacuate the children.

         16                 Those are just two of the simplest to

         17  illustrate where we are in the Hudson River Valley.

         18  That's just dealing with children.

         19                 Yesterday afternoon I did a little

         20  bit of a study again and joined Assemblywoman

         21  Galiff, and the Westchester County Legislature, and

         22  we took a look at how ISO transmits and in the

         23  transmission of ISO, a lot of that came up here

         24  today, and I have to tell you, there again needs to

         25  be a common sense approach to what we do with
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          2  transmission and how we move power around New York

          3  State.

          4                 I'm glad that Mark Williams used the

          5  word "gouging," because when I saw how there is

          6  power available within New York State, but we can't

          7  get it into New York City or into the more densely

          8  populated areas, and the result of that is that

          9  we're paying higher prices, so part of the tactic of

         10  we're afraid of closing the plant down because of

         11  higher prices, we have the power, we just don't have

         12  the ability to take it and to carry it into the

         13  areas that we need to. That can easily be done. Not

         14  easily, but it can be done if we put our heads

         15  together.

         16                 And you know, in Putnam County we

         17  have the New York City watershed, and I take a look

         18  at these things as being very similar. You need

         19  power in New York City, we need water in New York

         20  City, these are the basics. We have a responsibility

         21  as New York State government and as the federal

         22  government to provide the basics and to make it

         23  affordable, and to make it safe and to make it

         24  reliable.

         25                 My issues are when we start to deal
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          2  with FEMA, a bureaucracy, and we start to deal with

          3  FERC, and we start to deal with the NRC, I've been

          4  in session for the past three years with

          5  Congresswoman Kelly and with a number of people who

          6  can't get the answers as the federal representative

          7  from the area representing the people, so why would

          8  they give the answers to people who are ancillary,

          9  you know, or outside the area.

         10                 And I worry about, when I talked

         11  about earlier about it just being common sense that

         12  I passed the resolution that I did, and I will

         13  forward them to you so you can see them. I worry

         14  about the Buchanan group communities, I worry about

         15  Entergy. Certainly Entergy bought that and they

         16  inherited it from Con Edison.

         17                 This is a problem that the federal

         18  government and that government created over 30 years

         19  ago, and we're faced with how do we solve the

         20  problem.

         21                 Unfortunately the only solution to

         22  the problem is to start all over again with

         23  something else that's non-nuclear. And I think the

         24  way that that gets done is by the policy setters in

         25  the federal government, by your highest offices in
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          2  the State government, and by all of the legislatures

          3  within the surrounding area sticking together,

          4  getting their resolutions out, getting their

          5  messages out to protect the people that they

          6  represent.

          7                 A little bit was talked in the way of

          8  conservation since I've been sitting in the

          9  audience. And again, I try to get answers from FERC.

         10  I tried to get answers yesterday from the ISO. I

         11  tried to get answers from NYSERTA, and, again,

         12  everybody does the finger-pointing game.

         13                 ISO was passing it over to, well,

         14  that's NYSERTA's responsibility, NYSERTA passes it

         15  to the State's responsibility. The state passes it

         16  to the federal government. We have a critical

         17  situation and a very dangerous situation with the

         18  operation of Indian Point here in the Hudson Valley,

         19  and I don't want to repeat all of the issues, and

         20  you're well aware and you've heard of all of them,

         21  and I wanted to be here because I have heard every

         22  single argument, and probably one of the first

         23  starting to debate this as an elected official,

         24  wanted to be here to lend you my support and in the

         25  event that you have any questions at all be able to
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          2  answer them for you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          4  you. I would welcome the opportunity to have a copy

          5  of your resolution, which is like Resolution 1, I

          6  mean not that that's it's bill number, but the first

          7  one passed on this.

          8                 Is that something that -- that passed

          9  the County Legislature?

         10                 MR. TAMAGIA: It passed unanimously

         11  twice in the same year.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Before 9/11.

         13                 MR. TAMAGIA: Before 9/11. And we just

         14  recently passed another resolution again to force

         15  our county executive's hand to do the right thing

         16  when it came to the certification.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right, right,

         18  certification thing, yes.

         19                 MR. TAMAGIA: You know the one other

         20  comment is on property taxes, and I kind of look at

         21  it this way: we can do something to recreate 1,200

         22  jobs in New York State, I don't think that's a

         23  monumental task. What we can't do is we can't

         24  replace the lives.

         25                 We have an issue right now where it's
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          2  1,200 people or is it 20 million people? Is it the

          3  taxes within the Henhud School District (phonetic),

          4  and right now people within the Henhud School

          5  District may be paying three or four-thousand

          6  dollars in average in property tax, yet in the

          7  surrounding area in my community, I have people

          8  paying eight and $12,000 and that's four or five

          9  miles from where the Henhud School District is. So

         10  there is a give and there is a take and there is

         11  going to be a need to provide some kind of a

         12  balance, but what you have to take a look at is that

         13  they have been given a gift for 20 some odd years,

         14  and now that we're approaching the life expectancy

         15  of this plan, maybe they're going to have to pay a

         16  little more like everybody else and pay their fair

         17  share.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         20  much. Thank you.

         21                 And the next panel was as I had

         22  previously introduced, that was Angelina Howard,

         23  Norris McDonald, Nancy Bocacci, Stacy Cignarle.

         24                 Followed by Alice Slater, Liz

         25  Shanklin, Gary Shaw, John Culpepper and Suzi Snyder
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          2  would be the next panel.

          3                 Thank you. Thank you for being here.

          4  Thanks for your patience. We appreciate it.

          5                 How is the temperature in the room,

          6  not right? It was too hot, then too cold, now it's

          7  just right. Okay, good. Okay, thanks. Thanks very

          8  much. Counsel will administer the oath.

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         10  right hand.

         11                 In the testimony that you are about

         12  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

         13  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         17  you. Now that you're all sworn and ready to go,

         18  thanks for your patience and I ask you to state your

         19  name for the record and proceed with your testimony.

         20                 I have testimony from Mr. McDonald,

         21  do you have a written statement, as well?

         22                 MR. McDONALD: I do. It's five pages,

         23  but I'm going to cut it down to four paragraphs.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. But the

         25  other witness, Ms. Howard, is that right?
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          2                 MS. HOWARD: Yes. And you have my

          3  written statement as well.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We do? We do

          5  have a statement for you? I don't think I --

          6                 MS. HOWARD: Nuclear Energy Institute.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, I'm all

          8  alone here. I just have Norris McDonald, I swear.

          9  Oh, okay, great, I got one here.

         10                 MS. HOWARD: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, I'm all

         12  set. Thank you. So whoever wants to go first.

         13                 MR. McDONALD: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman. I'll be brief, and I'm always fascinated,

         15  this is my second time here, I'm always fascinated

         16  by your stamina, but I'll get right to the point.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         18                 MR. McDONALD: Of course we oppose

         19  your resolution, and I want to touch on some points

         20  that haven't been touched on here today. We listened

         21  to a lot of the important witnesses and basically I

         22  want to share some different information, especially

         23  on the MSW that you mentioned earlier.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. And you're

         25  testifying on behalf of what organization?
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          2                 MR. McDONALD: African-American

          3  Environmentalist Association, I'm founder and

          4  president.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, fine.

          6                 MR. McDONALD: Norris McDonald. And

          7  opposed your Resolution 64 last year and opposed

          8  64-A this year.

          9                 But Calvert Cliffs nuclear power

         10  plant is similarly located near Washington, D.C.,

         11  and is on the Chesapeake Bay, but no one is calling

         12  for the closure of the facility. It's 40 miles from

         13  the seat of our government, all of the

         14  environmental, national environmental groups have an

         15  office base there, conference center is there,

         16  nobody is calling for the shutdown of that facility,

         17  like they're doing here and in Westchester County in

         18  the region.

         19                 Is New York somehow more important

         20  than Washington, D.C.?

         21                 The Chesapeake Bay Foundation, for

         22  instance, is a local regional group on the

         23  Chesapeake Bay, has rarely called for, or I've never

         24  seen it call for the shutdown of Calvert Cliffs. As

         25  a matter of fact, Chicken waste is considered more
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          2  dangerous I guess than the nuclear power plant

          3  there.

          4                 Orange alert, I'm not afraid, I've

          5  taken my son to the Empire State Building and it's

          6  fine. As far as the terrorists, I don't think we

          7  should be that terrified of the terrorists, and, Mr.

          8  Chairman, I hope that some of my environmental

          9  colleagues here didn't frighten you today with all

         10  of the different things that they said, and I hope

         11  the terrorists don't frighten you.

         12                 As a matter of fact, my belief is

         13  that we should be communicating the message that the

         14  only way Indian Point or any nuclear facility will

         15  be shut down is when the lunatic terrorists pry the

         16  last fuel rod from our cold dead hands.

         17                 As far as environmental justice, but

         18  before I get to environmental justice, let me get to

         19  the fact of what you mentioned earlier, and I was a

         20  little surprised that you did bring up MSW. Because

         21  when your bills put out about the renewables, it

         22  kind of shocked me actually, and I won't get into

         23  wind and solar, but the MSW does frighten me a

         24  little because what I'm looking at probably is a

         25  garbage burner. You might have good intentions, and
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          2  might be looking at an alternative technology --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's not a

          4  burner, it's like not a combustion, it's a --

          5                 MR. McDONALD: I understand what

          6  you're --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's a chemical

          8  in a thermal process but it's not a combustion.

          9                 MR. McDONALD: I understand the

         10  cogeneration and everything --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, no, no.

         12                 MR. McDONALD: But ultimately a

         13  garbage burner just might be what happens at that

         14  facility. That is the only renewable facility that

         15  you could put there to replace 2,000 megawatts. You

         16  would have to have barges going from Manhattan all

         17  the way to Buchanan lining the entire Hudson River,

         18  hundreds, if not thousands of trucks as back-ups

         19  taking garbage from the City out there, so what

         20  you've opened up possibly is this possibility.

         21                 Now, outside of the City we normally

         22  oppose these sorts of facilities, environmentalists,

         23  we push more for recycling than garbage burners.

         24  Your intent is good --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'll just say
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          2  once more for the record, it would involve a -- it

          3  would be the transport of garbage, but there is no

          4  burning, there is no emissions, other than the

          5  burning of the synthetic fuel that would burn in the

          6  plant itself, you know, because that's what would be

          7  created from the MSW, and you would have to burn

          8  that just like you'd -- the actual fuel itself which

          9  burns with the cleanliness that's roughly equivalent

         10  to natural gas. So we're not burning garbage.

         11                 MR. McDONALD: I hope the Chairman can

         12  control that process.

         13                 Let me get to environmental justice

         14  real quickly.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         16                 MR. McDONALD: I was invited to a

         17  conference in Albany by the Black and Puerto Rican

         18  Legislators.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That was just

         20  last weekend, right?

         21                 MR. McDONALD: That was last weekend.

         22  It was a very good conference, I learned a lot, but

         23  what they pointed out, and I won't really read my

         24  statement here, is that a number of the power plants

         25  already in these minority communities, of course you
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          2  already heard that if Indian Point is shut down,

          3  these fuel generators will have to be fired up, you

          4  well know from last year, I hope you remember that

          5  I'm a chronic acute asthmatic, I'm not bringing my

          6  props in for you this time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I remember your

          8  testimony, yes.

          9                 MR. McDONALD: Right. But all those

         10  fuel generators would have to be fired up, and

         11  that's what they testified to, they're already in

         12  the district, legislator Assemblyman Ruben Diaz

         13  invited me up there and he did an excellent job of

         14  pointing out the threat to these minority

         15  communities. This isn't a hypothetical threat or

         16  theoretical threat, it's a real threat to people

         17  right now and I hope that the Chairman is aware of

         18  that.

         19                 Also, you don't have a licensing law

         20  right now, and within that licensing law you don't

         21  have an environmental justice component. Your state

         22  doesn't have an environmental justice law.

         23                 Minorities can't be protected even

         24  from your standard air pollution and your standard

         25  toxics. Indian Point is a God send to people who are
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          2  threatened right now, and we shouldn't let

          3  terrorists shut down our variable assets in the

          4  area.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          7                 Thank you for your continued interest

          8  in this matter. You're one of my repeat customers,

          9  too.

         10                 MR. McDONALD: Well, thank you for

         11  inviting me.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         13                 MR. McDONALD: And my name is on Witt

         14  Report comments, on the back of the testimony.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon me?

         16                 MR. McDONALD: My comments to the Witt

         17  Report are in the back, the last five pages of this

         18  written testimony.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         20                 MR. McDONALD: So I hope when you get

         21  home this evening, I know you're tired, I hope

         22  you'll read every word of it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm on this.

         24                 MR. McDONALD: And please go to our

         25  website. Just type in African American
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          2  Environmentalist on any search engine, you'll go

          3  right to our site. Tons of great information, and

          4  the Chairman hopefully will come around to our side

          5  and see the benefits of Indian Point.

          6                 Your process is very important and

          7  you can still do 99 percent of the things you do,

          8  without going and calling for the closure and

          9  decommissioning of the plant. We support that sort

         10  of oversight, and we're sure the nuclear industry

         11  will respond.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         13  you very much. I appreciate that.

         14                 MS. HOWARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         15  Again I appreciate your tenacity to stay with this

         16  and the depth in which you're going into this.

         17                 My name is Angelina Howard, I'm

         18  Executive Vice President of Nuclear Energy

         19  Institute, and as I think someone has often been

         20  quoted, enough has been said today, it's just not

         21  been said by everyone.

         22                 I won't fall into the trap of

         23  repeating all of the points, and let me just make

         24  three clarification and make an offer to you.

         25                 First of all, I'd like to clarify
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          2  what Assemblyman Brodsky said. Mike Slobodien did as

          3  well, but from a national perspective I can assure

          4  you that the emergency plans are done to federal

          5  regulation and federal requirements, and they all

          6  deal with emergency planning zones at ten miles, and

          7  food ingestion pathways at 50 miles. But also, as

          8  was also said, they all are site specific, so all of

          9  the siting issues and community issues in the areas

         10  around each individual plant location are done and

         11  incorporated into those emergency plans, and that is

         12  part of federal regulations. And, so, where he got

         13  the idea that some facilities evacuate, or have

         14  evacuation plans out under 50 miles food ingestion

         15  pathway, I don't know, but just to clarify that, and

         16  I'm certainly and Nuclear Regulatory Commission

         17  would be pleased to clarify that for you as well.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure, thank you.

         19                 MS. HOWARD: The emergency planning

         20  zones do involve many components, and it is for the

         21  protection of the public, and within that ten mile

         22  radius that is the planning for some protection of

         23  the public, what you would anticipate seeing is

         24  within a mile to five miles the potential for

         25  evacuation, along a sector that is dealt with in the
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          2  prevailing wind, and then you would see beyond that

          3  sheltering, which is the most prevalent way of

          4  protecting and the safest way of protecting often

          5  times.

          6                 And, so, to hear people talking about

          7  evacuations of even a full ten-mile radius are

          8  certainly beyond that, based on the current

          9  scientific evidence that is there and on a realistic

         10  and at extreme scenarios we are very confident in

         11  that and it's been done and it's been practiced.

         12                 Those are the things that are part of

         13  an ongoing process. Many people have asked, and

         14  Councilman Jennings asked about, well, how are

         15  things changed? From an emergency planning

         16  standpoint and from a security standpoint we have

         17  continually upgraded both the emergency plans, as

         18  well as security plans of the 103 nuclear plants in

         19  our country.

         20                 For example, following the World

         21  Trade Center bombing here ten years ago, emergency

         22  planning and security plans were changed and

         23  upgraded. Following Oklahoma City security and

         24  emergency plans were changed and upgraded.

         25                 So, those are the things that the
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          2  Nuclear Regulatory Commission has incorporated and

          3  there have been significant and compensatory

          4  measures that have been ordered by the Commission

          5  since the September 2001 tragedies in New York and

          6  Washington, and those are continued to be upgraded.

          7                 Mr. Leaver mentioned two studies that

          8  the industry has worked with with independent panels

          9  through the Electric Power Research Institute, those

         10  aircraft studies and on consequences of terrorist

         11  events.

         12                 We would be glad to arrange for you

         13  to have a security briefing on that, both of those

         14  studies, and I would put that offer to you. I think

         15  it's very important --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         17                 MS. HOWARD: I think it's very

         18  important that you're able to have additional

         19  information on the bases of those studies.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Would you please

         21  be in contact with Counsel to the Committee Donna

         22  DeCostanzo, or the Policy Analyst Richard Colon, who

         23  stands right here.

         24                 MS. HOWARD: Good. Yes, I will be

         25  delighted to do that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Can you just

          3  repeat that in case Richard didn't hear it? What was

          4  that again?

          5                 MS. HOWARD: Yes. We'll be glad to --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What it's about.

          7  It's a briefing on what?

          8                 MS. HOWARD: Both from the aircraft

          9  impact analysis that looked at aircraft impact into

         10  containment spent fuel pool and dry cask storage and

         11  shipping storage, and also the consequences analysis

         12  of land-based terrorist events, and the consequences

         13  on public health and safety. Those are our

         14  safeguarded studies but we can arrange for a

         15  briefing on those.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And these are

         17  studies by the NRC? Or by you guys?

         18                 MS. HOWARD: These were studies that

         19  were done by the electric power research institute

         20  that hired an independent group of scientists to do

         21  these studies, to truly analyze both from a security

         22  standpoint and from an emergency planning

         23  standpoint, and they had been briefed to the NRC and

         24  briefed to the Department of Energy. In fact, the

         25  Department of Energy did contribute funding for some
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          2  of these studies.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          4                 MS. HOWARD: Finally, we've heard a

          5  lot of things today. I think just from a realistic

          6  standpoint, no company that's in business today is

          7  going to operate a facility that's going to cause

          8  death and destruction. I think from a realistic and

          9  common sense standpoint these companies are in

         10  business and a part of the communities, and that's

         11  true around the United States.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. No one here

         13  ever intimated that -- I mean, Entergy operates the

         14  plant up to federal standards, as required. I mean,

         15  the issue on the table is whether or not the federal

         16  government is asking enough of -- putting out the

         17  right requirement and standards for the operators,

         18  as an operator. I don't think anyone on this

         19  Committee has any problem whatsoever with the way

         20  Entergy has conducted for themselves and the

         21  investment that they've made in the plan as per

         22  federal recommendation, or standard, and what we're

         23  looking at in this hearing really is the feds, and

         24  where are they and what standards do they have, and

         25  what are they making the people in the industry do

                                                            334

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  and is that good enough.

          3                 MS. HOWARD: I understand that, but I

          4  think from a business standpoint --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, of course.

          6  Of course.

          7                 MS. HOWARD: We're not also going to

          8  operate according to federal standards but operate

          9  beyond that, and if there is undue risk, you're not

         10  going to have companies risking your entire

         11  companies on this, and I think we're looking at that

         12  very realistically.

         13                 And, finally, let me just say that

         14  this industry is one that is based on continual

         15  improvement and based on striving for excellence.

         16                 As a nation we own the record of the

         17  highest performance around nuclear units, a fleet of

         18  103 plants, represents electricity in this country

         19  for one of every five homes and businesses, and it's

         20  a safe and it's a secure and it's a non-emitting,

         21  non-greenhouse gas and non-control polluting

         22  industry.

         23                 So, I thank you for the opportunity.

         24  I look forward to working with your staff where we

         25  can come up and do an in-depth briefing.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          3                 MS. HOWARD: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you for

          5  the opportunity. I want to thank both of you for

          6  taking your time and your patience in waiting so

          7  long to testify. I really appreciate it very much.

          8                 The next panel, you give copies of

          9  the testimony to the Sergeant. And we have the next

         10  panel of Alice Slater, Liz Shanklin, Gary Shaw, John

         11  Culpepper, Susi Snyder. I have to take a 45-second

         12  break. I'll be right back.

         13                 (Recess taken.)

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         15  you all very much for being so patient. I say that a

         16  lot but I do actually mean it.

         17                 So, did Donna do the ritual yet?

         18                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: No.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         20                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         21  right hand.

         22                 In the testimony that you're about to

         23  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         24  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         25                 (Witnesses sworn.)
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          3                 MS. SLATER: Well, I'll start off,

          4  Councilman Gennaro.

          5                 My name is Alice Slater. I'm a native

          6  New Yorker born and bred, and I'm president of the

          7  Global Resource Action Center for the Environment,

          8  GRACE. We also work with RiverKeeper and Star out on

          9  Long Island, sounding for truths about radiation.

         10                 I've given you written testimony.

         11  I've also submitted the report by Charles Komonoff

         12  on conservation that was discussed earlier, in case

         13  you haven't seen it. And I'm not going to go through

         14  my written testimony because it's been a long day,

         15  so I'd just like to think about the points that

         16  maybe have to be emphasized.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. God

         18  bless you for that. That's what we're looking for.

         19                 MS. SLATER: Well, I think the most

         20  important thing I'd like to say to you is that we

         21  have enough science. I've seen your struggle with

         22  the scientific experts, and we've adopted something

         23  in the real earth summit called the precautionary

         24  principal which says when there's some evidence of

         25  harm, and the US sign this treaty, that it's not
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          2  necessary to prove something to a certainty, we

          3  should take caution and I think in the case of

          4  Indian Point, after what we lived through on

          5  September 11th, you don't need a lot of scientific

          6  expertise to know that we're in danger.

          7                 I mean, President Bush in his own

          8  State of the Union Speech said we found diagrams of

          9  nuclear power plants in the Al Quaeda camps. So, I

         10  mean we're New Yorkers, we should be sharp and just

         11  say shut the God damn thing down, you know?

         12                 And we also have to know that

         13  industry is skewing its data.

         14                 We have reports that have analyzed

         15  what Entergy is saying about energy availability,

         16  and there's been a lot of testimony about that. I

         17  say that if California could do it, certainly we

         18  could do it.

         19                 I mean, basically the reason we

         20  haven't been conserving is because of this nutty

         21  de-regulation ever since Reagan, during the time of

         22  regulation the utilities were given some kind of

         23  credits for encouraging conservation, but

         24  conservation in the United States has actually

         25  declined by 50 percent since 1993 because the only
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          2  incentive for a power company to sell you more power

          3  to make money that way,'cause there's no regulation

          4  that would say we'll give them a break if they

          5  encourage conservation, so all the policies work

          6  against it, and I'm sure that New Yorkers could step

          7  up to the plate if California could.

          8                 The containment dome, whether an

          9  airplane can knock the containment dome, I was in a

         10  conference at MIT with a bunch of scientists,

         11  including the ones that wrote the Princeton Report,

         12  and there was a structural engineer that testified

         13  and he showed diagrams that a 747 with a so many ton

         14  axle going 500 miles an hour would definitely

         15  penetrate the containment dome of a reactor, and I'd

         16  be happy to get you that study, if you feel you need

         17  more science.

         18                 But even if it can't penetrate the

         19  reactor dome, as you so accurately saw, it could

         20  certainly do untold damage to these flimsily

         21  protected spent fuel pools which have more potential

         22  for radioactive damage than the dome itself.

         23                 So, I just beg you, as a scientist,

         24  because you are an engineer, I believe?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, actually I'm
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          2  a geologist.

          3                 MS. SLATER: A geologist. We don't

          4  need more -- I mean, the weight of the evidence, in

          5  law school I learned that the preponderance of the

          6  evidence is if you had a scale totally balanced and

          7  you put a feather on one side and it went down,

          8  that's the preponderance.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         10                 MS. SLATER: I think we have more than

         11  a feather in our favor to say let's exercise

         12  precaution and close it down.

         13                 And the other plea I would make, I'm

         14  very fascinated with your talk about MSW, you know,

         15  energy. I have in my testimonies reports about a

         16  project in Brooklyn where they covered 11,500 square

         17  feet of roof area, the solar rotaics (phonetic) that

         18  can fuel 300 houses, I mean there's a lot of this

         19  going on, it would be great if your environmental

         20  group could start a working group. We would help. We

         21  have a lot of information on how can we start using

         22  the clean, safe energy of our sun, our wind, it's

         23  not only about radiation from Indian Point, it's

         24  about not needing to rely on -- it's not only about

         25  Indian Point, it's about being good patriots, that
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          2  we don't have to buy oil from corrupt Arab

          3  dictatorships and suffer the effects of terrorism,

          4  so it would be wonderful if New York is New York,

          5  we're smart, we're great, we should lead the way and

          6  figure out how to get -- we could do offshore wind,

          7  we're doing that off Montauk, wind power.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right now we've

          9  got this little problem of this is like a licensed

         10  facility and --

         11                 MS. SLATER: They have a problem.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: They follow the

         13  rules fair and square. You know, the facilities

         14  there is licensed, regulated, you've got to make a

         15  real strong case.

         16                 MS. SLATER: Okay, the strong case is

         17  public safety, but I want to address one question

         18  about why --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But it all

         20  ultimately gets to, you know, the feds you

         21  understand, are the only ones that are, you know,

         22  empowered to do this.

         23                 MS. SLATER: But the Congress has

         24  power over the feds, and we have two very powerful

         25  senators, you know, we have a Governor that talks to
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          2  our President.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Can you

          4  articulate for me the position of our two US

          5  Senators on Indian Point closure?

          6                 MS. SLATER: They have not taken one.

          7  But we have to create, you know, this is great that

          8  you're doing here -- New York City has to speak.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm just saying

         10  we have two very strong environmental US senators

         11  who to date have not called for the closure of

         12  Indian Point; why is that?

         13                 MS. SLATER: Because there's

         14  corruption.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: They're corrupt?

         16                 MS. SLATER: There's influence,

         17  political influence going on.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I don't think

         19  they're corrupt.

         20                 MS. SLATER: Well, I think this is a

         21  no-brainer. I mean, I think the weight of the

         22  evidence is huge that it's putting us in danger.

         23                 I don't understand it, except that

         24  there's a lot of interest, campaign support,

         25  different kinds of under-currents of interest, where
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          2  they don't want to get out in front on this.

          3                 But there's one other thought I had

          4  which I lost for a second, I did want to get back to

          5  it, as we were speaking. I guess I'll have to pass

          6  on it. If I think about it, I'll have to send you a

          7  letter.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          9  you. Next witness.

         10                 MS. SHANKLIN: I'm Elizabeth Shanklin.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Everybody knows

         12  that.

         13                 Welcome. Welcome.

         14                 MS. SHANKLIN: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you for

         16  your patience, Elizabeth. It was appreciated. I'm

         17  happy to have you with us here today.

         18                 MS. SHANKLIN: Oh, thank you. I'm very

         19  happy to be here with you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         21                 MS. SHANKLIN: And with your

         22  resolution. And of course I want to speak in its

         23  favor and I did hand in written testimony but I'm

         24  not going to go through it.

         25                 I want to follow up on what Alice
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          2  said, and I also want to point out, and I think it's

          3  maybe helpful in your making your decision, most of

          4  the people who testified here today do not live in

          5  New York City. We're listening to people who are

          6  representing an industry, profit-making corporation,

          7  and they're producing their science and raising

          8  questions.

          9                 Now, we know that questions about the

         10  future are always inferences, therefore they can

         11  never be absolutely proven, and if you have to have

         12  absolute proof, you could not make a decision with

         13  regard to this resolution.

         14                 But I would like to ask you to

         15  approach it differently.

         16                 I live in the Bronx, in Riverdale. I

         17  live 24 miles from Indian Point. According to the

         18  Nuclear Regulatory Commission, the peak injury zone

         19  is a 50 mile radius. All of New York City --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's something

         21  which we were told by nuclear experts today doesn't

         22  exist, no such thing as a peak injury zone.

         23                 MS. SHANKLIN: Well, of course Entergy

         24  will argue that. This was the Nuclear Regulatory

         25  Commission.
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          2                 Now, if you study the history of

          3  regulatory agencies in this country, they're

          4  controlled by the industry, and for the Nuclear

          5  Regulatory Commission to say that the peak injury

          6  zone is a 50 mile radius, before it became such a

          7  contentious thing around here --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But the

          9  testimony we heard today, and I have no direct

         10  knowledge from the Nuclear Regulatory Commission

         11  that there is such a thing as a peak injury zone.

         12                 MS. SHANKLIN: Well, they estimated,

         13  they established, the Sandia Labs in 1982 did this

         14  study, and they said the peak fatality zone is 17.5

         15  miles and the peak injury zone -- of course it's

         16  inference.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But I was just

         18  saying that was disputed by witnesses that we had

         19  here today and that the Sandia report did not indeed

         20  say that.

         21                 MS. SHANKLIN: Yes, of course it did

         22  say it, but you can dispute it. Of course they say

         23  that there's not going to be any injury and that

         24  this is totally safe.

         25                 Well, we don't think so, those of us
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          2  who live here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          4                 MS. SHANKLIN: And if there's any

          5  chance, if the Nuclear Regulatory Commission said

          6  that there's a 50 mile radius which is a peak injury

          7  zone, please make a choice to protect us.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I don't know

          9  that they have made that statement.

         10                 MS. SHANKLIN: Yes, they have. I can

         11  hand you, I can send you, of course it's the Sandia

         12  Lab's report, 1982, I think it's on the RiverKeeper

         13  website.

         14                 Now, since one is balancing

         15  inference, please make your decision to protect us

         16  when you have to make a decision about which

         17  inference has more weight, our lives, not just a

         18  feather, but our lives have to weigh in the balance.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I live here too.

         20                 MS. SHANKLIN: What?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I live here too.

         22                 MS. SHANKLIN: Yes. Well, that has to

         23  be the most important consideration. The Council is

         24  supposed to represent us, not Entergy Corporation,

         25  not future scientific theorims, but us, our lives.
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          2  They have to come first. I mean, that's what the

          3  Council is supposed to place first, to value first.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's why I

          5  wrote the resolution.

          6                 MS. SHANKLIN: Well, great. And please

          7  get it passed.

          8                 Well, I just want to address another

          9  issue that was addressed in the last --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure, please.

         11                 MS. SHANKLIN: Which was that certain

         12  people in New York City are concerned about the

         13  implementation of other power plants, and I want to

         14  say that Community Board 1, which represents the

         15  South Bronx in the Bronx has enacted a closed Indian

         16  Point Resolution.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         18                 MS. SHANKLIN: And last night the 11th

         19  community board, Community Board 7 in Brooklyn,

         20  which also is concerned with the siting of another

         21  plant in their district, they enacted a close Indian

         22  Point resolution. So, they do not wish to bargain

         23  with their lives over this issue.

         24                 So, thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank
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          2  you, Elizabeth. Thank you for being here.

          3                 MS. SNYDER: I put a candy bar next to

          4  your gavel.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, you did? I

          6  was going to say, you're the one -- where is it?

          7                 MS. SNYDER: It's next to the gavel.

          8  It's in front of you. And just to say, it's not a

          9  bribe, you look like you have low blood sugar.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Isn't

         11  there some thing beyond a certain amount of money

         12  I'm not supposed to accept something or whatever?

         13  I'm sure that this is within the limits.

         14                 MS. SNYDER: Okay, good.

         15                 I really appreciate the opportunity

         16  to be here today. My name is Susi Snyder, and I work

         17  with the Women's International League for Peace and

         18  Freedom at their UN office here in New York. And I

         19  gave you a copy of my statement, I'll just

         20  abbreviate it.

         21                 And basically what I want to speak

         22  to, I think the language that you've changed in the

         23  resolution over the last year, I appreciate a lot of

         24  the changes that you've made. I think, you know,

         25  WILP is very supportive of this resolution to close
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          2  Indian Point and there's some specific things,

          3  though, that I would like to address.

          4                 There was a lot spoken today about

          5  the spent fuel pools and what to do about the spent

          6  fuel, and is the spent fuel pools, are they safe and

          7  so forth, and there's a recent report, it came out

          8  January 27, 2003, and I attached an executive

          9  summary to that, of that report, it's by Gordon

         10  Thompson. Gordon Thompson for the Institute for

         11  Resource and Security Studies, and this report is

         12  called a Robust Storage of Spent Nuclear Fuel and so

         13  on, and this is something that I need we need to

         14  take a really serious look at is how we protect this

         15  spent fuel.

         16                 Right now it's being stored in the

         17  wet pools, and Entergy proposes to move it into dry

         18  cask storage in the next year or so, or some of the

         19  fuel into dry cask storage.

         20                 Well, what Mr. Thompson's report

         21  talks about is hardened on-site storage, which

         22  instead of just your standard dry cask storage, and

         23  I don't know if you've seen them, they had them up

         24  at Fitzpatrick, but instead of this simple dry cask

         25  storage, these have berms erected around them, and
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          2  they're adequately spaced so as to prevent, you

          3  know, to prevent accidents and so forth.

          4                 Now, I'm not saying that dry cask

          5  storage is the be all and end all of the spent fuel

          6  cycle. There's been a lot of different things talked

          7  about, about spent fuel, but it is a stepping stone,

          8  and we do very much support the immediate closure of

          9  Indian Point, we support the job retraining for the

         10  employees there, it's very important, and one of the

         11  ways to continue their employment is to monitor the

         12  spent fuel now. Moving it into the dry casks is not,

         13  that doesn't mean that you can just put it in the

         14  casks and forget about it, that's not a realistic

         15  option.

         16                 I think I'm probably the youngest

         17  person that's spoken up here today, and I've been

         18  watching everybody today --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, you are.

         20                 MS. SNYDER: And, so, you know, I come

         21  at this from the perspective of someone who is young

         22  who is looking at this who, you know, when Indian

         23  Point was first built was when I was first born, so,

         24  you know, this is something I've lived with my

         25  entire life, and I live in this nuclear age, I don't
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          2  want my children or grandchildren to have to have

          3  these same fears, and, you know, the fears that I

          4  have living here in New York, going, oh, my gosh,

          5  what's going to happen to Indian Point, not even

          6  from a terrorist attack, but even just their

          7  standard operating.

          8                 I mean, I understand that in the last

          9  few years there's been several times that IP 2 has

         10  been shut down because of problems with their

         11  operating procedure, and that is not, that's not

         12  okay. So, speaking to you from the youth of New

         13  York, that's not okay.

         14                 And, so, again, you know I want to

         15  thank you and thank the other members of the Council

         16  who have supported this resolution, and really let

         17  you know, you know, whatever we can do to help you

         18  get it passed, we'll do that. We want to see this

         19  passed, and we want to see it have a strong effect,

         20  and indicate to our Washington representatives that

         21  they need to take action to shut down Indian Point.

         22  Because, again, it's not just a local issue, this is

         23  a federal issue. There are 103 reactors around the

         24  country, all of which are dealing with problems,

         25  especially with their spent fuel.

                                                            351

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 So, I'm going to leave it there and

          3  thank you, again, for your time.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          5  much. Thank you for the candy bar.

          6                 MS. SNYDER: You're welcome.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I appreciate it.

          8                 MR. SHAW: Mr. Chairman, my name is

          9  Gary Shaw.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Have any food

         11  for me?

         12                 MR. SHAW: No, but I could run right

         13  out if you'd like.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         15                 MR. SHAW: After I speak.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have a

         17  statement?

         18                 MR. SHAW: Yes. I submitted it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, Gary Shaw.

         20  Okay, got it right here.

         21                 MR. SHAW: That's me. First I'd like

         22  to thank you for inviting me back. I was here last

         23  May.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, of course.

         25                 MR. SHAW: And I very much appreciate
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          2  this opportunity.

          3                 I'm a member of the Croton Close

          4  Indian Point group. We are a grassroots organization

          5  of almost 500 citizens. When I was here last May

          6  there were only about 300 citizens. This is a clear

          7  indication that as more information gets

          8  disseminated to the public, more and more citizens,

          9  as well as higher level elected officials, have

         10  realized that Indian Point represents a unique

         11  threat and we are all better off if Indian Point was

         12  closed, than if it remains open, because we never

         13  know when the catastrophic can occur.

         14                 I remind this body that if there were

         15  no possibility of catastrophic consequences, there

         16  would be no NRC regulations calling for a workable

         17  evacuation plan to be in place to sustain an

         18  operating license.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         20                 MR. SHAW: So we should all bear that

         21  in mind.

         22                 I'm very pleased that you

         23  incorporated some of former NRC, their state

         24  operations, state programs, Robert Ryan's quote into

         25  the predicates of this resolution saying that Indian
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          2  Point is insane. I would also remind this body that

          3  he also said that it was one of the most

          4  inappropriate sites in existence, and that at some

          5  future point it's an open question whether it should

          6  continue to operate, and I think we've reached the

          7  point where we must consider closure.

          8                 I'm surprised that the evacuation

          9  plan, I don't understand why the evacuation plan is

         10  only ten miles. The CRAC-2 study does talk about a

         11  17 and a half mile evacuation zone and a 50 mile

         12  peak injury zone. Those figures have not been

         13  updated by the NRC as far as I'm aware. While they

         14  are points of contention.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Again, that's

         16  coming out of the congressional version, or

         17  whatever, of that report, right?

         18                 MR. SHAW: I believe so. It was the

         19  one that was published by the Subcommittee of the US

         20  Congress.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Okay.

         22                 MR. SHAW: We also know that the

         23  Princeton study talks about a very large

         24  contamination zone as a consequence of a spent fuel

         25  pool accident, that Dr. Thompson has also made those
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          2  same conclusions that the spent fuel pool can

          3  represent an equally widely disbursed area, and if

          4  we look at the empirical evidence that came out of

          5  Chernobyl, while Chernobyl had a very different

          6  structure and did not have a containment dome, a

          7  containment dome, and was fueled by burning charcoal

          8  which they used for cooling, it also had much less

          9  radioactive material on-site and is currently in

         10  place at Indian Point. So, while I'm not a physicist

         11  or an engineer, I believe that there must be some

         12  trade-offs that would suggest that the radiation

         13  dispersion zone will probably not stop at this

         14  invisible wall of ten miles around Indian Point.

         15                 We appreciate the resolutions call

         16  for conversion of Indian Point to renewable energy

         17  source. Our Village of Croton has started a solar

         18  cooperative to try and bring down the cost of solar

         19  panels. Unfortunately my house has too many trees

         20  around it, so I can't participate. But we've also

         21  just contracted to buy 25 percent of our electrical

         22  energy from a wind farm upstate. This is in keeping

         23  with the Governor's call to provide 25 --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         25                 MR. SHAW: We would hope this would

                                                            355

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  serve as a model for other municipalities, which

          3  again would also mitigate any impact of lost energy.

          4                 We applaud the resolution's concern

          5  about the workers of Indian Point. I would direct

          6  this body to the president of Local 1-2, Mannie

          7  Hellen, who went on camera on October 5th of last

          8  year and said that placing his union people, even if

          9  Indian Point closed, would not be a problem for a

         10  union that's that large. He talked about having 700

         11  to 800 union employees on-site, but that the union

         12  itself had ten to 15,000 workers, and he was very

         13  confident that those jobs could be replaced.

         14                 I'll reiterate what other people said

         15  about decommissioning, being a labor-intensive

         16  economy, and, so, that would also mitigate.

         17                 I'd like to provide a couple of

         18  anecdotes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please.

         20                 MR. SHAW: Foster Zeh has been

         21  referred to here. Foster Zeh is the former security

         22  supervisor at Indian Point. He talked publicly about

         23  how their simulated attacks took the same structure

         24  time after time and yet were successful 75 percent

         25  of the time.
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          2                 I will refer you to Entergy's

          3  internal report that suggest, that said that only 18

          4  percent of the security force had confidence that

          5  they could repel a terrorist attack. I will point to

          6  an episode last September where a boat containing

          7  both RiverKeeper executives, as well as reporters,

          8  was on the Hudson River. They were taking pictures

          9  of Indian Point. They were intercepted by a naval

         10  militia boat coming out of Indian Point, the guards

         11  were unarmed. They came to the boat, they were

         12  specifically asked what they would do if this boat

         13  had been filled with terrorists, their response

         14  incredibly was they would have had to call back to

         15  the plant and find out what their next steps were,

         16  despite the fact that they were unarmed. We find

         17  that incredible.

         18                 Last November several people, Mark

         19  Jacobs being one of them, Mark Jacobs is the head of

         20  the Westchester Green Party, he among others canoed

         21  and kiaked within 60 feet of the Indian Point Plant

         22  on the Hudson before they encountered any security

         23  people.

         24                 Considering that Indian Point uses

         25  over 2 billion gallons of Hudson River water every
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          2  day to cool their facilities, the ability of people

          3  to get that close to their intake is very

          4  disconcerting to us.

          5                 The resolutions call for local, state

          6  and federal authorities to ensure an adequate

          7  radiological response plan to protect the public

          8  health and safety of the communities around Indian

          9  Point, including New York, we do not believe that

         10  this is possible.

         11                 We, who live in the area, were

         12  convinced of this long before Mr. Brodsky's interim

         13  report came out in February of 2002. That report was

         14  confirmed and expanded upon by the Witt Report that

         15  came out in January.

         16                 And, so, we who live in the area who

         17  encounter the tie-ups at rushhour, who battle

         18  unbelievable traffic during holiday shopping trips,

         19  know that moving large scale populations in this

         20  area simply cannot be supported by the

         21  infrastructure.

         22                 We have very specifics, both the

         23  Interim Report and the Witt Report include a huge

         24  number of specifics, some of the predicates of this

         25  evacuation plan are ludicrous, including no shadow
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          2  evacuation, no use of cell phones, no parents going

          3  to get their kids from school should the sirens go

          4  off, there are all sorts of things going on.

          5                 We should also recognize, as the Witt

          6  Report indicates, that many first responders have

          7  very little faith in the emergency plans.

          8                 I was at a meeting in Chappaqua not

          9  long ago where the Chief of Police said that his

         10  people are instructed to don raincoats and rainhats

         11  to go out and direct traffic in the event that an

         12  evacuation because of a radiological release is

         13  called for.

         14                 I'm not a physicist, I presume that

         15  raincoats will not stop radiation from contaminating

         16  our first responders.

         17                 I would also mention that one of the

         18  really heartening things that occurred on September

         19  11th, were that off duty first responders came right

         20  to contribute. When they left their homes and

         21  families, they had reasonable assurance that their

         22  families would still be in the same spot, and would

         23  still be safe when they returned and they were

         24  relieved of their duty. That's not the situation

         25  that would happen if there were a catastrophic
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          2  release from Indian Point.

          3                 People who were off duty and with

          4  their families who now know that their families are

          5  going to go to some unknown reception centers, and

          6  we hope we can hook up later, well some I'm sure

          7  would overcome their fear, many would take the human

          8  response and try and be with their families and move

          9  them to safety. So, we shouldn't ignore the fact

         10  that these are not comparable situations. People who

         11  call say if we give up Indian Point, why don't we

         12  close the bridges, close the subways, there are no

         13  other threats that contain the contamination threat

         14  that a nuclear plant does, and that should be

         15  factored into all of our thinking.

         16                 I'd also say that it's unclear how

         17  any response plan could adequately protect New York

         18  City's water supply in the event of a large scale

         19  release.

         20                 As you're well aware, the New Croton,

         21  Kensico and Hillview Reservoirs are all within

         22  relatively close proximity of Indian Point, they're

         23  also in the path of the prevailing winds during most

         24  of the time of the year, including right now where

         25  winds come out of Canada and the northwest and blow
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          2  any plume that would be released directly towards

          3  those water supplies.

          4                 So, no matter how good the response

          5  is, how successful an evacuation is, I don't believe

          6  that you could put an umbrella over the New York

          7  City water supply and protect the people of New

          8  York.

          9                 And, finally, I'd once again just

         10  like to thank you and lend our strong support for

         11  your resolution.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you so

         13  much, Mr. Shaw. You gave excellent testimony last

         14  year, and this year as well, and as a citizen

         15  advocate who takes time off from work to come down,

         16  and this goes for all of you as well, I greatly

         17  appreciate the opportunity to hear your heartfelt

         18  views, and they're very valuable to us as we -- go

         19  ahead, if you have another point.

         20                 MR. SHAW: I would just like to make

         21  one more clarification.

         22                 Mark Williams mentioned the two

         23  resolutions referred to by Mike Kaplowitz. He tried

         24  to restate George Oras' position on the one that

         25  passed unanimously.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          3                 MR. SHAW: I've read that resolution.

          4  I was at the County Board of Legislators when it was

          5  passed, there is no contingency, just as your

          6  resolution calls for multiple endeavors to take

          7  place, multiple actions to ensue, there is no

          8  contingency set up that says that you have to

          9  replace the energy before you close Indian Point. It

         10  calls for the closing of the plant at the earliest

         11  possible time.

         12                 And even if Mr. Oras misunderstood

         13  that there was a lack of contingency, we should

         14  recognize that the resolution passed unanimously, he

         15  would have been one of 16 in opposition, which also

         16  shows that this is a bipartisan issue.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         18                 MR. SHAW: And, so, I would just like

         19  to state that. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         21  you.

         22                 Thank you all very much.

         23                 Do you want to have one last big

         24  happy panel?

         25                 Grant Captanian. Am I saying that

                                                            362

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  right, Grant Captanian? I think it's too big, we'll

          3  split it up. We'll do half and half.

          4                 Grant Captanian. Dorothy

          5  Williams-Pereira. Am I saying that right? Oh,

          6  Dorothy, it's you. Estelle Epstein. Juan Cintron. Am

          7  I saying that right? Cintron.

          8                 MR. CAPTANIAN: Hi. My name is Grant

          9  --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We have to do

         11  the oath thing first. But it's great when people are

         12  so eager so late in the day.

         13                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         14  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

         15  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         16  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         17                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         18                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         20  very much. And if you'd just decide what order you

         21  wish to go in, we already have I guess --

         22                 MR. CAPTANIAN: Okay, I'll start. Is

         23  this too loud?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, that's fine.

         25                 MR. CAPTANIAN: Okay. My name is Grant
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          2  Captanian. I'm speaking on behalf of my family, the

          3  Captanian family, and also the Shram family. We're

          4  native New Yorkers from Queens and also from

          5  Manhattan.

          6                 Last October 22nd, the Wall Street

          7  Journal printed an article that chilled me to the

          8  bone. Three of the most powerful informed agencies

          9  in the world, the Federal Reserve Board, the

         10  Securities and Exchange Commission and the Treasury

         11  Department, quietly issued a disaster contingency

         12  plan to the City's largest and most important banks

         13  and securities firms, while average citizens

         14  remained oblivious.

         15                 Banks and securities firms are

         16  currently being told to establish back-up facilities

         17  capable of handling business transactions in case

         18  their primary facilities in downtown Manhattan are

         19  impaired or destroyed by a large scale catastrophe.

         20                 These back-up systems are to be

         21  located between 200 and 300 miles away from the

         22  Island of Manhattan, not closer. Two-hundred to 300

         23  miles away may seem like a long distance just for a

         24  back-up operation. Make no mistake. The Federal

         25  Reserve Board, the Securities and Exchange
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          2  Commission and the Treasury Department know what

          3  they are talking about.

          4                 When Wall Street Journal reporters

          5  asked these agencies why 200 to 300 miles, they were

          6  told it was, and I quote, a nuclear distance away.

          7                 I must say it is comforting to know

          8  our finances are being looked after so carefully. In

          9  the event of a nuclear disaster I will still be able

         10  to use the ATM. In fact, investors' money and all

         11  their deposits from around the globe will safely and

         12  electronically evacuated out of Lower Manhattan 200

         13  to 300 miles away in an instant. I wish I could say

         14  the same for us.

         15                 Where is our disaster contingency

         16  plan? Where is our evacuation plan in New York City?

         17  It is simply not possible to evacuate New York City.

         18  If 200 to 300 miles is what it takes to protect an

         19  intangible investment, then why is a ten-mile radius

         20  sufficient for an evacuation zone around Indian

         21  Point?

         22                 Why is financial data on a screen

         23  more delicate than my human life? Now I tell you,

         24  the City Council, you must do all in your power to

         25  see that Indian Point closes immediately and

                                                            365

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  permanently. Mr. Gennaro, as well as the rest of the

          3  committee members and the full Council, we're

          4  counting on each of you as our elected officials to

          5  do the right thing. I implore you. Please pass

          6  Resolution 64-A.

          7                 This issue before us is not about

          8  electricity supply. It is not about investments on

          9  Wall Street, and it is certainly -- and it certainly

         10  should not be about politics. It is about human

         11  life. It is about protecting the people of our City.

         12  It is about taking action before it is too late.

         13                 On September 10th, 2001, no one

         14  believed the Twin Towers would be missing the next

         15  day. Don't leave this room today, February 28th,

         16  2003, and take tomorrow for granted. Let's close

         17  Indian Point while we still can. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         19  you.

         20                 Dorothy.

         21                 MS. WILLIAMS-PERIERA: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

         23  turn it on.

         24                 MS. WILLIAMS-PERIERA: They usually

         25  turn it on for me so I forget.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, I know.

          3                 MS. WILLIAMS-PERIERA: Dorothy

          4  Williams-Periera. I live in Queens and I'm speaking

          5  for myself today, although I'm sure that many of the

          6  people in the organizations that I belong to agree

          7  with a lot of what I'm saying.

          8                 I remember walking down the street

          9  seeing "safe, secure and vital" in someone's front

         10  lawn. I don't believe them. I don't understand why

         11  these signs are there. I have children that have

         12  been rescuers at Ground Zero. Three of them are

         13  EMTs, two were lifeguards, and one was a car

         14  salesman, and they ran to help rescue. There wasn't

         15  a lot of people to rescue. I'm sure that if we could

         16  have closed down the World Trade Center and not had

         17  the deaths, many of the people from the families of

         18  these people that died would have been glad if we

         19  had not given variances, not to comply with building

         20  codes to build the World Trade Center.

         21                 It's a horror. It's a horror when

         22  this happens. It's not just a horror for statistics.

         23  Not about statistics. Now I know why I was a

         24  philosophy major. I've never heard so much

         25  scientific illogic here in my life.
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          2                 It is incredible that when people's

          3  lives are in danger, these people don't even

          4  understand basic logic.

          5                 We have a problem here. We think

          6  everything is innocent until it's proven guilty.

          7  That's great in law, and it's fair in law, but it's

          8  not good in science.

          9                 In science you have to be

         10  preventative in your medicine. This is like saying,

         11  well, we don't want to make a mistake and say

         12  something is guilty, but pretty soon it's going to

         13  come over our head and smother us.

         14                 The Bell Curve applies to general

         15  things. It doesn't apply to individual things.

         16  Neither does statistics. I'm sure that we didn't

         17  think that it was probable that the World Trade

         18  Center was going to happen, but it was possible. And

         19  this is possible too.

         20                 And as far as the companies in this

         21  country having any noble obligation anymore, then

         22  why do we have brownfields? Why do we have polluted

         23  air? What are the multiple causes of all these

         24  pollutions coming together?

         25                 First we have one, a little nuclear
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          2  here, and then we have a little TCE there, and then

          3  how about asbestos, and let's throw in a little

          4  mercury and lead, and pretty soon what's going to

          5  happen to us. We've got to have a war here on

          6  toxicity. We've got to stop having so much

          7  pollution, we've got to get rid of this toxicity,

          8  and we've got to do it here and everywhere else that

          9  we can do it.

         10                 When I grew up there wasn't a

         11  television in my house. I saw on television the

         12  first atom bomb being mushroomed into a TV set in my

         13  girlfriend's kitchen. It's not funny anymore. I

         14  thought that this was going to be great, automation.

         15  First we were going to get rid of industrialization,

         16  because we're going to have automation. And then we

         17  wouldn't have to work anymore and we were going to

         18  have utopia. Gee wiz, one little atom and all that

         19  energy, wasn't that great?

         20                 I agree with some of these people

         21  from the communities that are fearful for getting

         22  asthma from the other power plants. I've done a lot

         23  of work in black communities over all kinds of

         24  issues, and there's a lot of asthma and

         25  environmental justice is a real problem.
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          2                 We've got to get rid of as much of it

          3  as we can when we can, and I guess it's more

          4  long-term to get rid of the other power plants than

          5  to get rid of this one, because if this goes bad on

          6  us, it's going to be a major tragedy.

          7                 It's not going to be can we give a

          8  little asthma medicine to somebody when they're

          9  dead, there's plenty of people that are not in the

         10  Ground Zero of the Indian Point plant. Guess what?

         11  They're going to be affected later and they're going

         12  to cry when their children get cancer.

         13                 We've got to stop this in its tracks,

         14  and we've got to stop all these kind of things in

         15  their tracks. So, please do.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         17  Dorothy.

         18                 Ms. Epstein.

         19                 MS. EPSTEIN: Just bear with me while

         20  I orient.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         22                 MS. EPSTEIN: Can I read and talk? Am

         23  I audible, please?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What?

         25                 MS. EPSTEIN: I say am I audible?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, yes, you

          3  are. Yes, yes, we can hear you.

          4                 MS. EPSTEIN: All right. Thank you

          5  all.

          6                 I am Estelle Epstein, a native of the

          7  Borough of Brooklyn. I came today to testify on

          8  behalf of Resolution 64-A. My community board, No. 8

          9  in Brooklyn, did last year in June also very, very

         10  heatedly endorse, and virtually no opposition,

         11  thought that your resolution, and what was the

         12  number again, 78?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon?

         14                 MS. EPSTEIN: Before it became 64-A.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: 64.

         16                 MS. EPSTEIN: Just plain 64.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         18                 MS. EPSTEIN: Anyway, they endorsed

         19  it. I am going to talk very telegraphically because

         20  I am troubled by time.

         21                 In 19 -- you have to forgive me

         22  again, in 1974, Indian Point No. 1 was indicated as

         23  an unsafe operation.

         24                 Indian Point No. 2 has been cited by

         25  the Nuclear Regulatory Commission for severe safety
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          2  violations more often than any other nuclear plant

          3  in our country. Those violations, having been cited

          4  three times since 2000. The Nuclear Regulatory

          5  Commission rated the record among nation's -- or,

          6  no, I'm not making sense. I'm sorry. Twenty-million

          7  human beings live within the radius of Indian Point.

          8  Evacuation is a delusion, has has been projected for

          9  our safety, gambling and speculation on major

         10  industries in our country today.

         11                 New York City is now on Orange Alert.

         12  Why? Or how? The Columbia Space Shattered. Why? How?

         13  We have long been assured that there are only two

         14  inevitables in life, death and taxes.

         15                 I would like to add two others, and

         16  that's really my address here. There are two

         17  inevitables in our lives as human beings. One is

         18  human fallibility and the other is mechanical

         19  failure. And I am not enough of a mechanic to

         20  outline to you the infinite number of demonstrations

         21  of those two inevitabilities. Aerugo, I urge you to

         22  do everything in your power to immobilize the

         23  American people, and the people of New York City.

         24  How many nuclear reactors did you say exist in the

         25  United States? Over 100?

                                                            372

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: One-hundred

          3  three.

          4                 MS. EPSTEIN: Okay. They are not

          5  viable, and one of the things that emerge from this

          6  session that I had never thought to consider is the

          7  peculiar nature of any of the nuclear energy. It's

          8  not comparable to other forms. We talk about

          9  eternity, virtually that is what nuclear pollution

         10  and radioactivity means, and the issue that is

         11  facing us right now immediately nationally is what

         12  do we do with the waste?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's really

         14  not so much the subject of this hearing.

         15                 MS. EPSTEIN: All right. All right.

         16  Now, I'm finishing, okay?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         18                 MS. EPSTEIN: Wait. Wait.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I thought you

         20  said you were finished?

         21                 MS. EPSTEIN: I am --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Easy mistake to

         23  make.

         24                 MS. EPSTEIN: The gravity of the work

         25  of this Committee prompts me to remind us of the
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          2  words of the great English clergyman poet, and I

          3  would just like to read a sentence from John Dunn's

          4  meditation 17.

          5                 "No man is an island entire of

          6  himself. Any man's death diminishes me because I am

          7  involved in mankind; and, therefore, never send to

          8  ask for whom the bell tolls. It tolls for Thee and

          9  me and us."

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Ms.

         12  Epstein. I appreciate your words. I don't get too

         13  much poetry at hearings. Thank you.

         14                 MR. CINTRON: Poetry and candy on the

         15  same day.

         16                 My name is Juan Cintron. I am a

         17  native New Yorker, but I'm also a nuclear worker who

         18  has been around this country. I've actually been out

         19  in California. I've been down to Tennessee, worked

         20  for the Tennessee Valley Authority, I've worked at

         21  Salem, New Jersey, and I presently work at Indian

         22  Point 3, which, by the way, is one of the best

         23  running plants in the entire country.

         24                 What I came here to speak about was

         25  the fact that I've watched this entire hearing, and
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          2  I was here the last time and didn't have an

          3  opportunity to speak because it lasted a little

          4  longer than I could stay, and what I see, I see that

          5  you do have a challenge, and even though some of the

          6  pundents here tell you not to look at the science,

          7  the science is going to be the crux of this issue

          8  for you, because it's going to determine whether --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Of course. Of

         10  course it is.

         11                 MR. CINTRON: It's going to determine

         12  whether nor not this affects your constituents here

         13  in New York City.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And my water

         15  supply, the water supply is also my constituency.

         16  I'm the Chairman of this Committee and I have

         17  oversight over that water supply.

         18                 MR. CINTRON: The water supply, which

         19  also goes to my mother here in the South Bronx and

         20  my family in the South Bronx, and those are the

         21  constituents I'm concerned with as well.

         22                 I also live up in, had to move up to

         23  Dutchess County as a result of the fact that the tax

         24  situation in Westchester County was just too poor

         25  for me to -- too high for me to live there, so
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          2  someone else spoke about the benefits that the

          3  workers get, we don't get that benefit. I've got to

          4  go elsewhere to try to find a decent living, a

          5  decent house without paying huge property taxes, and

          6  I found one up in Dutchess County.

          7                 What I'd like to say is, yes, the

          8  science matters and it's going to be important. I'm

          9  a child of the industry, okay? The industry has

         10  taught me well. It's taught me well enough not to be

         11  afraid of what I work with and what I do. And I am

         12  not afraid of it, okay? But I'm willing to admit, I

         13  am a child of the industry. They tainted me, and

         14  your task is to figure out, well, you know what's

         15  the truth. And working in the industry, now I've

         16  been working in the industry for over 20 years now,

         17  okay? I believe them so far. So far I haven't had a

         18  problem with them, okay?

         19                 One of the things you were told is

         20  look at the preponderance of the evidence. The

         21  preponderance of evidence is that the nuclear

         22  industry has been in business for over 30 years. We

         23  now have a problem that's very young. It's a

         24  terrorism threat that occurred two years ago, a

         25  little over two years ago.
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          2                 The industry has to respond to that.

          3  They have to be held accountable to a new standard

          4  that needs to be made to meet that terrorism threat.

          5  But where the industry being responsible and us

          6  being responsible to ensure the security of these

          7  facilities, to make them harder targets than they

          8  already are from terrorism, that's an absolute thing

          9  that has to occur. But what doesn't have to occur is

         10  we do not have to give in to terrorism and decide

         11  all of a sudden we want to shut these facilities

         12  down. They've been running for 30 years. We've had

         13  this issue come up, well, what's our response? Our

         14  response is, the correct response is let's make

         15  these harder targets, let's keep ourselves living

         16  the way we want to. And I will quote Mr. Matthiessen

         17  earlier poorly, or at least I'll misquote him, one

         18  of the things he said, and if I can find the quote

         19  here, he talked about the fact that the Columbia

         20  mission, and the fact that we could go to space with

         21  something that we could absolutely do, when we're

         22  faced with a challenge in this country, we can meet

         23  any challenge. Well, we have been challenged. The

         24  people who wish to stop our way of life have

         25  challenged us and have destroyed the World Trade
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          2  Center. How do we respond to that? Do we respond to

          3  that by stopping our way of life? No. Do we respond

          4  to that by changing our way of life in response to

          5  that act and trying to become more secure, to the

          6  best of our ability? Yes.

          7                 Do we turn off our power and conserve

          8  -- you know, I understand, and by the way, coming

          9  from California I'll tell you, yes, the conservation

         10  did occur, but it occurred because it had to? They

         11  didn't have the power, they had no choice.

         12                 I don't want to live like my enemy

         13  does, these terrorists and not have power, or live

         14  by a fire and in a hut, that's not where I want to

         15  go. That's where they'd like me to go. I'm not going

         16  to let them scare me to that point.

         17                 So, I appreciate what you're doing. I

         18  speak against your proposal, but I do have portions

         19  of it that I agree with, namely everything you say

         20  there about improving the safety of that facility,

         21  to make it a very difficult target, a more difficult

         22  target than it was before. And I thank you for your

         23  time, sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you very much for sharing your views with us. Say hi

                                                            378

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  to your folks in the Bronx for us.

          3                 MR. CINTRON: I will. That's where I

          4  stopped off before I came here.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. And I wish

          6  you would have had the opportunity to put your views

          7  on the record last hearing, but good to hear from

          8  you now.

          9                 MR. CINTRON: Thank you, sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         11                 Thank you all very much. I greatly

         12  appreciate the opportunity to hear your views. Thank

         13  you.

         14                 And I think we have three more

         15  witnesses, right? I have Ted Lewis, Ken Gale, Faith

         16  Steinberg. Faith Steinberg? Is Faith Steinberg in

         17  the audience?

         18                 This is actually our last panel,

         19  unless you mind if we take an hour break for

         20  something to eat and come back? Okay, I'm only

         21  supposed to talk to witnesses that are on the

         22  record. Ordinarily when we started the -- I mean I

         23  worked here for 11 years before we started, before I

         24  was elected, and some of the new Council members,

         25  sometimes there's a long meeting and it's like,
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          2  okay, yeah, the meeting will start at 10:00 and then

          3  we'll go to 12:00 and then we'll break for lunch and

          4  then we'll come back, and I'm like what are you

          5  talking about breaking for lunch? We don't break for

          6  lunch. You don't want to lose the rhythm of the

          7  hearing and people get distracted and they walk away

          8  and the press gets less engaged and involved, so the

          9  idea is to eat a real lot before you come to one of

         10  our hearings, or bring like little energy bars with

         11  you or have good people that will bring you candy

         12  bars. But I've got to get back to the business at

         13  hand.

         14                 Now, the last witnesses, you are

         15  eligible, you are eligible for our patience prize,

         16  our patience prize. And we have two patience prizes

         17  that are in the box that Jay is bringing down the

         18  aisle, if we can all date ourselves a little bit.

         19  So, thank you all very much. Counsel will place you

         20  under oath.

         21                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Raise your right

         22  hand.

         23                 In the testimony that you're about to

         24  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         25  whole truth and nothing but the truth?
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          2                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          4  much. Please state your name for the record and

          5  proceed with your testimony.

          6                 MR. GALE: My name is Ken Gale. I'm

          7  the author of Chernobyl On The Hudson. One of the

          8  Councilmen mentioned the SHAD Alliance earlier today

          9  and I was part of that group back in the early

         10  eighties.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What group?

         12                 MR. GALE: The SHAD Alliance.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, the SHAD

         14  Alliance.

         15                 MR. GALE: One of the Councilmen from

         16  Brooklyn mentioned that group and I was quite

         17  surprised to hear it here.

         18                 And I must admit, this is one of the

         19  best-run hearings I've been to. I've been to a lot

         20  of hearings over my 25 years of activism --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         22                 MR. GALE: So, my hat's off. And also,

         23  somebody on my staff told me your championing this

         24  resolution, and I'm really glad to hear that. And I

         25  certainly hope it's true.
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          2                 Now, there's a lot of talk today,

          3  I've cut lines and lines off of what I was going to

          4  say because it was covered by so many people here,

          5  especially Alex, but there's been so much talk about

          6  how far Indian Point is from New York City, like

          7  it's some huge distance away. Chernobyl was three

          8  times farther from Kiev than Indian Point is from

          9  New York City, and we know that the plume of

         10  radiation came to New York City. So, this thing

         11  about if it's more than ten miles away it's safe,

         12  it's totally ridiculous. The laws of physics do not

         13  end ten miles away from a nuclear power plant, so

         14  they're not going to suddenly, a particle that comes

         15  out of a plant isn't going to stop when it gets to

         16  ten miles and go, oh, New York City is too far away,

         17  it's going to keep going, which ever way the wind is

         18  going.

         19                 There has been barely a mention of

         20  some of the -- more of the water supply. Everybody

         21  talks about the Croton Reservoir, which is the

         22  closest reservoir to Indian Point, but the Kensico

         23  Reservoir isn't that much further away, and an awful

         24  lot of New York City water comes through there.

         25                 The Croton Reservoir is east by

                                                            382

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  southeast, Kensico is east by northeast, just a few

          3  miles further away. So, when you consider what is

          4  going to happen to the New York City water supply,

          5  don't just consider Croton, but consider Kensico,

          6  and I think there's another reservoir that's not

          7  that far away also.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It is probably

          9  the west branch.

         10                 MR. GALE: Now, no other form of

         11  energy has an evacuation plan, has evacuation zones,

         12  and I think when you consider on whether to pass

         13  this resolution or not, I think that bears in there.

         14  So does the fact that I can sit here and tell every

         15  Councilman, including the ones who are not here,

         16  that their insurance policies for their homes and

         17  their cars specifically exclude nuclear accidents.

         18                 One of the pro-nuclear people said

         19  that's because nobody wants it. That's not true. I

         20  will challenge anybody here, whether I know them or

         21  not, try to get it. You can't. They won't insure it.

         22                 Now, if the insurance companies

         23  realize the risk is too great for them to make money

         24  off of, then certainly the risk is too great for the

         25  plant to operate there. There's been very little
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          2  talk on the routine emissions, even if the

          3  terrorists don't destroy the plant, even if there is

          4  no accident, every few days each of those plants

          5  emits radiation to the air. The reactor vessel has

          6  radioactive particles that accumulate inside of it

          7  through the natural decay of radiation, and if those

          8  things accumulate, all those gases, those particles

          9  accumulated by too much, it would close the plant

         10  down. They can't have that, so they simply open a

         11  vent, and out it goes. And, of course, the New York

         12  City water supplies are right downwind and the

         13  people are right downwind. This plant is pretty

         14  dangerous. Among the things that come out are

         15  cesium-137, which if you were to breathe it or eat

         16  it would end up in your muscles or your reproductive

         17  organs. Iodine-131 is pretty famous, it goes to the

         18  thyroid gland. Strontium-90 goes to your bones.

         19                 Now, when you ingest those things, if

         20  it goes into the water supply, you drink it, your

         21  body will take the strontium-90, send it to the

         22  bones. You now have a beat-admitter inside your body

         23  doing things to your DNA, right? That's why I say

         24  routine missions are pretty dangerous. The

         25  radiation, the energy of the radiation from those
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          2  emissions ionizes the air. When the Entergy people

          3  say that there's no emissions that cause greenhouse

          4  gases, they're really fudging around there, because

          5  when it ionizes the air, it takes the nitrogen and

          6  the oxygen in the air, and that's mostly what it is,

          7  as you know, and combines it into oxides and

          8  nitrogen. Those are greenhouse gases. They also

          9  contribute to acid rain, because combined with water

         10  you have nitric acid. So, nuclear power plants do

         11  contribute to acid rain. I don't care what Entergy

         12  says, their science is wrong. They're messing around

         13  with the numbers because they don't emit oxides and

         14  nitrogen, but they create oxides and nitrogen.

         15  What's the difference? As far as your body is

         16  concerned, there is no difference.

         17                 So, also people talk about half-lives

         18  and not really explain it. The half-life of various

         19  elements is how long half of them will exist through

         20  decay. Iodine is eight days. The scientific rule of

         21  thumb is that it's ten half-lives and you have

         22  statistically zero amount of that element. So, it

         23  will be 80 days to iodine, 300 years for I think

         24  either the cesium or strontium. So these things are

         25  around for a long time.
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          2                 In my personal experience with

          3  technedium-99 (phonetic) it's 11 half-lives. You

          4  know, it's close enough.

          5                 The 17.5 miles, not only was it

          6  mentioned in 1982, when they were first trying to

          7  establish what the evacuation zone would be way

          8  back, you know, late '50s early '60s, Sandia Labs

          9  recommended an evacuation zone of 17.5 miles, and

         10  the nuclear industry rounded it down to ten miles.

         11  All right, so the 17.5 miles doesn't date just from

         12  1982 in New York, it was industry-wide way back

         13  then.

         14                 The other point is, Indian Point does

         15  not really supply 2,000 megawatts of electricity,

         16  because it's down almost half the time. So, really

         17  the energy it contributes to our society is just a

         18  little bit more than 1,000. So when you talk about

         19  replacement power, you have to replace 1,000

         20  megawatts anyway. So you're just really worried

         21  about the other thousand. So, you only have to do

         22  half as much as what everybody has been talking,

         23  even the folks at RiverKeeper.

         24                 And, you know, I talked about

         25  emissions, and, oh, also, people want to hold up
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          2  France as this wonderful, you know, nuclear country,

          3  they have repudiated the nuclear position. They have

          4  publicly stated that it was a mistake, they

          5  shouldn't have done it, they wouldn't do it again,

          6  and they're blaming every prior person. So you

          7  really can't hold up France as this wonderful

          8  example, and I'll leave it at that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         10  much. And thanks for your booklet. We appreciate it.

         11  We'll put this on the record.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 Our last witness.

         14                 MR. LEWIS: Mr. Chair, esteemed

         15  audience members --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You get what's

         17  behind door number one, in addition to the box that

         18  Jay is bringing down the aisle, and anyone not old

         19  enough to know that reference, I don't know what to

         20  say. Okay.

         21                 MR. LEWIS: First I want to thank you

         22  for your resolution. It's a great resolution and I

         23  look forward to working with you to get it through

         24  the City Council.

         25                 A gentleman before made reference to
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          2  science, and science is a big issue here and I think

          3  we've seen repeatedly the industry people, just I

          4  don't know how else to characterize, but just

          5  blatantly absurd statements, and let me just quickly

          6  run through some of them, just a short list.

          7                 You are a person of common sense and

          8  I think most of these belie common sense.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What do you got?

         10                 MR. LEWIS: Okay, evacuation plan. Of

         11  course they argue the evacuation plan is entirely

         12  workable, I'm not going to go into any details, but

         13  to think that after what we see of rush hour

         14  traffic, that an area of that population could be

         15  quickly evacuated I think is just patently absurd.

         16                 There be zero or perhaps two deaths

         17  from a release of radiation, that's just patently

         18  absurd. New York City drinking water would not be

         19  affected. Again, just patently absurd. A 747 hitting

         20  the spent fuel pools would have no affect.

         21                 We saw a creative reinterpretation of

         22  peer reviews. Thank you for not letting the industry

         23  individuals stand with -- yeah, let somebody else

         24  look at it as qualifying its peer review.

         25                 We saw the Princeton Study grossly
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          2  mischaracterized. Thankfully we had one of the

          3  authors of the Princeton study here to point that

          4  out to you. We heard it said that the Indian Point

          5  is not a reasonable target for terrorists.

          6                 There would be no breach of

          7  containment from a airplane hit. Indian Point

          8  supplies 30 percent of New York City electricity,

          9  according to industry individuals, that the

         10  insurance industry doesn't want to insure the

         11  nuclear industry because nobody wants insurance.

         12  There's something known as the Price Anderson Act,

         13  which shields the nuclear industry from liability,

         14  and the reason the Price Anderson Act enacted by

         15  Congress is because no industry company was going to

         16  take the risk of insuring the nuclear industry. If

         17  it's so safe, well, why can't they get insured.

         18                 I heard it said there is no 50 mile

         19  peak injury zone. It doesn't exist. The New York

         20  Times, I have the article right here, made reference

         21  to the NRC's acceptance of this 50 mile zone, but

         22  the industry people think that just because they,

         23  and I could give you that New York Times article

         24  when I step down --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm sure we have
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          2  it.

          3                 MR. LEWIS: Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm sure we have

          5  it.

          6                 MR. LEWIS: But the industry just

          7  think because they say it, it's true. You know, it

          8  could say, you know two is four, night is day. The

          9  science is there, and I trust your common sense to

         10  be able to evaluate what the truth is here.

         11                 The other point I'd like to make is

         12  there's a serious danger from industry cost-cutting,

         13  and our lives are at risk here. The industry

         14  repeatedly tries to -- it's a corporation, it wants

         15  to make money, doesn't intentionally want to put

         16  people's lives in danger, of course the corporation

         17  isn't thinking how are we going to endanger the

         18  public, that's absurd. But they do try and cut

         19  corners, and I'm going to read very selectively and

         20  briefly from a New York Times editorial, Tuesday,

         21  January, that deals with a Davis Bessy Reactor, and

         22  I think this case is very instructive here.

         23                 "The more we learned about a case of

         24  severe corrosion discovered at a nuclear plant in

         25  Ohio last March, the more frightening the incident
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          2  appears. The corrosion was found almost by accident

          3  at the Davis Bessy Nuclear Plant in Oak Harbor.

          4  During inspections last February a worker stumbled

          5  into hidden corrosion that shocked everybody. Boric

          6  acid had eaten through six inches of carbon seal,

          7  leaving only a stainless steel liner about a quarter

          8  inch thick to hold in high pressure cooling water.

          9                 When investigators looked into the

         10  matter afterward, they found disturbing evidence

         11  that both the first energy nuclear operating company

         12  which runs the Davis Bessy and the Nuclear

         13  Regulatory Commission had put production interests

         14  ahead of safety.

         15                 The industry's own oversight accused

         16  the company of excessive focus on production goals

         17  and 'lack of sensitivity to nuclear safety.'

         18  Unfortunately, the regulatory agency that was

         19  supposed to ride hurt (sic) on unsafe plants was

         20  equally negligent."

         21                 Now, this reactor had a much higher

         22  safety rating than the Indian Point 2 reactor. If it

         23  came within a quarter inch of nuclear catastrophe at

         24  this reactor, it certainly is within the realm of

         25  possibility --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I wouldn't say

          3  nuclear catastrophe, but it would be a leak of

          4  coolant water, which is significant, certainly would

          5  have been contained within the plant but still it's

          6  a very, very, very bad thing.

          7                 MR. GALE: It's emergency coolant

          8  water that kept the Three Mile Island Accident from

          9  being much worse than it was.

         10                 MR. LEWIS: If there was a loss of

         11  coolant then the consequences we don't know. It

         12  could have been a nuclear holocaust. We don't know

         13  for certain what would have happened.

         14                 And the reason I think this is

         15  instructive is because the reason that this wasn't

         16  detected was because of cost cutting measures that

         17  the industry enabled.

         18                 Now, why hasn't -- for years people

         19  have been advocating for dry casks, in the long run

         20  in terms of relative costs, it's relatively

         21  inexpensive considering the risk. For years people

         22  have been advocating for this, why hasn't it been

         23  done? It's simply a matter of cost. And if corners

         24  are being cut on a matter like that, where else are

         25  corners being cut that we don't know about? You
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          2  know, what conditions might exist similar to the

          3  Davis Bessy? So, again, you know, the Corporation,

          4  they are a corporation, they're looking at profit,

          5  and they haven't taken measures that have been

          6  acknowledged by everybody to be paramount to

          7  protecting our safety. We have to shut it down, and

          8  your resolution is a great step, message in that

          9  direction.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         11  you both very much. Thank you, I appreciate hearing,

         12  as they say some of the best witnesses for last, as

         13  often happens sometimes. So, thank you very much for

         14  coming here and helping us out, we appreciate it.

         15  Thanks for your support on the resolution.

         16                 MR. LEWIS: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I have to make a

         18  statement on the record here. For the record, the

         19  following individuals have submitted correspondence

         20  and/or written testimony. Congressman Elliot Engle;

         21  Congresswoman Anita Lowe; Putnam County Executive

         22  Robert Bondi; Hubert Miller, Regional Administrator

         23  of the US Nuclear Regulatory Commission; Ann Warner

         24  Arland, Chair of the Environmental Committee for

         25  Community Board 2, Manhattan; the Hendrick Hudson
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          2  School District; Arjin Makajana, President of the

          3  Institute for Energy and Environmental Research;

          4  David Lockbaum of the Union of Concerned Scientists;

          5  Dr. Kathleen Sullivan of the Educated Social

          6  Responsibility; John Flanagan, Environmental

          7  Organizer for the New York Public Interest Research

          8  Group; Mayor Dan O'Neal of the Village of Buchanan.

          9                 So, this concludes our hearing.

         10  Somewhere buried under all of this is the gavel,

         11  okay. And, so, thanks all very much. Hearing is

         12  adjourned.

         13                 (The following written testimony was

         14  read into the record.)

         15

         16  Written Testimony Of:

         17  Mayor Daniel E. O'Neill

         18  Village of Buchanan

         19

         20                 Statement by Dan O'Neill, Mayor of

         21  the Village of Buchanan, New York to the New York

         22  Council, Committee on Environmental Protection, at

         23  the February 28, 2003 hearing on Proposed Resolution

         24  No. 64-A, calling for the decommissioning of the

         25  Indian Point nuclear power plant located in
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          2  Buchanan, New York

          3

          4                 Thank you, Chairman Gennaro and other

          5  members of the Committee for an opportunity to tell

          6  you the environmental and economic benefits of

          7  Indian Point as well as its fine safety record.

          8                 I am the Mayor of the Village of

          9  Buchanan where the Indian Point nuclear power plants

         10  are located.

         11                 Your resolution states that Indian

         12  Point should be shut down because it "is one of the

         13  more attractive targets given its location within

         14  the greater New York metropolitan area." In all

         15  candor, I am far more at risk of becoming a victim

         16  of a terrorist attack by riding the subway or

         17  walking on the streets of Manhattan than living in

         18  Buchanan.

         19                 I do not say this lightly. For eleven

         20  years I worked in lower Manhattan including a year

         21  and a half in the World Trade Center. I also worked

         22  in the Municipal Building, for the City Council

         23  President's Office and the Manhattan Borough

         24  President's Office, for over nine years.

         25                 I am also much more at risk or
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          2  becoming a victim of a terrorist attack by working

          3  in White Plains, only a few miles south of the

          4  Kensico Dam, which helps provide much of the

          5  drinking water to New York City.

          6                 I am also at risk every time I drive

          7  on the Triborough Bridge or other bridges in New

          8  York City.

          9                 I was at risk when I lived in

         10  Woodside, close to the huge fossil-fuel burning

         11  electric power plant in Astoria which, like other

         12  fossil fuel burning power plants, uses carcinogenic

         13  fuel and chemicals. I am at risk every time I am in

         14  a shopping mall, skyscraper or apartment building.

         15                 Yet I do not hear the New York City

         16  Council say that the subways, commuter trains,

         17  bridges and city streets should be closed. Nor do I

         18  hear anyone saying that reservoirs should be

         19  drained. No one says the World Trade Center should

         20  not be rebuilt. We say: Build it again! Americans do

         21  not turn off the light switch and give up. We

         22  improve things and make them better. The same should

         23  be true with Indian Point. We should not give up

         24  because the evacuation plan is not perfect, but we

         25  should make it better!
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          2                 I ask you: Why aren't there

          3  evacuation plans for the subways, dams, shopping

          4  malls, skyscrapers, apartment buildings and all

          5  other terrorist targets in the most densely

          6  populated city in the United States? With all due

          7  respect, your Committee may want to look at the lack

          8  of evacuation plans for New York City. I know that

          9  such evacuation plans would not be perfect. But I

         10  know that your Committee would not call for the

         11  closure of the subways and other terrorist targets

         12  or the drainage of your reservoirs because an

         13  evacuation plan was not ideal. Likewise, do not use

         14  an imperfect evacuation plan as the basis for

         15  calling for the closure on Indian Point.

         16                 There has been far too much hysteria

         17  and false rhetoric over emergency preparedness at

         18  Indian Point nuclear power plants. Too many

         19  assumptions are based on misinformation and

         20  distortions spread by anti-Indian Point activists,

         21  and certain elected officials, and too often

         22  accepted without question by some media outlets.

         23                 Too much information is selectively

         24  chosen. I note that your proposed resolution refers

         25  to parts of the James Lee Witt report. However, the
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          2  proposal fails to state that Mr. Lee Witt never

          3  called for the shutdown of Indian Point. He did,

          4  though, say that anti-Indian Point activists had

          5  help create an atmosphere that could lead to

          6  evacuation problems.

          7                 A look at the facts reveals a far

          8  different story than what is reported in the media.

          9                 Look at the protection afforded by

         10  the domes which cover the reactors. The domes are

         11  made of concrete, at least three and a half feet

         12  thick, reinforced by thick steel. Recently, a film

         13  was shown on public television of a military fighter

         14  plane that crashed into a three feet thick concrete

         15  slab. The result: A dent in the slab 1-2 inches.

         16  Remember that the slab was not reinforced with

         17  steel.

         18                 Recall the worst disaster at a

         19  nuclear power plant in the United States: Three Mile

         20  Island in 1978. At Three Mile Island there was a

         21  partial meltdown of the reactor core. How many

         22  people died as a result? "0." How many people were

         23  injured? "0." Since Three Mile Island, many

         24  increased this record with the record of fossil fuel

         25  burning plants. Think of the number of coal miners
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          2  who have lost their lives or suffered black lung.

          3  Think of the number of natural gas explosions. Think

          4  of the emissions from coal-burning or oil-burning

          5  plants. Think of global warming, the greenhouse

          6  effect, acid rain, and resulting health care

          7  problems such as asthma and cancer. And although the

          8  anti-Indian Point crowd will point to Chernobyl

          9  either directly or cryptically, the design of that

         10  Soviet built plant was deeply flawed and had to

         11  relevance to the design at Indian Point or other

         12  American nuclear power plants.

         13                 I ask this Committee to keep in mind

         14  what happened in the hours after the terrorist

         15  attacks on September 11, 2001. Hundreds of thousands

         16  of people - if not millions - evacuated Manhattan

         17  without a plan and with little assistance because

         18  the police were focused on the disaster and mass

         19  transportation systems were shut down. There was not

         20  one single report of a problem with the evacuation.

         21  After the terrorist attacks, all schools in the

         22  Hendrick Hudson School District - including the

         23  Buchanan-Verplanck School in Buchanan - closed early

         24  with very little time to notify parents. Yet

         25  virtually all children were picked up at their

                                                            399

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  school within a few hours. I know this well because

          3  my children were in their elementary school that

          4  day.

          5                 Those of us who live in Buchanan,

          6  literally in the shadow of the nuclear power plants,

          7  have thought about the liabilities of making

          8  electricity using nuclear power more than others. We

          9  know that producing electricity using nuclear power

         10  is far safer, far better for the environment and far

         11  better for the health of those who live near the

         12  plants, than the primary alternative method of

         13  making electricity, which is to burn fossil fuels

         14  such as coal, oil or natural gas. Those of us who

         15  live nearest the plants know about the

         16  always-present intense security. Indian Point has to

         17  be the most secure non-military and non-government

         18  facility in the country. It is far better protected

         19  than any other power plants, including the fossil

         20  fuel burning plants containing carcinogens and/or

         21  explosives, including those located in New York City

         22  and on the Hudson River.

         23                 Why the obsession with Indian Point?

         24  Two words: Politics and money. Politics from fellow

         25  elected officials who use this issue, usually
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          2  disregarding the facts, to get free publicity and

          3  promote their own careers. Money for the anti-Indian

          4  Point activist groups who scare people into donating

          5  to their organizations. (An anti-Indian Point group

          6  bragged about raising $5.2 million at one fundraiser

          7  last year.)

          8                 I urge this body to consider the real

          9  risks of shutting down Indian Point: More burning of

         10  dangerous and harmful fossil fuels. Remember that

         11  shutting down Indian Point would result in burning

         12  more fossil fuels. Remember that shutting down

         13  Indian Point would result in burning more fossil

         14  fuel to produce the electricity now produced by the

         15  nuclear power plants.

         16                 (There is not nearly enough wind or

         17  solar power to replace the 2000 Mega Watts produced

         18  at electricity.) If you are told that conservation

         19  measures can make up for what is produced at Indian

         20  Point, I have a better idea than shutting down

         21  Indian Point: Shut down fossil fuel plants which

         22  cause global warming, acid rain, asthma, mercury

         23  poisoning and cancer. Remember that a 785 Mega Watt

         24  coal burning plant produces 18,400,000 pounds of

         25  coal every day. Compare that to the only waste
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          2  produced by nuclear power: Spent fuel rods which

          3  could re recycled, as is done in France where

          4  approximately 75 percent of all electricity is

          5  produced by nuclear power.

          6                 In closing, I was afraid after the

          7  September 11 attacks about what could happen at

          8  Indian Point and if an evacuation plan would work.

          9  But the more I learned about Indian Point, about the

         10  design and operations of the facility, the more

         11  confident I have become about its safety and

         12  benefits to our environment and economy. If I felt

         13  otherwise, I would not live in Buchanan with my wife

         14  and children.

         15                 One more item. There is no doubt that

         16  the Village of Buchanan reaps considerable economic

         17  benefits from Indian Point much like how New York

         18  City reaps tax benefits from large buildings and

         19  other facilities. But no one in Buchanan, just like

         20  those in New York City, would trade the safety and

         21  health of themselves and their loved ones for a

         22  lower tax bill. Nor would we compromise the

         23  environment either.

         24                 Thank you.

         25
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          2

          3  Written Testimony Of:

          4  Hendrick Hudson School District

          5  61 Trolley Road

          6  Montrose, New York 10548

          7

          8                 Resolution 64-A calls for the

          9  decommissioning of the Indian Point Nuclear facility

         10  and for an adequate radiological emergency response

         11  plan that protects the public health and safety of

         12  the communities surrounding Indian Point. As stated

         13  in the Resolution, there has been no rational plan

         14  to secure the spent radioactive rods, yet the rods

         15  will remain on the site during and after

         16  decommissioning.

         17                 Indian Point is located in Buchanan,

         18  and that is a fact that we all acknowledge.

         19  Decommissioning will not remove the threat of an

         20  accident or terrorist attack while the spent rods

         21  are stored at the facility.

         22                 In addition, Resolution 64-A has

         23  failed to recognize the impact on the financial

         24  stability and security of the Hendrick Hudson School

         25  District. The impact of a closure will not only
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          2  affect the loss of jobs and businesses, but there

          3  will be a loss of substantial tax revenues, which

          4  contributes to the financial stability of our

          5  schools and the overall well being of our community.

          6                 If Indian Point is decommissioned,

          7  the community will be faced with additional burdens

          8  and the safety concerns will remain.

          9                 The Hendrick Hudson School District

         10  proposes that experts from around the country be

         11  charged with developing an emergency response plan

         12  that is satisfactory to all appropriate government

         13  agencies.

         14                 A Resolution was adopted by the Board

         15  of Education on February 12, 2003 that outlines

         16  action steps that must be taken in the event that

         17  federal, state and or local government force the

         18  closing or decommissioning of the Indian Point

         19  Nuclear facility. These issues include:

         20                 - The development of an alternative,

         21  uninterrupted and affordable energy source to

         22  replace the power currently produced at Indian

         23  Point.

         24                 - The development of a financial plan

         25  that will eliminate negative real estate tax
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          2  implications on local communities, school districts

          3  and county government.

          4                 - The development of a plan to

          5  positively consider the current plant employees.

          6                 - The development of a plan that

          7  spent fuel rods be immediately secured and properly

          8  protected on-site from the threat of a terrorist

          9  attack. If these issues cannot be addressed.

         10                 These four issues must be resolved in

         11  the event of a forced decommissioning so that the

         12  safety and education of the students of the District

         13  and the financial security of this community be

         14  secured.

         15                 WHEREAS, a priority of the Board of

         16  Education of the Hendrick Hudson School District is

         17  to provide the best education to all resident

         18  students within an environment conducive to

         19  learning.

         20                 WHEREAS, the goal of the Board of

         21  Education of the Hendrick Hudson School District is

         22  to provide not only an education that is in

         23  compliance with State and Federal mandates but as

         24  important one that continues towards educational

         25  excellence.
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          2                 WHEREAS, in the event of premature

          3  decommissioning or a government take over of the

          4  Indian Point Nuclear Facility, the event will

          5  disproportionately impact on the economic

          6  capabilities of the residents and therefore, on the

          7  education of the students.

          8                 RESOLVED that in the event that

          9  federal, state and/or local governments force the

         10  temporary closing or decommissioning of the Indian

         11  Point Nuclear Facility, the Board of Education of

         12  the Hendrick Hudson School District demand that the

         13  education of the students of the District and the

         14  financial stability of this community be secured by

         15  mandating the provisions outlined in the Westchester

         16  County Resolution # 142-2002 dated September 9,

         17  2002.

         18                 RESOLVED that officials from federal,

         19  state and local governments working with relevant

         20  parties develop a plan that includes the below

         21  listed action steps, namely:

         22                 1. The development of an alternative,

         23  uninterrupted, and affordable energy source to

         24  replace the power currently produced at Indian

         25  Point.
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          2                 2. The development of a financial

          3  plan that will eliminate the negative real estate

          4  tax implications on the local communities, school

          5  district, and county government.

          6                 3. The development of a plan to

          7  positively consider the current employees, such

          8  consideration will include job placement, retaining

          9  of affected workers, and other employment

         10  strategies, and

         11                 4. The development of a plan that

         12  spent fuel rods will be immediately secured and

         13  properly protected on-site from the threat of a

         14  terrorist attack.

         15                 RESOLVED that all steps listed above

         16  be completed prior to a decision for the temporary

         17  closure or a premature decommissioning of the Indian

         18  Point Nuclear Facility.

         19                 RESOLVED, that this resolution be

         20  transmitted to the President of the United States,

         21  the Governor of the State of New York, the County

         22  Executive of the County of Westchester and all

         23  Federal, State and County representatives.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 5:40 p.m.)

         25
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          2              CERTIFICATION
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 28th day of February 2003.
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                                                            408

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

